
Shetland Islands Council

1.0 Summary

1.1 This short report provides the Audit & Standards Committee with an
opportunity to discuss Shetland’s Single Outcome Agreement (SOA)
Annual Report for 2010-11.

2.0 Decision Required

2.1 I recommend that the Audit and Standards Committee discuss the
information in the outturn report, noting any achievements or areas that
require further explanation.

3.0 Detail

3.1 The third Single Outcome Agreement for Shetland was signed in
August 2010. As part of the Scottish Government’s SOA governance
arrangements, Councils are required to provide an annual report
setting out the progress they have made with their Community
Planning partners towards achieving the national and local outcomes
contained in their SOA. This was sent to the Scottish Government to
meet their deadline of the end of September.

3.2 The outturn report for 2010-11 is attached as Appendix A. The Policy
Unit has collated this from a variety of data sources, and has relied
heavily on the goodwill and timeous responses from partner agencies
and Council services.

3.3 Although it is a fairly lengthy document, it is nonetheless, a very useful
tool to measure progress against.

3.4 Unfortunately there are a few indicators that have not been reported.
This is for a number of reasons, including the lack of a baseline being
set and some data collection occurs less frequently than annually.

Audit & Standards Committee 27 September 2011
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3.5 The Council is in the process of preparing its annual public
performance calendar. As in previous years, it will be structured around
the national outcomes and draw on some of the data in this outturn
report.

4.0  Implications

Strategic

4.1 Delivery On Corporate Priorities – The Corporate Plan 2010-12
contains a commitment to work with partners to deliver Shetland’s
Single Outcome Agreement. This report, which provides an update on
progress, aligns very clearly with that commitment.

4.2 Community /Stakeholder Issues –

4.2 Policy And/Or Delegated Authority – As described in the Council’s
Scheme of Administrations and Delegations, the remit of the Audit and
Standards Committee includes reviewing performance information.

4.3 Risk Management –

4.4 Equalities, Health And Human Rights –

4.5 Environmental –

Resources

4.6 Financial –  NONE

4.7 Legal – NONE

4.8 Human Resources – NONE

4.9 Assets And Property – NONE

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 This short report provides the Audit and Standards Committee with an
opportunity to discuss Shetland’s Single Outcome Agreement Annual
Report for 2010-11.

For further information please contact:
Anna Sutherland, Policy Officer
01595 744510, anna.sutherland@shetland.gov.uk
14 September 2011

List of Appendices
Appendix A – Single Outcome Agreement 2010-11 Outturn Report

END
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SHETLAND ISLANDS COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP

SINGLE OUTCOME AGREEMENT

ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 2010/11

Introduction

This is the Shetland Community Planning Partnership’s third annual report.  It shows the progress that has been made across all partners during the
financial year 2010/11 in seeking to achieve the national and local outcomes set out in the Single Outcome Agreement 2010/11.

The format for the report follows the template set nationally.  This means that it is divided into the 7 National Priority Areas, called “Wealthier”, “Fairer”,
“Smarter”, “Healthier”, “Safer”, “Stronger” and “Greener”.  It also includes monitoring of Shetland’s population size and structure, reflecting Shetland’s
Key Purpose – ‘To Maintain the Economically Active Population’, and Shetland’s cross-cutting priorities of Efficiencies, Strengthening Communities,
Culture, Equalities and Strategic Environmental Assessment.

Each of these sections show the relevant national outcome which the Scottish Government is seeking to achieve, and the related Shetland outcome
that we have set ourselves here in Shetland to try to achieve.  There is a bit of text which describes the work that’s been done and then a table which
shows i) the measures, ii) the starting position and iii) the performance achieved.  Some of these measures have been set by the Scottish
Government, some are local and some are related to individual partner organisations (e.g. Police, NHS, Highlands & Islands Enterprise’s national
targets).

We hope that this format is easy to understand, although acknowledge that the language used to describe the measures isn’t always very clear.
However, we will be using the highlights from this report in the Council’s Public Performance Calendar which will be available from December 2011.
This will seek to simplify the language used and make the performance information more engaging.

Further work

The Scenario Planning process, currently underway, will result in key priorities / actions that Shetland needs to take in the next five years, to ensure a
positive future for Shetland.  This will become Shetland’s new set of shared objectives, the Community Plan, with progress measured using the Single
Outcome Agreement (SOA). Therefore the development of the SOA for 2012/13 will see this document being further refined and strategic in its
approach and monitoring.
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National Outcome - Population

The latest figures from the General Record Office indicate that the population has increased by around 200 over the previous year. The age of the
population and the proportion of the population living in Lerwick and Scalloway appears to be stable.

Model based figures appear to suggest that more people are unemployed.

Progress at March 2011 on Local Outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s   Frequency/Type/Sour
ce

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011 Local Target

K.1
Population
Size

GROS, Annual All – 21,980
Males – 11,099
Females – 10,881
Age: 0-19 – 5399; 20-64 –
13115; 65+ - 3466

All – 22,210
Males – 11,214
Females – 10,996
Age: 0-19 – 5414; 20-64 –
13,076; 65+ - 3720

All – 22,400
Males – 11,348
Females – 11,052
Age: 0-19 – 5405; 20-64
– 13,201; 65+ - 3794

Maintain
numbers, stabilise
predicted decline

 On target

K.2
Population
Structure

Working Age
Population: ONS mid-
year population
estimate

Economically Active
Population: ONS
Annual Population
Survey

Economically Inactive
Population: ONS
Annual Population
Survey

All – 13,400
Males – 7,300
Females – 6,100

All – 12,200
In employment – 12,000
– Employees – 10,200
– Self employed – 1,700

Unemployed – 300 (model
based)

All – 1,700
Wanting a job – 600
Not wanting a job – 1,000

All – 14,200
Males – 7,400
Females – 6,900

All – 12,700
In employment – 12,200
- Employees – 10,800
- Self employed – 1,400
Unemployed – 400 (model
based) – 3.1%

All – 1,500
Wanting a job – 500
Not wanting a job – 1,000

All – 14,300
Males – 7,400
Females – 6,900

All – 12,800
In employment – 12,500
-Employees – 10,700
-Self employed – 1,700
Unemployed – 500
(model based)

All – 1,700
Wanting a job – 600
Not wanting a job – 1,100

Maintain and
improve current
demographic
structure and
predicted
deterioration

 No Known
Change

To maintain
the number of
economically
active people
throughout
Shetland

K.3
Population
Distribution

GP Registration
Figures: NHS Shetland

2003: Lerwick/Scalloway –
53.4% & Rest of Shetland
46.6%
2008: Lerwick/Scalloway –
53.6% & Rest of Shetland
46.4%

October 2010:
Lerwick/Scalloway – 53.6%
& Rest of Shetland 46.4%

March 2011:
Lerwick/Scalloway –
53.7% & Rest of
Shetland 46.3%

Increase
proportion of
population in rest
of Shetland

 No Known
Change
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National Outcome – Cross Cutting Themes

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Progress continues to be made on measuring the health and wellbeing of the community.
Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/Type/
Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011  Local Target

C.1 Efficiencies C.1.1 Improve
public sector
efficiency
through the
generation of
2% cash
releasing
efficiency
savings per
annum

Scottish
Government &
Audit Scotland
Annual

Annual revenue spend
across Community Planning
Partners is approx. £200 mn

Plans / intentions for
2011/12:
SIC Budget preparation
process seeking 5%
efficiency saving for
2011/12.

NHS seeking £1.4m saving

Council efficiency savings
during 2010-11 - £2.639
million.

NHS Shetland efficiency
savings during 2010-11 -
£1.4 million.

£4 mn efficiency
savings
annually

C.2.1
Percentage of
community
involvement
exercises
known to CP
using VOiCE

SIC Policy Unit 2009/10 – 0% Increased 2010/11 – 100% 100%
 On target

C.2.2
Percentage of
population
taking part in
cultural and
volunteering
activities

Voluntary Action
Shetland

35% of Your Voice, 2008
respondents said that they
volunteer

New Indicator: 75% of
Your Voice 2010
respondents said that they
have given unpaid help to
individuals, groups, clubs or
community groups in the
past 12 months.

Your Voice 2011 will take
place in the autumn

35% (sustaining
this figure is
recognised to
be sufficient
challenge)

 No Known
Change

C.2
Strengthening
Communities

C.2.3 Size of
the Social
Economy

ONS Inter
Departmental
Register
Annual

Baseline to be established
(local study and IDBR data)

Shetland Social Enterprise
Review, completed Jan
2011, showed that of the
organisations surveyed,
32% generate annual
income of less than
£15,000, although 55%
stated that they have
ambitions to develop the
organisation in the next
three to five years.

Decrease
dependence of
community and
voluntary
organisations
on grants.
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National Outcome – Fairer

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Despite the global recession, inequalities in Shetland do not appear to be worsening.  However, the increased cost of fuel, for heating and transport, will be
impacting on all households, with those on lower incomes finding it the most difficult to sustain their quality of life, and access to employment, services and
social activities.  The impact of benefit changes is yet to be seen.

Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/Typ
e/Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011
(indicators where available)

Local Target

F.1.1 Number of
income deprived
people

SIMD/Nomis
Annual

2004: 1492
(6.8% of population)
2006: 1934
(8.8% of population)
2009: 2315
(10.55% of population)

Stable (as baseline) Stable (as baseline) Decrease numbers
 No Known

Change

F.1 Reduced
levels and
impact of
poverty,
deprivation and
social exclusion
in Shetland F.1.2 Total New

Debt & Number
of People with
that Debt

CAB
Quarterly

2008/09
Q1 – 15: £666,373
Q2 – 39: £625,654
Q3 – 23: £167,337
Q4 – 30: £894,531
2009/10
Q1 – 22: £428,851

2009/10
Q1 – £428,851
Q2 – £464,554
Q3 – £413,106
Q4 – £1,395,006
=  1,071 new client contacts
of which 532 (50%) were in
Lerwick & Scalloway

2010/11
Q1 – £286,331
=  200 new client contacts
of which 107 (54%) were in
Lerwick & Scalloway

2010/11
Q1 - £286,331
Q2 - £0
Q3 - £424,724
Q4 - £712,433

New debt for the period is
due to the absence of a
second money advisor post
in Q2 and only a part-time
second money advisor in
Q3 & 4.

Decrease number
of people and level
of debt

 No Known
Change
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F.1.3 Number of
Households in
Fuel Poverty

Scottish
House
Condition
Survey

Shetland 2004-07: 32%.
Increase in fuel cost not
met by increase income
since.  65% not in fuel
poverty.
Unst 2009: 49%

33% (11% of these are in
extreme fuel poverty). 63%
not in fuel poverty. 4%
unobtainable.

20 Fuel Poverty Grants
were approved in 2010/11
with 13 completions (13
households taken out of
Fuel Poverty).

Decrease number
of households in
fuel poverty:
national target of
so far as is
reasonably
practicable, people
are not living in fuel
poverty in
Scotland, by
November 2016.

 Not Meeting
Target

F.2.1 Social
Capital

Mental Health
Team /
Community
Work

Currently no baseline.  To
be developed by Policy
Unit, SIC / Community
Work, SIC / Mental Health
Team, SIC & NHS

79% of Your Voice 2010
respondents said that most
people can be trusted in
their local area.
(18% said some people can
be trusted; 2% were
unsure; 1% said no)

Breakdown by area:
67% of respondents within
Lerwick said that most
people could be trusted
within their local area,
opposed to 83% of those
living out with Lerwick.

Your Voice 2011 will take
place in the autumn

Maintain or
increase levels of
trust.

No trend data
available, to date.

F.2 Socio-
economic
disadvantage
does not impact
on the
opportunities
people have.

F.2.2 Number of
individuals
supported to
access social
activities and
networks

Policy Unit,
SIC

Currently no baseline: to be
developed in partnership
with Community Work and
Mental Health Service.
Data available from SBS,
Adult Learning.

All voluntary sector organisations receiving funding to
assist with reducing exclusion are ensuring clients are
supported to achieve this (SBS, Moving On, SCBP), as
will the new Parenting Service being developed.
The Shetland Card, due for full implementation in Autumn
2012, will enable numbers to increase significantly, in
partnership with organisations such as SRT and SADA.

Vulnerable
individuals and
households
provided with
support to access
social activities and
networks.

      - 7 -      



National Outcome – Wealthier

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Last year we reported that the global economic downturn was starting to have an impact locally and this year’s figures would suggest that this is true for
some sectors of the local economy. While the average annual business start-up rate for 2006/10 is higher (73.2) than for 2005/09 (69), there has been a
reduction in the number of enquiries made through the Business Gateway. Also, the Shetland Social Enterprise Review reported that 30% of organisations
surveyed expected their income to grow over the next three years and 15% expected their income to decline.

A number of other indicators have not been reported on as we are awaiting the results of the Shetland Employers Survey which is currently being
conducted.

Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/
Type/Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011  Local Target

W.1.1
Bandwidth
available to
Shetland

Shetland
Telecoms
Project

Baseline data not available
due to commercial
confidentiality

First link to SHEFA2 fibre
optic cable to be complete
March 2011. Access
network project plan to
identify network required to
deliver high speed
connections to all
households and businesses
in Shetland currently being
developed.

First link to SHEFA2 fibre
optic cable to be complete
July 2011. Access network
project plan to identify
network required to deliver
high speed connections to
all households and
businesses in Shetland
currently being developed.

Increase – amount
of increase to be
confirmed through
development of
Shetland Telecoms
Project.

Project to achieve
target still
underway.

W.1 Priority
Development:
The
telecommunicati
ons network will
enhance
business
opportunities in
all areas of
Shetland

W.1.2
Resilience of
bandwidth
service

Shetland
Telecoms
Project

Baseline data not available
due to commercial
confidentiality

First link to SHEFA2 fibre
optic cable to be complete
March 2011. Resilient
second link to be installed
Summer 2011.

First link to SHEFA2 fibre
optic cable to be complete
July 2011. Resilient
second link to be installed
December 2011.

100% operation of
bandwidth to/from
Shetland.
Project to achieve
target still
underway.
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W.1.3 Adoption
of internet
technologies: %
of private sector
firms with a
website and %
of private
businesses
trading online

Employers
Survey, SIC

44% of private sector firms
have their own
marketing/information
website

14% of private sector firms
have their own trading
website (these are included
in 44% above)

To be included in
Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Included in Employers
Survey currently being
conducted

Increase in % of
employers with a
website, data
available in 2013

Increase in % of
private businesses
trading online, data
available in 2013

W.2.1 MW
capacity of
renewable
energy
generation
activities in
Shetland

SREF 10.3MW (2009) Total renewable energy
capacity in Shetland
(including commercial,
community, household and
public) = 14.1MW (2010)

Total renewable energy
capacity in Shetland
(including commercial,
community, household
and public) = 14.1MW
(2010)

Increase (scale of
increase dependent
on grid
development)

 No Change

W.2.2 Number
of projects (and
value)
supported to
develop
renewable
energy solutions

SIC/HIE Generation projects at
feasibility/planning stage –
5
Generation projects under
construction/ completed –
10
Enabling/R&D projects
receiving support - 4

Generation projects at
feasibility/planning stage –
13
Generation projects under
construction/ completed –
10
Enabling/R&D projects
receiving support – 4

Generation projects at
feasibility/planning stage –
13
Generation projects under
construction/ completed –
10
Enabling/R&D projects
receiving support - 4

Increase
 On target

W.2 Priority
Development:
Our renewable
energy
resources will
be used as a
stimulus for
economic
growth

W.2.3 Number
of organisations
using renewable
energy source
of energy

To be
developed

To be developed No update No update Increase

W.3.1
Accreditation
indicators which
set standards
above minimum
national
standards

Industry Action
Plans and
Progress
Reporting

To be developed on an
industry by industry basis.

No update No update IncreaseW.3 Priority
Development:
Shetland’s
reputation for
sustainable
practices and
quality products
will be
strengthened

W.3.2 % of
private sector
businesses
selling a product
or service
branded as from
‘Shetland’

To be
developed

To be developed To be included in
Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Included in Employers
Survey currently being
conducted

Increase
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Enterprise
Activity: W.4.1
Number of
businesses per
10,000
population

NOMIS and
GROS

569 (2007) No update (at Sept. 2010) Information updated from
Shetland Employment
Survey due Sept/Oct 2011

Shetland is already
above average for
Highland & Islands
and Scotland,
therefore target is to
maintain volume

W.4.2 Business
start-ups per
annum (5 year
rolling average
of VAT
registrations)

NOMIS 62 (2003-2007) Average annual business
start-up rate (2005-2009) =
69

Average annual business
start-up rate (2006-2010)
= 73.2

Increase and
maintain at over 70

 On target

W.4.3 Number
of business
start-ups
dependent on:
renewable
energy; or
enhanced
telecommunicati
ons network

To be
developed by
EDU

To be developed No update No update To be developed,
annual target
expected to be in the
region of 5 start-ups
per annum.

W.4
Strengthening
the Economy:
Businesses will
be supported to
address market
failures which if
overcome can
improve
profitability and
long-term
performance

W.4.4 Number
of enquiries
made through
Business
Gateway

EDU April 09-16 February 09 –
176 enquiries

01 April 2009 to 31 March
2010 – 201 enquiries.

01 April 2010 to 31 March
2011 – 166 enquiries

Over 225 per annum
Below Target

Innovation:
W.4.5 % of
private sector
firms intending
to invest in
development
projects in the
next three years

Employers
Survey

72% (2007) Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Employers Survey
presently being conducted

Increase and
maintain at over
80% (data available
2013)

W.4.6 % private
sector firms
intending to
invest in new
technology
and/or new
products/service
s in next 3 years

Employers
Survey

22% of private sector firms
intend to invest in new
products and/or services
39% of private sector firms
intend to invest in new
technology
Combined total is 46% of
all private sector firms1

Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Employers Survey
presently being conducted

Increase and
maintain combined
total at over 50%
(data available 2013)

1 15% of private sector respondents intended to invest in both new products/services and new technology
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W.4.7 Number
of FE/HE
projects
undertaken in
collaboration
with businesses

EDU/HI-Links To be developed No update No update To be developed

Exports:
W.4.8 % of
private sector
businesses only
based or with
headquarters in
Shetland
exporting from
Shetland2

Employers
Survey

38% of  private sector
businesses with their only
base or headquarters in
Shetland compete for
business outside of
Shetland (almost half of
these, 48%, compete
outside of the UK) (2007)

Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Employers Survey
presently being conducted

Increase and
maintain at over
45% (data available
2013)

W.4.9 % of
private sector
businesses only
based or with
headquarters in
Shetland
exporting more
than 10% of
turnover from
Shetland

Employers
Survey

18% of  private sector
businesses with their only
base or headquarters in
Shetland export more than
10% of their turnover
(2007)

Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Employers Survey
presently being conducted

Increase and
maintain at over
20%(data available
2013)

Education and
Skills:
W.4.10 % of
employers
experiencing
difficulties due
to a lack of
skilled labour

Employers
Survey

23% (2007) Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Employers Survey
presently being conducted

Decrease and
maintain at below
20% (data available
2013)

W.5
Strengthening
the Economy:
Peripheral
communities
will be assisted
to build capacity

W.5.1 Live
Development
Plans

SIC/HIE Not appropriate Currently working with Northmavine (through
Northmavine Community Development Company) and
Fetlar (through Fetlar Developments Ltd.) to realise
development plans for both areas, including provision of
core funding under Community Regeneration Policy. In
discussion with West Side, Skerries and Unst regarding
potential area development plans.

Working with at least
2 communities per
annum to
create/update
development plans

2 Private sector businesses that are only based in Shetland or have their Headquarters in Shetland represent 88% of all private sector respondents.  Those firms with Headquarters elsewhere are not included in this
calculation as exports may be driven by production outside of Shetland
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that strengthens
community
sustainability

W.5.2 Social
Enterprise
Development
and Profitability

EDU/HIE/VAS Deficit/Profitability baseline
will be created on an
enterprise by enterprise
basis when a project is
approved

SIC is currently
collaborating with HIE and
Voluntary Action Scotland
on research to establish
baseline information on the
development of the social
economy in Shetland. This
is expected to be published
shortly.

Shetland Social Enterprise
Review, Jan 2011,
showed 30% of
organisations surveyed
expect their income to
grow over next three
years, while 15% expect
their income to decline. Of
organisations surveyed,
32% generate annual
income less than £15,000,
although 55% stated that
they have ambitions to
develop the organisation
in next three to five years.

Deficit/Profitability
target will be agreed
on an enterprise by
enterprise basis
when a project is
approved.

National Outcome – Smarter

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Over the past year the Council has managed to maintain its excellent school pupil attainment levels which are in line with local target levels. Also the
percentage of school leavers in positive and sustained destinations has increased from 89% in 2009/10 to 93.2% in 2010/11.

Skills and Learning organisations across Shetland place a high emphasis on the quality of adult learning provision as part of the Skills and Learning
Strategy’s aim: ‘beyond 16, all learners have the opportunity to specialise within their chosen learning pathway, change to another pathway or enter
employment with training’ and ‘beyond 18, students can study vocational skills at degree level for qualifications recognised and valued by employers’.
During 2010/11, the number of people from hard to reach groups accessing learning opportunities increased from 2499 in 2009/10 to 2750 in 2010/11.

The new Mid Yell Secondary school was also completed and opened during 2010/11, as part of the Council’s commitment to ensure that pupils have the
best possible school infrastructure in which to learn.
Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/
Type/Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011 Local Target
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Sm.1.1 The
percentage of
working age
population with low
or no qualifications
(SCQF Level 4 or
less)

Annual
Population
Survey

2007 – 11.6%
2008 – 10.4% (approx
1380)

9%
* Calculated as a 3-year
rolling average

Figures removed from
Survey due to extreme
fluctuations

New figures due July/August
2011

2012 - <10%
 On target

Sm.1  We
provide a
person-centred
approach to
ensuring
positive learning
pathways for the
long-term,
focusing on the
long-term
unemployed, the
18-24 age group,
those misusing
substances and
winter school
leavers.

Sm.1.2 The number
of adults from hard
to reach groups
accessing various
learning
opportunities

Data supplied
by Adult
Learning
partners

2008 – 180 in all literacy
programmes
110 in ESOL
Baseline in other areas
being established

Literacies: 618
ESOL: 261
Rural: 915
Over 60’s: 273
Unemployed: 181
Disabled: 206
Ethnic Minority: 296
Total:  2750
* Note there will be some double counting as some people
come into more than one category

2010 – 120 in all
literacy
programmes
100 in ESOL

Sm.2.1 Levels of
attainment in
National
Qualifications at
S4, S5 and S6
a. Percentage of S4
pupils with 5 or
more Standard
Grades or
equivalent at
General Level or
better
b. Percentage of S5
pupils with 5 or
more Highers or
equivalents
c. Percentage of S6
pupils with at least
one Advanced
Higher or
equivalent

Scottish Govt
and Scottish
Qualifications
Agency

2009 – 89.9%

2009 – 14%

2009 – 10.5%

a) 2010 – 90%

b) 2010 – 15%

c) 2010 – 12%

a) 2010 – 91%

b) 2010 – 16%

c) 2010 – 13%

Increase
2010 – 91%

 Met Target

Increase
2010 – 12%

 Met Target

Increase
2010 – 16%  Not
met Target,
reflecting need
for S6 to earn
money before
higher eduction.

Sm.2  We
recognise each
person’s
strengths,
building on
these to ensure
everyone can
achieve their
potential
through learning
opportunities
that build
capacity,
increase
confidence and
encourage
participation
and responsible
citizenship.

Sm.2.2 The
workforce is
appropriately skilled
for the local job
market

SIC Employers
Survey

2007 – 23% had
difficulty recruiting
suitably skilled staff

Employers Survey to be
conducted in 2011

Results expected
September/October 2011

2010 - < 20%
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Sm.2.3 The
percentage of
school leavers in
positive and
sustained
destinations

Census
conducted by
Skills
Development
Scotland

2006 - 91.1%
2007 - 92.4%
2008 - 91.8%

2010 – 89%
(28 out of 248 leavers not
in positive destinations)

93.2% 2010 - >92%
2012 - >95%

 On target

Sm.2.4 The
proportion of
working age people
achieving SCQF
Level 6 or above

Annual
Population
Survey

2006 – 58.3%  (Scotland
59.5%)
2007 – 57.6%  (Scotland
60.0%
2008 – 58.1%  (Scotland
60.5%)
* Calculated as a 3-year
rolling average

2010 – 59.6%
Scotland (60.6%)
* Calculated as a 3-year
rolling average

New figures due
August 2011

2010 > 58.5%
2012 > 59.5%

 On target

Sm.3 We take a
proactive
approach to
ensuring
Shetland’s skills
match
Shetland’s
economic need.

Sm.3.1 The
proportion of
working age people
in employment
receiving job-
related training in
the last 3 months

Annual
Population
Survey

2006 - 31.7%  (Scotland
30.28%)
2007 – 27.7%  (Scotland
27.8%
2008 – 30.7%  (Scotland
28.1%)

2009 – 31.6%
(Scotland 27.8%)

New figures due
August 2011

2010 - > 30%
 On target

National Outcome – Safer

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Overall crime rates have dropped from 1828 in 2009/10 to 1740 in 2010/11. The detection rate remained around 68%, which is still above the target of 63%.
The reconviction rate remains around 40%. With the high numbers of offenders who have alcohol and or drug issues, it is worth noting that around 75% of
offenders have participated in alcohol or drug programmes, which could help reduce the chances of reconviction.

Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/Ty
pe/Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011 Local Target
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Sf.1.1 Total number
of reported crimes
(includes drugs)

Northern
Constabulary
Annual

2007/08: 2022
2008/09: 2009

2009/10: 1828

As of November 2010 the
detection rate for Shetland
Area Command was 69.3%

2010/11: 1740

Detection Rate as of 31st

March 2011 for Shetland
Command Area was 68.3%
(Class 1-5)

Reduction in
number of offences.
63% detection rate
(Class 1-5)

Met Target

Sf.1.2 Number of
incidents of
domestic abuse
throughout
Shetland

Northern
Community
Justice
Authority
Annual

2007/08: 48
2008/09: 76

2010/11 (up until
25.11.10): 38

Period 01/04/10 to 31/03/11
: 77

Unable to establish
until confidence in
reporting levels
reached

Sf.1.3 Overall
reconviction rate

Northern
Community
Justice
Authority

2005/07: 35%
reconviction rate

No data available. 42% of the 2006/07 cohort
have been reconvicted

2010/11: Reduce
by 2%

 Not Met Target

Sf.1.4 Number of
alcohol related
crime incidents

Northern
Constabulary
Annual

To be confirmed 2010/11 (up until
25.11.10): 294

Figure is no longer available
to collate.

Reduction

Sf.1.5 Public
perception of
general crime rate
in local area

Northern
Constabulary
Biennial

2007/08: 96.25% of
population feel safe.

Northern Constabulary’s Community Survey 2009 showed
that 97% of respondents feel safe or fairly safe

2010/11: Increase
to 97%

 No Change

Sf.1 We will
retain the
current high
level of
community
safety, but will
continue to a)
reduce crime; b)
tackle serious
crime; c) make
the roads safer;
d) maintain
public order;
and e) protect
adults and
children from
harm and
exploitation.

Sf. 1.6a Mintain
positive child
protection
inspection reports
at an evaluation of
at least good in the
four key quality
indicators
Sf.1.6.b All children
with an identified
need for a GIRFEC
plan have one in
place by end
December 2010.

Child
Protection
Committee

Children’s
Planning
Group

2009: maintaining an
evaluation of good in the
four key quality
indicators

To be established

100%
One inspection report
carried out in 2009/10,
which was positive. a) This
will come from Inspection
Reports

All children on the Child
protection Register, and all
Looked after Children have
a GIRFEC.
All children in need who
have open cases to social
work SHOULD have a
GIRFEC plan.
Other agencies are
beginning to use GIRFEC
when needed.

Next child protection
inspection is due in October
2011.

All children on the child
protection register, all
looked after children and all
children in need identified
by social work have a
GIRFEC plan.  As of the
end on June 2011 there
were another 47 children
and young people who have
their needs identified
through the GIRFEC
process.

Maintain

All young people
get the right
support at the right
time.
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Sf.1. 7a Increase
awareness
amongst workforce
and public of Adult
Support and
Protection
(Scotland) Act 2007
that aims to support
and protect
individuals aged 16
and over at risk of
harm.

Adult
Protection
Committee

Trained work force:
2008 - 2009: 625
people.
Public awareness
campaigns

Delivered 153 places this
financial year to date.
500 places booked
between December and
the end of March for half
day Inter-agency training.
Further training to be
delivered in the early part
of 2011.

2010/11 – 466 on basic
awareness training
12 on Council officer
training

Increase
participation in
Adult Support &
Protection training.
Increased public
awareness on Adult
Support &
Protection,
particularly how to
report concerns
regarding an adult
at risk, and
increased
awareness among
service users of
personal rights and
access to support
and safety.

National Outcome – Healthier
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Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Good progress was made during 2010/11 towards delivering the national outcome.  We are still awaiting some of the 2010/11 data, for example, on life
expectancy at birth and percentage of children outwith healthy BMI range, and we need to recognise that some of the indicators are very long term, and it
will take several years to bring about change; however we also know that supporting people in stopping smoking now, or to keep at a healthy weight
throughout their lives will have an impact on life expectancy in the future.  On many indicators we are significantly better than national rates – for example
on breastfeeding; although we didn’t achieve the ambitious target that we had set ourselves, we are still much better than anywhere else in Scotland.

Disappointingly, we failed to achieve the number of Alcohol Brief Interventions that we were set between 2009-11; after a slow start, we have invested a lot of
time and effort into fixing this, and have recognised that tackling some of the culture around alcohol in Shetland is key to this.  We are now on trajectory to
achieve the 2011-12 target.

Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/T
ype/Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011  Local Target

Hth.1.1 Life
expectancy at
birth

GROS 2004-06  79.0 years
2005-07 79.2
2006-08 78.1

2007-09: 78.9 both sexes 2008-10 data due Sept
2011

83.0 years by
2014-16

 On Target
Hth.1.2
Percentage of
newborn children
exclusively
breastfed at 6-8
weeks

Child Health
Systems
programme –
preschool

2008 48.9%
2009 June 09 – 43.5%

Not in 2011/12 SOA Dec 2010 - 42.4%
Behind trajectory but still
best rate in Scotland by
some margin.

58% by end March
2011 (HEAT target
H7).

 No General
Change

Hth.1.3
Percentage of
children out with
healthy BMI range

Child Health
Systems
programme –
school

2008/09 P1 class (not yet
reported)
To be established

2008/9  children with a BMI
on or above the 91st centile
was 14%
2009/10 Children with a
BMI on or above the 91st

centile was 19%

2010/11 data not yet
available

(Associated HEAT
target – number of
children completing
interventions)

Hth.1.4 Deaths
per 100,000
population from
coronary heart
disease (under
75s)

GROS 2006 50.2
2007 74.9
2008 47.3

2008 Age-Sex
Standardised Mortality
Rate per 100,000
Population is 32.3
(Scotland 56.0)

2009 – 10.6
Well ahead of trajectory but
small numbers can mean
large fluctuations.

Less than 50 by
2011
(Associated HEAT
target)

Met Target

Hth.1 Maintain a
healthy life
expectancy,
focusing on
early years,
healthy weight,
alcohol, drugs
and mental
health.

Hth.1.5 Suicide
rate per 100,000
population

NHS Shetland 2007 27.3
2008 22.7

2009 – Rate 18.01 per
100,000 pop.

2010 data due by end of
Aug 2011

20.7 by 2013
Met Target
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Hth.1.6 Number of
Alcohol Brief
Interventions
Number of full
interventions

NHS Shetland 2008-09  35
Apr-Dec 09  94

Not in 2011/12 SOA March 11 – 368
Missed target but on
trajectory for 2011-12.

Cumulative total of
622 by March 2011.

 Not Met Target,
but action in place

Hth.1.7 Faster
access to
appropriate
treatment for
individuals with
problem drug or
alcohol use

NHS Shetland A.11.1 June 09  100%

A.11.2 Baseline data to
follow

October 2010: 100%
Target met, no clients
waiting longer than 3
weeks for treatment at
present.
Baseline year for data
gathering.

A.11.1 May 2011 – 100%

A.11.2 May 2011 – 100%

A.11.1 By March
2013, 90% of
clients will wait no
longer than 3
weeks from referral
received to
appropriate drug or
alcohol treatment
that supports their
recovery.
A.11.2 By
December 2010,
90% of clients
referred to drug
treatment will
receive a date for
assessment that
falls within 4 weeks
of referral received
and 90% of clients
will receive a date
for treatment that
falls within 4 weeks
of their care plan
being agreed

 No  Change
Hth.2.1
Pregnancies
amongst under 16
year olds (3 year
average per 1000
relevant
population)

GROS 2003-05: 13-15yrs - 3.3;
2004-06: 13-15yrs - 3.3;
2005-07: 13-15yrs - 4.2;

2008 – 2.3 per 1000
population.

2009 – 2.3 Maintain rate below
4% (due to
variability of very
low numbers).

 No  Change

Hth.2 Tackle
health
inequalities
ensuring that
the needs of the
most vulnerable
and hard to
reach groups Hth.2.2

Percentage
women smoking at
booking

NHS Shetland 2004-06 11.9
2005-07 13.2
2006-08 15.7

2009-10: 14.4%. Targeted
work being undertaken.

National 2010/11 data not
yet available, but latest local
data shows a rate of 10.8%
of women smoking at
booking.

2010-12: 12%
 On Schedule to

Meet Target
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Hth.2.3 Number of
health inequalities
targeted
cardiovascular
disease (CVD)
checks

NHS Shetland
HEAT target

23 checks carried out in
2009/10 through Well
North project in Unst &
Fair Isle

30 completed in 2009-10.
2 so far this year but delays
in starting Phase 2 of
project. Will catch up once
staff in post.

2010/11 – 90
Target met and well ahead
of trajectory for 2011-12

Target for 2010/11
is 60, through Well
North project in
SIMD areas with
least income and
worst health in
Shetland

 On Target
Hth.3.1 Number of
hospital
discharges
delayed over six
weeks

HEAT
Standard /IPS
review targets

Zero delayed discharges Consistently maintained at
zero.
August 2010: 0

June 11 – 0
On target

Maintain position of
zero hospital
discharges delayed
over six weeks,
including zero
patients coded 71X

 No  Change
Hth.3.2
Percentage of
older people (65+)
with complex care
needs receiving
care at home

NHS
Shetland:
HEAT target

September 2009: 42% October 2010 47% June 11 – 48%
Well ahead of target

Local target is 40%
(national 30%)

 On Target

Hth.3.3
Percentage of
people waiting for
an occupational
therapy
assessment who
are provided with
support within 21
days.

Social Care –
monthly
reporting

2009: within target Not in 2011/12 SOA June 11 – 100%
No-one waited longer than
nationally agreed referral to
assessment timescales

90%
 No  Change

Hth.3 We will
support and
protect the most
vulnerable
members of the
community,
promoting
independence
and ensuring
services are
targeted at
those that are
most in need.

Hth.3.4 No of
emergency
inpatient bed days
for people aged 65
and over

NHS
Shetland:
HEAT target

2006-7:  2223
2007-8:  2170
2008-9: 2205
Note: slight change in
formula

Not in 2011/12 SOA 2009/10 – 2224.7
On trajectory

2170 bed days
(10% reduction
from 2004/05 level
by 2010/11)

 Small  Change
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National Outcome – Stronger

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

The annual survey of SIC staff on methods of transport for journeys to work and the car sharing scheme was not carried out during 2010/11 due to staff
shortages, but has been rescheduled for September 2011. However, it is evident that bus passenger numbers have fallen slightly, from 404,127 in 2009/10 to
402,235 in 2010/11.

The development of a new Local Housing Strategy has been a key piece of work for the Housing Service. The Local Housing Strategy will set the key
Housing priorities for Shetland for the next five years.

There have been continuing pressures on homelessness. The Focused Futures project for young people has made a very successful start in providing
joined-up services to young people who were potentially homeless.

Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/Typ
e/Source

Baseline Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011
(indicators where available)

Local Target

St.1.1 Percentage
of journeys to
work made by
public or active
transport

SIC Annual
Travel Survey

In 2007
In 2008, 10% of journeys
were made by walking
and 2% by cycling.

Due to staff shortages, the
annual survey of SIC staff
was not carried out.
This was identified as
essential through a work
planning exercise
conducted with the now
fully staffed team and has
been scheduled for 2010.

This survey has been re-
scheduled to encompass
baseline and results for a
promotion of the car sharing
scheme.  This work will be
done in partnership with the
Shetland Amenity Trust at
the beginning of September.

Walking 14%
Cycling 2%

St. 1.2 Numbers
and percentage of
children walking
or cycling to
school

Schools
“Hands Up”
Survey

In 2008, 26% of primary
pupils walked to school
and 6% cycled.
In 2008, 16% of
secondary pupils walked
to school and 2% cycled.

2009
Walking – 25.3%
Cycling – 3.7%
2009
Walking – 14.6%
Cycling – 0.9%

2010
Walking – 25%
Cycling – 5%
2010
Walking – 21%
Cycling – 2%

Walking 27%,
Cycling 7%

Walking 17%,
Cycling 3%

 Still to Meet
Targets

St.1 We will
improve the
availability,
accessibility,
affordability and
usage of
internal and
external public
transport

St.1.3 Usage of
Public Transport

Transport
Service (SIC)

2006-07: 420,035
2007-08: 426,740
2008-09: 402,736

404,127 402,235 435,000
 Not Met Target
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St. 1.4 Coverage
of Demand
Responsive
Transport (DRT)

Transport
Service (SIC)

2007-08: 40%
2008-09: No change

Towards the end of
2009/10, 2 new services
came online, linking
Scalloway to Burra and
Whiteness/Weisdale

No change from October
2010 update

45% coverage
 No Change

St.2.1 The supply
of housing across
all tenures

SIC Housing Total social rented
housing stock:
2007: 2211
2008: 2180
Total private sector
housing stock:
2007: 8068
2008: 8179
Number of new house
completions:
2007: 170
2008: 106

Housing Need and
Demand Assessment
robust and credible.

Housing Strategies
Steering Group (HHSG) re-
established to develop the
new Local Housing
Strategy (LHS).

Housing Supply Targets
will be informed by the
evidence in the HNDA and
will be set in agreement
with the HSSG.

Local Housing Strategy draft
completed July 2011.

Reporting to Committee in
August 2011 and aiming for
submission to Scottish
Government in September
2011.

Proposed housing supply
target based on HNDA
evidence = 53-72 affordable
homes annually over a 10
year period.

Housing Supply
Targets to be set
and defined in new
LHS to be
developed in 2010.

St.2.2 The quality
of housing:
SHQS and private
sector housing
grants

SIC Housing
SIC
Environmental
Health

Percentage of social
rented stock meeting the
Scottish Housing Quality
Standard:
2008/09: 81%

Currently 30 referrals at
EAP.

84.5% of SIC stock
meeting SHQS at April
2010.
Hjaltland Housing
Association Stock = 92%
compliance at April 2010.

April 2011:
SIC stock : 89.7%
HHA stock:  99.8%

100% of SIC Stock
meeting the SHQS
by 2015.

 On Target
Ensure as far as
reasonably
practicable that by
2016 persons do
not live in fuel
poverty3.

St.2 We will
ensure the right
house is
available in the
right place at
the right price.

St.2.3 Ensure all
unintentionally
homeless
households are
entitled to settled
accommodation
by 2012

SIC Housing
Service

Number of homeless
presentations in year:
2007/08: 239
2008/09: 260
Percentage of homeless
presentations accepted
and entitled to a
permanent home:
2007/08: 63%
2008/09: 71%

Homeless presentations
2009/10 = 268.

Percentage of homeless
presentations accepted
and entitled to a
permanent home 2009/10
= 64.4%

Homeless presentations
2010/11 = 263.

Percentage of homeless
presentations accepted and
entitled to a permanent
home 2010/11 = 85%

Legislative target -
by 2012 every
unintentionally
household will be
entitled to settled
accommodation.

 On Target

3 See www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Built-Environment/Housing/access/FP/Progtowtarg and Housing (Scotland) Act 2001, Section 89.(5) 9b).
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St.2.4 Monitor the
affordability of
housing

SIC Housing
Service

Percentage of households
unable to afford to buy or
rent in the market:
2008/09:  29%

Figures to be reported in HNDA update in September
2011.
Affordable housing supply targets within the now
completed draft LHS.

Housing Supply
Targets to be set
and defined in new
LHS to be
developed in 2010.

St.3.1 Number of
viable childcare
businesses

EDU 2009/10: 29 active
childminders registered in
Shetland

2010/11: 24 active
childminders registered in
Shetland Viability of
childcare businesses
improved
Support for Childcare
Scheme introduced

At 1 August 2011: 19 active
childminders. 4 pending
registrations.
Support for Childcare
Scheme continues with 50%
of eligible childminders
having their viability
supported.

Retain viable
childcare business
Increase number of
viable childminders.

 No Change

St.3.2 Differential
between public,
voluntary and
private sector

Childcare
Partnership

2009/10: Min cost:
£12.40/hr/Max cost £38/hr

No progress in reducing the differential.
Programme of publicity for childcare users on accessing
support with costs through Childcare Voucher Scheme /
Tax Credits successfully delivered.

Reduce differential
 No Change

St.3 We will
sustain and,
where
necessary, grow
the number of
childcare
places, to meet
identified need.

St.3.3 Provision of
childcare around
centres of
population

Childcare
Partnership

2009/10: current gaps for
Whalsay, Unst, Yell,
West-side

2010/11: Unst and Yell
increased opening hours to
fill gap; No progress in
Whalsay.
Three new childminders in
Westside meets the need
there.

Research being done into
provision of childcare
services for shift workers.
In Lerwick, part of the
current daycare service is
very fragile.
Audit of Childcare needs
demonstrated continuing
demand for places in
Lerwick.

Provision matches
population hubs.
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National Outcome – Greener

Narrative on progress in improving the delivery of the national outcome

Organisations are making progress to reduce carbon emissions, and work continues to assist individuals and households too.

Evidence suggests that there continues to be deterioration of habitat quality at SSSIs.
Progress at March 2011 on local outcomes

Local Outcome Indicator/s Frequency/Ty
pe/Source

Baseline Updated Progress at October 2010 Progress at March 2011 Local Target
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G.1.1 Carbon
reduction of public
sector
organisations.
E.g:
- Council

- NHS

Energy
Manager

HEAT
Standard (E8)

2006/07 –
Energy use 117,141 MWh

CO2 emissions 38,246
tonnes

SIC in the process of
producing a carbon
reduction strategy that will
identify the actions
required to deliver the
necessary reductions in
carbon emissions by 2020.
A number of spend to save
schemes have been
identified to increase
energy efficiency and
renewable energy
production.

NHS Shetland made
significant reductions in
carbon emissions through
the Lerwick district heating
scheme prior to
establishing the baseline.
Continuing to apply whole
life costing and low carbon
assessment in their
maintenance programs to
deliver the target for
example the recent
installation of LED lighting
systems.

2010/11 –
Energy use 111,838 MWh

CO2 emissions 37,511
tonnes

Reduce energy
based carbon
emissions and
energy
consumption as set
out in Climate
Change (Scotland)
Act 2009.
2.5%/year
reduction

2014/15: 1118
tonnes (target may
be revised when
baseline updated)
2014/15: 16018 GJ
(target may be
revised when
baseline updated)

4% annual
reduction

G.1.2 Carbon
reduction of
individuals

Carbon Group Baseline to be established SIC in the process of
leading the production of a
carbon reduction strategy
that will identify the actions
required to deliver the
necessary reductions in
carbon emission by 2020

Preparation for
implementation.

Reduce

G.1 We will
move towards
sustainable and
efficient
consumption
and production

G.1.3 Carbon
reduction of
communities

Carbon Group Baseline to be established SIC in the process of
leading the production of a
carbon reduction strategy
that will identify the actions
required to deliver the
necessary reductions in
carbon emission by 2020

Preparation for
implementation.

Reduce
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G.1.4 Quantity of
waste sent to
landfill

SIC, Waste
Services

2007-08: 1,169 tonnes
2008-09: 690 tonnes

2009/10 719 tonnes Not yet available. Reduce

G.2.1 Biodiversity:
SSSIs

SNH SSSI qualifying features
in favourable or
recovering condition: 284
features.
- 52 are unfavourable and
not recovering (18.3%); of
these 40 cannot be
addressed by local
land/water management
action (14.1%); 12 require
local land/water
management action
(4.2%)

One feature has changed
to unfavourable declining
where a change in
management is required –
plans in place to rectify.

SSSI qualifying features in
favourable or recovering
condition: 279 features.
79 (28.3%) are
unfavourable and not
recovering as recorded in
latest assessment (end
March 2011). Of the 79
features, 38 (48%) have
causes that cannot be
addressed by local
management.

No increase in the
proportion of SSSI
qualifying features
not in favourable or
recovering
condition, and
requiring local
land/water
management action
(i.e. it shouldn't rise
above 4.2%)

 Not On Target

G.2 We will
protect
Shetland’s
unique and
renowned
natural and built
environment

G.2.2 Biodiversity:
species where
decline is
reversed or
stabilised, or
there is
improvement

Living
Shetland

Baseline of key species
(including rare plants,
invertebrates, terrestrial
breeding species, otter)
These Indicators are
based on a 5-year rolling
programme of monitoring

No losses of species have been reported. Pressure on
some hawkweed species is increasing. Otter population in
long-term monitoring area of Yell Sound is at low levels,
but still widespread and a high density compared to
National populations.
Seabird populations (excluding gannet, storm petrel)
continuing long-term decline.

Improvement
(information for
specific species will
be included in each
SOA annually)

 No Change
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Shetland Islands Council

1.0 Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Statutory Performance
Indicators for 2010-11.

2.0 Decision Required

2.1 I recommend that the Audit and Standards Committee reviews the
Performance Indicators for 2010-11 outlined in Appendix A and decide
whether any areas require to be referred to the relevant functional
Committee for further investigation.

3.0 Detail

3.1 Appendix A contains a summary of the Performance Indicators, which
have been submitted to Audit Scotland. In order to make this more
useful, we have provided figures to show this Council’s performance
over the past four years. This will help to show trend over time and
should make the figures slightly more meaningful.

3.2 In summary 33 indicators have improved since 2009-10, 18 have got
worse and 11 have stayed the same.

3.3 There is a lot of information to digest in Appendix A. However, a few
notable areas where performance has improved include:

Museum – The number of people accessing the museum collections
has increased by 20.8%. This is due to better data collection of visits to
the museum websites.

Audit & Standards Committee 27 September 2011

Statutory Performance Indicators 2010-11

CE-037

Performance Management Manager Corporate Services

Agenda Item

2
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Asset Management – The proportion of the gross internal floor area of
operational buildings that are in a satisfactory condition has risen from
78.8% to 90.7% over the last year. This is due to the Anderson High
School and Uyeasound primary school being upgraded to B and the
new Mid Yell school being classified as A.

3.4 One area where performance has deteriorated:

Planning Applications - In 2009-10, 80.6% of the householder
applications were dealt with in two months.  This fell to 64.6% in 2010-
11.   After an internal restructuring, and redistribution of workloads, we
had the (generally) less complex applications dealt with primarily by
one member of staff.  This saw the sharp rise in performance in 2009-
10. In the past year, this person has had a role to play in the small
teams working on the section 36 wind farm consultation.  During this
period, we have also been replacing the existing back office systems in
the Planning Service. This person has had a key role in the
development and implementation phases. This project, and significant
large applications have reduced the time available for all staff to deal
with planning applications.

3.5 There are of course other areas where performance has improved or
got worse. Members are asked to look at Appendix A to highlight these
wherever considered appropriate.

3.6 The indicators contained in Appendix A comprise the indicators that
Audit Scotland require councils to monitor and report. There is currently
a national initiative led by SOLACE and supported by the Improvement
Service to develop, on a collaborative basis, a comparative
benchmarking framework for Scottish Local Government that
supported the targeting of change resources to areas of greatest
impact – in terms of efficiency/ costs, productivity and outcomes.

3.7  The indicators are regarded as headline measures to capture costs,
cost composition, and a small number of ‘supporting’ measures to
facilitate interpretation of the headline cost measures.

3.8 The aim of the benchmarking suite is to help councils to focus
questions and guide further exploration of performance variations and
to subsequently share good practice with one another in a collective
and individual effort in driving improvement forward.

3.9 The suite of indicators have been developed for each major service
area that can be compared across Scottish Councils and agreement
has been sought with Orkney Islands Council and Western Isles
Council to share this data and work collaboratively to use the indicators
to improve services.

3.10 The new performance planning management framework will consist of
a hierarchy of indicators:
- High level corporate indicators that will measure performance against
single outcome agreement, community planning and corporate
objectives
- High level service performance indicators as described above
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- Statutory performance indicators.

4.0  Implications

Strategic

4.1 Delivery On Corporate Priorities – NONE

4.2 Community /Stakeholder Issues – NONE

4.2 Policy And/Or Delegated Authority – As described in the Council’s
Scheme of Administrations and Delegations, the remit of the Audit and
Standards Committee includes assessing the effectiveness of the
Council’s Performance Management System by reviewing outputs from
the system and overview key performance indicators.

4.3 Risk Management –  NONE

4.4 Equalities, Health And Human Rights – NONE

4.5 Environmental – NONE

Resources

4.6 Financial –  NONE

4.7 Legal – Failure to report the Performance Indicators would represent a
risk to the Council as it would effectively mean that the Council was not
complying with the Local Government Act 1992.

4.8 Human Resources – NONE

4.9 Assets And Property – NONE

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 This report presents the Statutory Performance Indicators for 2010-11.
These have been submitted to Audit Scotland for audit verification. The
Audit and Standards Committee have the remit to review the indicators
and decide whether any areas require further investigation.

For further information please contact:
Anna Sutherland, Policy Officer
01595 744510, anna.sutherland@shetland.gov.uk
14 September 2011

List of Appendices
Appendix A: Statutory Performance Indicators 2010-11
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1

Appendix 1: Statutory Performance Indicators 2010-11

Key Used
X - Worse on the previous year
=  - Stayed the same as the previous year

- Better than the previous year

Year / measurement Better,
worse or
stayed the
same since
09-10

Indicator Measure

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11
Corporate Management

1.a. Sickness Absence - the average number of
working days per employee lost through sickness
absence for teachers

- 5.3 6.9 6.2

1.b. Sickness Absence - the average number of
working days per employee lost through sickness
absence for all other local government
employees

- 13.3 12.2 12.2 =

2.a. Equal opportunities - percentage of highest paid
2% of earners among Council employees that are
women

12.3 12.7 13.0 12.1 X

2.b. Equal opportunities - percentage of highest paid
5% of earners among Council employees that are
women

20.9 21.2 20.3 23.8

3. Public access - percentage of public access
buildings that are suitable and accessible to
disabled people

64.7 62.9 63.9 63.9 =

5. Council tax collection – the cost of collecting
council tax per dwelling (£) 10.21 15.52 16.21 14.39

6.a. Council Tax Income - the income due from
council tax for the year

7,494,5
13

7,655,8
74

7,784,8
14

7,899,9
77 =

6.b. Council Tax Income - the percentage of council
tax income for the year that was collected in the
year

96.4 96.5 96.5 96.4 =

7. Invoice payment - the percentage of invoices
sampled and paid within 30 days 86.4 86.4 87.1 85.5 X

8.a. Asset management - proportion of Gross Internal
floor Area that is in satisfactory condition
(operational buildings)

73.5 80.7 78.8 90.7

8.b. Asset management - number and percentage of
operational buildings that are suitable for their
current use

65.9 66.2 66.4 70.5

Benefit Administration
4.a. Weighted rent rebate caseload 1,267 1,203 1,199 1,170
4.b. Weighted private rented sector caseload 115 117 141 147 X
4.c. Weighted registered social landlord caseload 184 208 270 306 X
4.d. Weighted Council Tax Benefit caseload 1,999 1,979 2,028 1,997
4.e. Gross administration cost per case 69.80 70.22 74.39 77.31 X

Adult Social Work
9.a. Home care - number of people aged 65+

receiving homecare 400 423 415 450
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9.b. Home care - total hours as a rate per 1,000
population aged 65+ 762.7 802 819.6 923.7

9.c.i. Home care - number of home care clients aged
65+ receiving personal care as a percentage of
clients

54.5 52.2 55.4 57.1

9.c.ii. Home care - number of home care clients aged
65+ receiving care in evenings/ overnight as a
percentage of clients

24.8 24.6 28.7 31.3

9.c.iii. Home care - number of home care clients aged
65+ receiving care at weekends as a percentage
of clients

44.0 43.5 46.5 46.7

Cultural and Community Services
10.a. Sport and Leisure Management - all pools – the

number of attendances expressed per 1,000
population

12,402 12,105 11,210 11,768

10.b. Sport and Leisure Management - indoor sports
facilities (excluding pools in combined complex) –
the number of attendances expressed per 1,000
population

14,996 14,718 14,537 15,016

11.a. Museums – number of visits to/usages of council
funded or part funded museums and expressed
per 1,000 population

5,198 289 6,052 8,174

11.b. Museums – number of visits in part a) that were
in person and expressed per 1,000 population 3,687 184 3,919 4,121

12.a. Use of Libraries - the number of visits to libraries
and expressed per 1,000 population 8,045 8,398 8,597 7,920 X

Development Services
13.a.i. Planning applications processing time –

percentage of householder applications dealt with
within two months

24.2 50.5 80.6 64.6 X

13.a.ii. Planning applications processing time –
percentage of non-householder applications dealt
with within two months

23.7 31.6 38.0 35.2 X

Housing
14. Response repairs - percentage of housing

response repairs completed within target times - 76.2 83.6 84.7

15.a.i. Housing quality - percentage of council dwellings
that are of tolerable standard - 100 100 100 =

15.a.ii. Housing quality - percentage of council dwellings
that are free from serious disrepair - 100 100 100 =

15.a.iii. Housing quality - percentage of council dwellings
that are energy efficient - 87.9 86.5 86.8

15.a.iv. Housing quality - percentage of council dwellings
that have modern facilities and services - 99.6 98.9 98.9 =

15.a.v. Housing quality - percentage of council dwellings
that are healthy, safe and secure - 93.8 100 100 =

15.a.vi. Housing quality - percentage of council dwellings
that meet the Scottish Housing Quality Standard - 80.8 84.5 85.9

16. Tenancy changes – percentage of rent due in the
year that was lost due to voids 3 2.3 1.9 2.2 X

17.a. Tenancy changes – the average time taken to re-
let housing not in low demand, in days 63 48 34 31

17.b. Tenancy changes – the average time taken to re-
let housing in low demand, in days 138 161 203 189

17.c. Tenancy changes – the number of days that low 282 328 244 216
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demand housing had been un-let for, at year end
18.a. Rent Arrears - current tenants’ arrears as a

percentage of net rent due in the year 3.9 4.0 3.7 3.5

18.b. Rent Arrears - the percentage of current tenants
owing more than 13 weeks rent excluding those
owing less than £250

4 4.3 4.0 3.9

18.c. Rent Arrears - the proportion of tenants giving up
their tenancy during the year that were in rent
arrears

- - 44.1 42.0

18.d. Rent Arrears – the average number of weeks rent
owed by tenants leaving in arrears - - 9.0 7.9

18.e. Rent Arrears - percentage of former tenant
arrears written off or collected during the year - - 59.1 61.6

19.a.i. Homelessness - permanent accommodation - the
percentage of decision notifications issued within
28 days of date of initial presentation

- 72 82.8 78.4 X

19.a.ii. Homelessness - permanent accommodation -
percentage who are housed into permanent
accommodation

- 59 66.7 68.4

19.a.iii. Homelessness - permanent accommodation -
percentage of cases reassessed within 12
months

- 21 8.6 9.2

19.a.iv. Homelessness - temporary accommodation - the
percentage of decision notifications issued within
28 days of date of initial presentation

- 81.6 79.7 77.8 X

19.a.v. Homelessness - temporary accommodation –
percentage of cases reassessed within 12
months

- 11.8 16 14.6 X

19.b. Homelessness - the proportion of those provided
with permanent accommodation in Council stock
who maintained their tenancy for at least 12
months

- - 90 72 X

Protective Services
20.a. Domestic Noise Complaints:
20.a.i. Settled without the need for attendance on site 222 309 261 296 X
20.a.ii. Requiring attendance on site 4 0 2 1
20.a.iii. Dealt with under Part V of the Antisocial

Behaviour (Scotland) Act 2004 0 0 0 0 =
20.b. Average time in hours between the time of the complaint and attendance on site:
20.b.i Requiring attendance on site 540 0 12 0
20.b.ii Dealt with under Part V of the antisocial

Behaviour (Scotland) Act 2004 0 0 No
Service 0 =

21.a. Consumer complaints – the percentage of
complaints processed within 14 days of receipt 86.7 90.8 84.8 90.9

21.b. Business advice requests – the percentage of
requests dealt with within 14 days of receipt 92.6 94.8 91.7 92.4

Roads and Lighting
22. Carriageway condition - the percentage of the

road network that should be considered for
maintenance treatment

40.2 38.4 39.3 40.7 X

Waste Management
23.a. Refuse Collection - the net cost per property (£)

of refuse collection 76.89 60.09 76.43 77.97 X
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23.b. Refuse Collection - the net cost per property (£)
of refuse disposal 55.64 56.63 64.39 54.95

24. Refuse Recycling - the percentage of municipal
waste composted/recycled - 22.6 19.3 17.8 X

25. Cleanliness - overall cleanliness index achieved 79 79 76 73 X
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Shetland Islands Council

1.0 Summary

1.1 The purpose of this Report is to present the draft unaudited Annual
Report and Accounts of the Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund to
31 March 2011 for consideration and approval.

2.0 Decision Required

2.1 There are no options to consider in reaching a decision.  The
information upon which the recommendations are based is contained in
Appendix1.

2.2 The Pension Fund Consultative Committee are asked to
RECOMMEND to the Executive Committee to:

(a) approve the Annual Governance Statement, as being an
accurate record of the arrangements in place for the Shetland
Islands Council Pension Fund;

(b) approve the self assessment checklist (Government Compliance
Statement) and recommended actions for improvement to meet
best practice arrangements; and

(c) approve the draft unaudited accounts to 31 March 2011.

3.0 Detail

3.1 In April 2011, the Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA) issued
guidance on the Governance Compliance Statements in accordance
with regulation 27 (1) (c) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Administration) (Scotland) Regulations 2008.    The regulations require
the Local Government Pension Scheme administering authorities, in
this case, Shetland Islands Council, to prepare a written governance

Pension Fund Management Consultative
Committee
Shetland Islands Council
Audit & Standards

 23 September 2011

 27 September 2011
 27 September 2011

Draft Unaudited Pension Fund Accounts to 31 March 2011

F-037-F

Report Presented by Head of Finance Finance Services

Agenda Item

3
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compliance statement in compliance with the guidance and, if there is
any non-compliance, to set out any reasons for non compliance.  The
date for publication is 30 September 2011.

3.2 This is the first time that the Pension Fund accounts have been
presented separately in this new format and externally audited as a
separate entity in its own right.  Previously the Pension Fund was part
of the Council’s overall accounts and audit arrangements.

3.3 The Council, as administering authority, is responsible for ensuring
that:

- the business is conducted in accordance with law and appropriate
standards;

- that funds are safeguarded and properly accounted for.

3.4 The Council is encouraged to consider the management of the Pension
Fund as a service in its own right.  Best practice guidance suggests
that the service, as appropriate to the scale of the operation, is
supported by the management arrangements, such as:

- appropriate strategies and policies
- service planning
- budgets, staff time allocations and management accounts
- performance management arrangements
- systems of internal regulation and control
- stakeholder engagement and communication
- risk management and business continuity
-  training plans
- independent and objective scrutiny.

3.5 The self assessment process to check the Council’s compliance
against the new regulations has been prepared.  The areas for
improvement include activity on the following topics:

- data accuracy
- regular financial and performance reporting
- clarification of roles and responsibilities, including a skills and
competency framework and training plans

- representation arrangements for all stakeholders.

3.6 The recent review of the Council’s decision making structures has
resulted in clarification of the roles of each of the committees involved
in the governance of the Pension Fund.  This is set out in Table 1
below.
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Table 1: Governance Arrangements for the Pension Fund

Committee Role

Consultative
Committee

Represent the views of key stakeholders and ensure
those views are expressed to those charged with
decision making.
Overview of all aspects of the management of the
Pension Service, to best value standards.
Overview of fund investments, including the Funding
Strategy Statement, the Investment Principles and
fund performance.
No decision making powers or delegated functions.

Executive
Committee

Develop and recommend to the Council, taking the
views of the consultative committee into account, on
the relevant strategies and policies related to the
Pension Fund, including:

- the Funding Strategy
- the Investment Principles
- service planning and budgeting

Council Retains overall responsibility for approval of
strategies, policies, fund management arrangements
and Annual Report and Accounts.

Audit and
Standards

Consideration of annual report and accounts.
Consideration of reports from external audit.
Overview of the regulatory framework, including
systems of internal control.
Overview of policy performance.

4.0  Implications

Strategic

4.1 Delivery On Corporate Priorities – None.

4.2 Community /Stakeholder Issues – None.

4.3 Policy And/Or Delegated Authority – The Pension Fund Management
Consultative Committee has an overview of the management of the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

4.4 Risk Management –  The overall objective is to ensure  that assets are
safeguarded and efficient and effective systems and procedures are in
place.

4.5 Equalities, Health And Human Rights – None.

4.6 Environmental – None.
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Resources

4.7 Financial –  This work is carried out within staff time already budgeted
for.  The cost of the external audit is estimated at £35,300.

4.8 Legal – None.

4.9 Human Resources – None.

4.10 Assets And Property – None.

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 This Report presents the Draft Unaudited Accounts for the Shetland
Islands Council Pension Fund to 31 March 2011.   The Accounts
comply with all relevant accounting and pension guidance.  The
arrangements have been assessed against the compliance checklist
and a number of improvement actions have been identified to take
forward, mainly from May 2012 following the next local government
elections.  The external audit work is in progress and the final accounts
will be presented alongside their audit report at a later date.

For further information please contact:
Hazel Sutherland, Head of Finance
hazel.sutherland@shetland.gov.uk
Telephone:
Direct Line:  01595 74 4607
Mobile: 07825 088925

31 August 2011

List of Appendices

Draft Unaudited Pension Fund Accounts to 31 March 2011

Background documents:

Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Circular SPN / LG No. 3/2011
Regulation 27 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) (Scotland)
Regulations 2008 (SSI 2008/228) requires administering authorities to prepare and
publish a written statement setting out the terms of their current governance
arrangements. The regulation refers to “guidance given by the Scottish Ministers”.

http://sppa.gov.uk/Documents/Local%20Government/Useful%20Resources/Circulars
/2011/SPN%20LG%203-2011%2007%2004%202011.pdf
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The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Circular SPN / LG No. 5/2010
Regulation 31A of the Local Government Pension Scheme Amendment (Scotland)
Regulations 2010 (SSI 2008/234) requires administering authorities to prepare a pension
fund annual report for the year beginning 1 April 2010 and each subsequent year
thereafter.

http://timeline.lge.gov.uk/Statutory%20Guidance%20and%20circulars/SPPACircular
20105.pdf

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2010/234/pdfs/ssi_20100234_en.pdf

END

      - 39 -      

http://timeline.lge.gov.uk/Statutory%20Guidance%20and%20circulars/SPPACircular
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2010/234/pdfs/ssi_20100234_en.pdf


      - 40 -      



DRAFT
Shetland Islands Council 

Pension Fund 
Annual Report and Unaudited Accounts

2010/11 

      - 41 -      



Page 1 of 35

Contents

Foreword by the Head of Finance 2

Funds and Governance Overview 4

Administration Arrangements 9

Annual Governance Statement 10

Governance Compliance Statement 15

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 20

Pension Fund Account 2010/11 21

Net Assets Statement as at 31 March 2011 23

Note 1 Introduction 24
Note 2 Accounting Policies 24
Note 3 Accounting Treatment 24
Note 4 Administration, operation, Management of the Fund 24
Note 5 Investments 25
Note 6 Contributions Receivable and Benefits Payable 27
Note 7 Purchases and Sales During the Year 27
Note 8 Fund Administration Costs 27
Note 9 Investment Return 27
Note 10 Debtors 27
Note 11 Creditors 28
Note 12 Statement of Investment Principles 28
Note 13 Funding Strategy Statement 28
Note 14 Additional Voluntary Contributions 28
Note 15 Risks 28

Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”) Actuarial Statement for 2010/11  29

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits  31

Independent Auditor's Report  33

Contact Details  35

      - 42 -      



Page 2 of 35

Foreword by the Head of Finance

Welcome to the Annual Report for 2010/11 for the Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund, 
the first reported in this style.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland Regulation 31A of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2010) requires 
administering authorities to prepare a pension fund annual report for the year beginning 1 
April 2010 and each subsequent year thereafter.

At 31 March 2011, the value of the fund stands at £251m, supporting 5,531 members, an 
increase of £24m on the previous year, despite the volatile economic situation and market 
conditions.

The Council is updating all the planning assumptions for the Fund, through the tri-annual 
actuarial valuation by Hymans Robertson LLP.  That work is due to Report in December 
2011, for implementation from 1 April 2012.   Part of this work will address the issue of the 
transfer in valuation of staff previously employed by Shetland Towage, where the 
estimated gap between scheme benefits and the cash transfer in stands at £8m.  The 
Pension Fund will need to ensure that the Council addresses this gap, over a reasonable 
timeframe.

The Scottish Government has supported a project to look at the possibility of shared 
services across the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in Scotland to extract 
efficiencies.  At the time of writing, the recommendations support a set of collaborative 
improvements, across fund management, systems and procurement, which the Shetland 
Islands Council Pension Fund supports.   The Council’s stance throughout the project that 
there should not be a presumption that a centralised approach would yield efficiency 
benefits has been justified in the conclusions of the Report.

This year has seen the introduction of separate reporting and audit for LGPS funds in 
Scotland and the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards.   The new 
guidance requires Pension Funds to consider their governance and management 
arrangements as a service in its own right and to adopt systems which are in line with the 
Myners Principles of good governance. The elements include:

- effective decision-making
- clear objectives
- risk and liabilities
- performance assessment
- responsible ownership
- transparency and reporting 

Part of the quality assurance process, in this first year, is for the Council to complete a 
Governance Compliance Statement against the tests of best practice.  This has been done 
and is included at page 16.  

The areas where the Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund could improve the current 
arrangements include:

- embedding the governance arrangements for the Pension Fund into the Council’s 
new decision making structure
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- improving the engagement of deferred members in the decision making process
- developing a competency based description of the role of committee members, with 

a focus on representing stakeholders
- induction and training for new representatives.

I would take this opportunity to thank all the staff and advisers who contribute to the 
success management of the Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund.

Hazel Sutherland CPFA
Head of Finance
25 August 2011 
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Funds and Governance Overview

Background

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 
(SSI 2008/228) requires administering authorities to prepare and publish a written 
statement setting out the terms of their current governance arrangements.

These functions are carried out in accordance with the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Scotland) Regulations which are statutory instruments made under the 
Superannuation Act 1972. 

How the Funds Work 

Shetland Islands Council administers one Pension Fund, known as the Shetland Islands 
Council Pension Fund.  The Fund is predominantly administered for staff currently or 
previously employed by Shetland Islands Council, who participated in the pension scheme.  
The fund is not open to teaching staff, as a national scheme exists. 

The Pension Fund is also open to staff of the Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board 
and eighteen Admitted Bodies.  Admitted bodies are organisations which meet the criteria 
of being able to offer their staff the opportunity to take up the pension arrangements of the 
Fund, such as being a body, which provides a public service otherwise for the purposes of 
gain and which has sufficient links with the Scheme Employer for the Body and the 
Scheme Employer to be regarded as having a community of interest.

The scheduled bodies are:

- Shetland Islands Council
- Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board

The admitted bodies are: 

- ABA Services
- Advocacy Shetland
- Atlantic Ferries (closed Agreement)
- Community Alcohol & Drugs Services Shetland
- Crossroads Shetland Care Attendant Scheme (January 2011)
- Disability Shetland
- Lerwick Port Authority
- Shetland Amenity Trust
- Shetland Arts Development Agency
- Shetland Charitable Trust
- Shetland Development Trust (until 20 December 2009)
- Shetland Enterprise Company
- Shetland Fisheries Training Centre Trust
- Shetland Islands Tourism
- Shetland Recreational Trust
- Shetland Seafood Quality Control Ltd
- Shetland Voluntary Care Forum
- Shetland Youth Information Service

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) sets pension benefits and regulations for 
members and employers within local government and associated bodies.  The LGPS 
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builds up a fund from contributions made by employers, employees and investment 
returns.   The money is invested to pay pensions, as they become due.

Every three years, a financial health check is carried out to work out the likely future 
pension liability for the fund. This work makes assumptions about likely retirement ages, 
longevity, long-term sickness trends and also what the likely returns from investments will 
be, given the economic climate.  Depending on the likely gap between income and 
expenditure, in the longer term, recommendations will be made as to the amount each 
employer will have to make each year (as a percentage of staff costs). 

The latest valuation, done in 2008, determined that the Pension Fund was 88% funded, 
which meant that the Fund’s objective of holding sufficient assets to meet the estimated 
cost of providing members’ past service benefits was not met at the 2008 Valuation date.  
The employers’ average future service contribution rate as at 31 March 2008 (ignoring the 
past service shortfall) was 16.4% of pensionable pay. The next valuation is due in the 
autumn of 2011, for the recommendations regarding funding to be implemented from 1 
April 2012.

Decision Making

The ultimate responsibility for the governance of Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund 
rests with the full Council.  The Council takes specific decisions regarding the investment 
strategies and major funding policy decisions.

The overview of the financial performance of the Pension Fund rests with the Executive 
Committee.  The Executive Committee is made up of the Convener, the Political Leader, 
the Chairs and Vice Chairs of each of the main committees and an independent Member.  
The councillors involved are:

Councillor A J Cluness, Convener
Councillor J G Simpson, Political Leader
Councillor A T J Cooper, Chair of Development Committee
Councillor E J Fullerton, Chair of Education and Families Committee
Councillor I J Hawkins, Chair of Environment and Transport Committee
Councillor C Smith, Chair of Social Services Committee
Councillor A T Doull, Vice Chair of Development Committee
Councillor C H J Miller, Vice Chair of Education and Families Committee
Councillor A Wishart, Vice Chair of Environment and Transport Committee
Councillor A Duncan, Vice Chair of Social Services Committee
Councillor G Robinson.

The Council has in place a Pension Fund Management Consultative Committee, to ensure 
that stakeholders have a representative role in the arrangements for overseeing the 
management of the Pension Fund.  

Their overriding duty is to ensure the best possible outcomes for the Fund, its participating 
employers and scheme members.  The purpose of the committee is to have stakeholder 
input in overseeing the proper management of the Pension Fund on behalf of contributors 
and beneficiaries, both employer and employee.

The members’ knowledge is supplemented by professional advice from staff of the 
Council, professional advisers and external experts. 

      - 46 -      



Page 6 of 35

The Consultative Committee consists of:

Employers:
3 elected members of the Shetland Islands Council
1 representative of Admitted Bodies employers, who shall not be an SIC Member or 
an employee of an Admitted Body or the Council

Employees:
3 employees (including at least 1 Unison representative and up to 1 Admitted Body 
employee representative)
1 pensioner

The Chairman of the Consultative Committee is appointed by the Consultative Committee 
and shall alternate on an annual basis between Employer and Employee representatives.

The Head of Finance, Treasury Accountant, Expenditure Manager, Human Resources 
Manager, Legal Services Manager, Fund Managers, Independent Investment Consultant 
and the appointed Fund Actuary attend the Consultative Committee meetings as advisers. 

The Consultative Committee meets at least twice a year.  Additional meetings are called 
as appropriate. 

The Audit and Standards Committee have a remit to provide assurance that the financial 
systems that the Council has in place are operating effectively, including having an 
oversight of the final accounts.

Staffing Arrangements

The Council’s Head of Finance is the Officer with responsibility to ensure proper 
administration of the Council’s financial affairs in terms of Section 95 of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973. 

She is responsible for: 

a) the financial accounting of the Fund;

b) the preparation of the Pension Fund Annual Report; and 

c) being the principal adviser on investment management to the Council in its capacity 
as Trustee to the Fund and as the Fund’s Administering Authority. 

The day-to-day management of the investment activities of the Fund is managed by the 
Treasury Section within Finance Service. 

The day-to-day benefits administration for the Fund is managed by the Pensions and 
Payroll Sections within Finance Services. 

Professional Advisers and External Service Providers 

Hymans Robertson LLP has been appointed to act as Actuary to the Fund. The services 
provided include advice on funding and actuarial valuations. 

Hymans Robertson LLP is also the Independent Investment Consultant employed by the 
Council to advise the Consultative Committee and the Council on the investment strategy 
and performance.
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The Fund has appointed investment managers who have responsibility for the selection, 
retention and realisation of individual investments. The Pension Fund’s investments are 
managed by Black Rock Investment Management (UK) Limited and Schroder Property 
Investment Management Limited.

Northern Trust Company is the global custodian for the Fund and is responsible for the 
safekeeping of the assets including transaction processing and making tax claims. 

WM Company has been appointed as the independent performance services company for
the Fund. They have responsibility for measuring and reporting on the performance of 
individual portfolios and the overall Fund. 

Prudential and Equitable Life (Equitable Life is now closed to new members) are appointed 
as the Fund's In-House Additional Voluntary Contributions providers.

Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)

The Regulations on the management of the Pension Fund requires the administering 
authority to prepare, maintain and publish a written Funding Strategy Statement (the FSS).  
The FSS is normally reviewed every time the triennial actuarial valuation is undertaken.  
The next full review is due to be completed by 31 March 2012 and the current statement is 
available for viewing at Finance Services.

The purpose of the FSS is to:

- establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how 
employers pension liabilities are best met going forward; 

- support the regulatory requirement to maintain as nearly constant employer 
contribution rates as possible; and

- take a prudent longer term view of funding those liabilities,

The Statement of Investment Principles and Monitoring Arrangements

The investment strategy is based on taking a long-term investment horizon, as the 
Pension Fund is currently cash positive (employee and employer contributions are greater 
than benefits paid out).  This enables the Pension Fund to invest a large percentage into 
equities (currently 80%) with 10% in Bonds and 10% in Property.  The equities and bonds 
are passive investments, which is currently a holding position due to the uncertainty over 
the Scottish Government's pathfinder project. Risk is spread through asset type, mix of 
investment products, use of different fund managers and by taking a long-term investment 
view.

The investment strategy which has been adopted is to invest in a portfolio that aims for a 
split along the following guidelines: U.K. Equities 40%; Overseas Equities 40%; Bonds 
10% and Property 10%.

The fund managers are:

- Black Rock Investment Management (UK) Limited – responsible for equities and 
bond investments, taking a passive approach; and

- Schroder Property Investment Management Limited – responsible for property 
investments, and taking an active approach.

The fund managers give an annual presentation to the Council and the Pension Fund 
Management Consultative Committee in May each year.  This is a performance review 
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meeting covering the previous financial year but allows the Council and Pension 
Committee to meet the fund managers, hear their presentations and ask them questions.

The Pension Fund Management Consultative Committee also receives a half yearly 
update on the Pension Fund investments. In future, that report will also be presented to 
the Executive Committee of the Council.

Visits are made every November to each fund manager to review the six monthly 
investment position. The Council also receive audited quarterly performance books from 
the fund managers, which are used to produce a quarterly performance review report.  The 
fund managers also provide unaudited weekly fund values, which are used to inform 
Council officers, Councillors and the wider press of the general investment position.   

Hymans Robertson LLP (investment consultants) continually monitor fund managers and 
report on key changes, which might impact the investment strategy, such as changes in 
key personnel or investment processes.  Hymans Robertson LLP is consulted when 
reviewing fund managers, and is actively involved with investment strategy reviews. 

WM Company are an external performance measurement company that the Pension Fund 
uses to analyse, check and report independently on fund managers performance and the 
Pension Fund's overall performance.  They produce quarterly performance reviews and 
also attend the annual meeting in May each year where they report the fund managers’ 
performance for the previous year to the Councillors and the Pension Fund Management 
Consultative Committee.

In 2010/11, the investment returns were as follows:

Black Rock – return 6.9% (benchmark return 7%)               
Schroders – return 5.5% (benchmark return 8.8%)

The Statement of Investment Principles is available for viewing at Finance Services.
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Administrative Arrangements 

Communication

As well as reporting Scheme changes through the Pension Fund Management 
Consultative committee and the full Council, members of the scheme (active, deferred and 
pensioners) are kept up-to-date with changes through an annual Pensions Newsletter.  
The mail-shot also incorporates any other relevant information, for example, revised 
Pension Scheme booklets, Pension Fund Accounts, etc.  Pension seminars, in conjunction 
with Prudential (the Council’s in-house AVC provider) take place at least once a year. The 
Council’s Corporate Induction training sessions ensure that new employees are aware of 
the benefits of the LGPS. The Council’s later life training sessions are aimed at 
communicating the benefits of the scheme to members whose retirement is imminent.

Training

Induction training and ongoing training opportunities are available for members of the 
consultative and main committees.  This will be strengthened in future through a formal 
skills and competency framework, supported by a training needs assessment and personal 
and professional development plans.

Risk Management 

The Council has a risk management policy which has been adopted by Finance Services.  
This policy includes the maintenance and regular review of a risk register.  The strategic 
and operational risks associated with the Pension Fund are included in the Finance 
Service Risk Register.  The risks of the Pension Fund will be extracted and reported 
separately in future.

Risk awareness is embedded into the investment performance management process. 

Access to Information 

The Committee papers and minutes are available via the Council committee management 
system website http://www.shetland.gov.uk/coins/.

This Annual Report and Accounts is available via the Council’s website
http://www.shetland.gov.uk/council/. A hard copy of the full version of this report is 
provided to the scheduled and active admitted bodies of the scheme and a summary of the 
review is provided to all Fund members. 
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Annual Governance Statement

Introduction 

This Statement documents the governance arrangements for the pension scheme 
administered by Shetland Islands Council. [This version of the Governance Statement was 
approved by the Pension Fund Consultative Committee of Shetland Islands Council on 23 
September 2011, subject to approval.] 

Administering Authority 

Shetland Islands Council (the Council) is the Administering Authority for the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) set up for the Shetland Isles geographic area. 

Regulatory Framework 

The Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA) is responsible for regulating the LGPS in 
Scotland and the Council administers the pension scheme in accordance with these 
regulations.

The LGPS scheme, administered by Shetland Islands Council, is open to all employees of 
scheduled bodies except for those whose employment entitles them to belong to another 
statutory pension scheme (e.g. teachers). Employees of admitted bodies can join the 
scheme subject to those bodies meeting the statutory requirements and on such terms 
and conditions as the Council (as Administering Authority) may require. A list of scheduled 
and admitted bodies is shown at page 5. 

The Council manages the Fund in terms of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Scotland) Regulations 2008.   The Council discharges this duty partially directly and 
partially through the Executive Committee.  For consultation purposes, the Council has in 
place a Pension Fund Management Consultative Committee comprising three councillors, 
one representative of the Admitted Bodies’ employers, three employee representatives 
(one representing the Admitted Bodies’ employees) and a retired beneficiary. The 
Committee is advised by relevant officers of the Council as appropriate and meets 
approximately twice a year.

The financial transactions are conducted in compliance with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations. 

The Funds are invested in compliance with the Council’s Statement of Investment 
Principles. 

Scope of Responsibility

The Council is responsible for ensuring that::

- the business is conducted in accordance with the law and appropriate standards;   
- the funds are safeguarded and properly accounted for; and                                                                           

- the funds are used economically, efficiently and effectively. 

In discharging the responsibilities, council members and staff are responsible for 
implementing effective arrangements for governing the affairs of the Funds.  The 
management of the Pension Fund should be seen to be a service in its own right, 
governed by a suite of appropriate management arrangements, such as:
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- appropriate strategic investment policies (such as the FSS and Statement of 
Investment Principles);

- service planning arrangements;
- staff time allocations, appropriate to the scale of the fund;
- performance management arrangements, especially for fund investments and 

customer responsiveness;
- good systems of internal control to safeguard assets and ensure best value;
- engagement with stakeholders and clear policy on representative roles and 

responsibilities;
- Governance Statement;
- Risk Register and Business Continuity Plans;
- support for Cash and Treasury Management;
- Training Plan; and
- independent and objective scrutiny.

To this end, the funds are managed within the overall governance arrangements of 
Shetland Islands Council.  The Council has recently refreshed its decision-making 
arrangements and the governance of the Pension Fund is included within those 
arrangements.  Following a period of operation, the Council intends to refresh the Code of 
Corporate Governance, to ensure compliance with best practice.

Governance Framework

The governance framework consists of the systems, processes, cultures and values by 
which the Funds are directed and controlled. It describes the way in which staff and 
representatives inform all the stakeholders and ask for their views on any key issues. It is 
important to monitor the achievements of the fund, particularly with regard to the long-term 
investment strategy.  From a service point of view, as with other service areas, there is a 
need to ensure that the service is delivered efficiently and effectively and in line with all the 
characteristics of a best value service.

Critical to the success of a well managed Pension Fund is appropriate internal control 
arrangements.   The systems of internal financial control are intended to ensure that::

- assets are safeguarded;
- transactions are authorised and properly recorded; and
- material errors or irregularities are either prevented or detected within a reasonable 

timescale. 

The system is based on a framework of skilled staff who are aware of their responsibilities, 
good management information, financial regulations and effective systems and 
procedures.  

Within Shetland Islands Council, there is a need to focus on the controls required to 
ensure clear separation of duties, due to the small number of staff directly employed to 
work on the Pension Fund.  The Pension Fund relies on the same systems of internal 
control as that which are in place for Shetland Islands Council (which have been assessed 
as fit for purpose). 
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The effective arrangements include:

- an appropriate level of knowledge for committee members to ensure that they have 
adequate under-pinning knowledge to oversee the governance of the Pension Fund 
business;

- clear objectives, good decision making at committee level, clear delegations to 
committee and staff, with appropriate, independent scrutiny of decision making and 
performance;

- a clear set of objectives for the Fund, as described in the FSS and Investment 
Principles;

- good performance monitoring arrangements, with committee members being able 
to directly question those responsible for all aspects of the business on a regular 
basis;

- a clear a statement of risk, combined with effective risk management arrangements;
- an annual review of compliance against regulation, guidance and best practice 

arrangements;
- The Monitoring Officer ensuring compliance with regulation and guidance;
- clear monitoring arrangements;
- compliance with LPGS Investment Regulations;
- compliance with the CiPFA / Myners investment principles;
- appropriate custodian arrangements for investments;
- codes of Conduct to support good relationships between committee members and 

staff who support the work of the Pension Fund;
- a demonstrable best value service, including good use of benchmarking data on the 

cost and quality of service provided; and
- effective internal control arrangements.

The governance framework cannot eliminate all risks of failure to meet policy objectives.  
An effective framework can, however, provide a reasonable (but not absolute) assurance 
of effectiveness.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has a responsibility for ensuring the continuing effectiveness of its 
governance framework and systems of internal control. The review of effectiveness is 
informed by:

- direct feedback from stakeholders;
- effective performance reporting arrangements and management information;
- financial and budget monitoring reports;
- performance indicators and benchmarking data, on cost and quality of service;
- specific internal audit reviews;
- self assessment exercises against performance standards;
- the annual report and accounts; and
- external audit observations, comments and recommendations for improvement.

The Council provides internal audit arrangements to the Fund both as a tool of 
management and with direct reporting to the Council’s Audit and Standards Committee. 
The Internal Audit service operates in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit and complies with the ISO 9001 / 2008 quality standard.  The service works 
to an Annual Plan, based on the approved Audit Strategy and an annual assessment of 
the known and potential risks.   

      - 53 -      



Page 13 of 35

The Internal Audit service currently reports directly to the Council’s Section 95 officer, the 
Head of Finance with direct access, as required, to the Chief Executive. In the new 
management arrangements, the Service Manager Internal Audit will report directly to the 
Chief Executive.    

An audit of Treasury was done in 2010/11 and Payroll and Pensions in 2009/10. No key 
issues relating to the pension fund were identified from the work undertaken by Internal 
Audit. 

The annual financial statement of the Council, including the Fund, is subject to external 
audit. The auditors are appointed by Audit Scotland, as part of the process to ensure that 
public funds are properly safeguarded and accounted for. 

Each year, the external auditors undertake an assessment of the internal controls in 
operation in the Council, to determine whether they can place reliance on them in the 
preparation of the final accounts.  Audit Scotland’s overall assessment is that, “the pension 
fund has adequate systems of internal control”.

Audit Scotland has highlighted the following four areas of weakness. The first three of 
which the Head of Finance has assessed as requiring action.

- AXISe – Member Data 

There is a risk that members’ information held on AXISe is inaccurate or out of date.  
This could potentially impact on members’ benefit calculations.

- Statement of Investment Principles
There is a risk that the council’s statement of investment principles does not comply 
with the necessary legislation.

- Governance Arrangements
There is a risk that the council has not given due consideration to the pension fund’s 
required governance arrangements going forward.

- Pension Fund Investments 

There is a risk that fund managers are not complying with legislation.

An Action Plan has been developed to ensure that these weaknesses are addressed over 
the next six months.

It is the Head of Finance’s view that reasonable assurance can be placed upon the 
effectiveness of governance arrangements, including internal controls, for the business 
transacted to 31 March 2011.  

There is a need for improvements to be carried out in the following areas of activity:

- data accuracy;
- regular financial and performance reporting arrangements through the new decision 

making structures;
- competency framework, training needs assessment and systematic induction and 

ongoing training for new committee members;
- maintaining the long term investment objectives in times of economic uncertainty;
- responding to improvement actions around shared services and joint procurement, 

at a national level; and
- consider further the representation arrangements for the consultative committee.
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Certification

It is our opinion that the governance and internal control environment provides reasonable 
and objective assurance that any significant risks impacting on the achievement of the 
principal objectives of the Pension Fund will be identified and actions taken to avoid or 
mitigate their impact.

Joseph G Simpson Alistair Buchan
Political Leader Chief Executive

Date Date
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Governance Compliance Statement

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) regulations require LGPS administering 
authorities to measure their governance arrangements against the standards set out in the 
guidance.  Where compliance does not meet the published standard, there is a 
requirement for administering authorities to set out any reasons for non-compliance in their 
governance compliance statement. The regulations require that the first such statement 
must be published by 31 March 2011, but SPPA have agreed to change that date to 30 
September 2011.

The Governance Compliance Statement set out below describes the extent to which the 
governance arrangements comply with best practice and any actions required to 
implement improvements.

Principle Full 
Compliance

Comments and Action Plan

Structure The management of 
the administration of 
benefits and strategic 
management of fund 
assets clearly rests 
with the main 
committee 
established by the 
appointing council.

Yes The Council retains 
responsibility for strategic policy 
decision, including the 
Investment Strategy.

The Executive Committee will 
oversee the financial and 
service performance of the 
Pension Fund and advise the 
Council on key policy matters.

The consultative committee will 
focus on stakeholder 
representation, as well as 
overseeing the pension service 
as a whole on behalf of all 
current and future beneficiaries.

That representatives 
of participating LGPS 
employers, admitted 
bodies and scheme 
members (including 
pensioner and 
deferred members) 
are members of 
either the main or 
secondary committee 
established to 
underpin the work of 
the main committee. 

Yes Fund Members and employers 
are represented on the 
consultative committee.

Area for Improvement: 
consider the representation 
arrangements for deferred 
members (Timescale: from May 
2012)

That where a 
secondary committee 
or panel has been 
established, the 
structure ensures 

Yes 3 Members of the Consultative 
Committee are also Members of 
the Executive Committee.

The Council Members of the 
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effective 
communication 
across both levels.

Consultative Committee sit at 
the Full Council and participate 
in strategic policy matters on 
behalf of the Pension Fund.

The consultative committee 
members are invited to attend 
Council meetings, for fund 
management presentations. 

That where a 
secondary committee 
or panel has been 
established, at least 
one seat on the main 
committee is 
allocated for a 
member from the 
secondary committee 
or panel.

Yes 3 Members of the Consultative 
Committee are also Members of 
the Executive Committee.

     Committee 
Membership 
and 
Representation

That    All key 
stakeholders are 
afforded the 
opportunity to be 
represented. 
Within the main or 
secondary 
committee 
structure. These 
include:

i) employing 
authorities 
(including non-
scheme 
employers, e.g., 
admitted bodies);

ii) scheme members 
(including deferred 
and pensioner 
scheme 
members), 

iii) where appropriate, 
independent 
professional 
observers; and

iv) expert advisors            
(on an ad-hoc 
basis).

Yes All key stakeholder groups are 
represented on the consultative 
committee.

Area for Improvement: 
consider the representation 
arrangements for deferred 
members (Timescale: from May 
2012)

Where lay members Yes Induction and ongoing training 
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sit on a main or 
secondary 
committee, they are 
treated equally in 
terms of access to 
papers and meetings, 
training and are given 
full opportunity to 
contribute to the 
decision making 
process, with or 
without voting rights.

available to all committee 
members.

Areas for Improvement:  
Formalise skills and competency 
framework for panel/committee 
members, undertake training 
needs assessment and 
formalise training arrangements 
including, where necessary, 
mandatory training to fulfil the 
role. (Timescale: from May 
2012)

Selection and 
role of lay 
members

That committee or 
panel members are 
made fully aware of 
the status, role and 
function they are 
required to perform 
on either a main or 
secondary 
committee. 

Yes The declaration of interests is 
now a standard item on all 
Shetland Islands Council 
agenda papers.

That at the start of 
any meeting, 
committee members 
are invited to declare 
any financial or 
pecuniary interest 
related to specific 
matters on the 
agenda.

Yes The members of the 
consultative committee have 
parity of esteem in voting / 
decision making within the remit 
of the terms of reference.

Voting The policy of 
individual 
administering 
authorities on voting 
rights is clear and 
transparent, including 
the justification for not 
extending voting 
rights to each body or 
group represented on 
main LGPS 
committees.

Yes There are necessarily separate 
training policies in place for 
employer representatives and 
staff representatives.

    Training/Facility 
time/Expenses

That in relation to the 
way in which 
statutory and related 
decisions are taken 
by the administering 
authority, there is a 
clear policy on 

Yes The policies for employer 
representatives and staff 
representatives are necessarily 
different and cannot be equally 
applied.
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training, facility time 
and reimbursement of 
expenses in respect 
of members involved 
in the decision-
making process.

That where such a 
policy exists, it 
applies equally to all 
members of 
committees, sub-
committees, advisory 
panels or any other 
form of secondary 
forum.

No The arrangements are present 
are ad-hoc.  An area for 
improvement will be to develop 
much more systematic 
arrangements for training needs 
assessment, through to 
formalised training plans.

Area for Improvement:

Develop Annual Training Plans 
to identify personal and 
professional training needs, 
including mandatory training to 
fulfil role (Timescale: from May 
2012)

That the 
administering 
authority considers 
the adoption of 
annual training plans 
for committee 
members and 
maintains a log of all 
such training 
undertaken.

No The Executive Committee meets 
at least six times per annum.

Meetings 
(frequency/quo
rum)

That an administering 
authority’s main 
committee or 
committees meet at 
least quarterly. 

Yes The consultative committee is 
scheduled to meet each year in 
May and September.

That an administering 
authority’s secondary 
committee or panel 
meet at least twice a 
year and is 
synchronised with the 
dates when the main 
committee sits. 

Yes

That an administering 
authority who does 
not include lay 
members in their 
formal governance 

Not 
applicable

All papers are circulated to all 
members of each committee.

Reports to the Executive 
Committee and Full Council are 
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arrangements, must 
provide a forum 
outside of those 
arrangements by 
which the interests of 
key stakeholders can 
be represented. 

available through the Council’s 
agenda management system.

Access That subject to any 
rules in the councils‘ 
constitution, all 
members of main and 
secondary 
committees or panels 
have equal access to 
committee papers, 
documents and 
advice that falls to be 
considered at 
meetings of the main 
committee.  

Yes The Council has recently 
revised its decision-making 
structures to clarify the roles and 
responsibilities and level of 
delegation to each decision-
making forum.

Scope That administering 
authorities have 
taken steps to bring 
wider scheme issues 
within the scope of 
their governance 
arrangements.

Yes The Annual Newsletter is 
available to all Members.

The Annual Report and 
Accounts will be made available 
on-line.

Publicity That administering 
authorities have 
published details of 
their governance 
arrangements in such 
a way that 
stakeholders with an 
interest in the way in 
which the scheme is 
governed, can 
express an interest in 
wanting to be part of 
those arrangements. 

Yes
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Administering Authority’s Responsibility

The Authority is required to:

 make arrangements for the proper administration of its Pension Fund and to 
secure that the proper officer has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs; in this Authority the proper officer is the Head of Finance;

 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and to safeguard its assets;

 approve the Financial Statements within two months of receipt of the audit 
certificate.

The Head of Finances’ Responsibilities

The Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Pension Fund Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 

It is the responsibility of the Head of Finance to sign, date and submit the un-audited 
statement of accounts to the authority and Controller of Audit by 30 June.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Head of Finance has:

   selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
   made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
   complied with the local authority Code.

The Head of Finance has also: 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities.


The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
authority at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 
2011.

……………………………………………………..

HAZEL SUTHERLAND CPFA.

Head of Finance
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Pension Fund Account 2010/11

2009/10 Notes 2010/11 2010/11
£000 £000 £000

Contributions
From Employers

(9,687) Normal 6 (10,782)
0 Augmentation (740)

(9,687) (11,522)
From Members

(3,984) Normal 6 (4,132)

Transfers in

(1,776) Group transfers in from other schemes 0
(1,330) Individual transfers in from other schemes (1,901)
(3,106) (1,901)

Other income
(26) Other income (26)

Benefits Payable
5,209 Pensions 6 5,371

946 Commutation of pension and lump sum retirement benefits 6 2,766
43 Lump sum death benefits 6 195

6,198 8,332
Payments to and on account of leavers

25 Refunds of contributions 31
18 State Scheme Premiums 40

700 Individual transfer out to other schemes 175
743 246

Administrative expenses
196 Administrative expenses 8 182

Other Payments
0 Audit Fees 35
6 Tax on Refunds 8
6 43

NET (ADDITIONS)/WITHDRAWALS FROM
(9,660) DEALINGS WITH MEMBERS (8,778)

Dealings with members, employers and others directly 
involved in the scheme
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Pension Fund Account 2010/11

2009/10 Notes 2010/11 2010/11
£000 £000 £000

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS

Investment income
(8) Quoted UK - dividends from equities 0

(218) Unquoted UK - income from pooled investment vehicles (406)
(88) Unquoted overseas - income pooled investment vehicles (123)

(132) Interest on cash deposits (105)
(15) Other (36)

(461) (670)

(59,511) Change in market value of investments (14,921)
305 Investment management expenses 8 427

(59,667) Net returns on investments (15,164)

(69,327) Net (increase)/decrease in the fund during the year (23,941)
(158,100) Add : Opening net assets of the scheme (227,427)

(227,427) Closing net assets of the scheme (251,368)
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Net Assets Statement as at 31 March 2011

These financial statements summarise the transactions and net assets of the Fund and do 
not take account of liabilities to pay pension and other benefits in the future.

……………………………………………………

Hazel Sutherland CPFA

HEAD OF FINANCE

2009/10 Notes 2010/11 2010/11
£000 £000 £000

INVESTMENT ASSETS

(193,666) Pooled Investment Vehicles (Unit Trusts) (221,745)
(14,976) Pooled Investment Vehicles (Property Unit Trusts) (18,215)
(7,383) Cash Deposits (9,361)
(2,143) Other investment 0 

(218,168) 5 (249,321)
Other investment balances

(6)               Dividends receivable 0 
(148)               Tax recoverable (24)

(24)
(218,322) Total investment assets (249,345)

Net current assets and liabilities
(3,051) Bank and cash - external (1,273)
(5,595) Bank and cash - internal (669)
(1,167) Debtors 10 (2,091)

708 Creditors 11 2,010 

(9,105) Net current assets (2,023)

(227,427) Net Assets (251,368)
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Notes to the Accounts
1. Introduction

The Pension Fund is a pool into which employees’ and employers’ contributions and 
income from investments are paid in and from which pensions and other lump sum 
benefits are paid out in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Scotland) Regulations.

The Council is Trustee for a Pension Fund covering 3084 active members (2009/10 3,067) 
including 326 (2009/10 330) who are members of other admitted bodies and  10 (2009/10 
11) who are members of a scheduled body. 890 (2009/10 832) pensioners, 162 (2009/10 
159) dependants and 1221 (2009/10 1,177) deferred members.  These figures do not 
include teachers, who are covered by the Scottish Public Pension Agency.

The Council manages the Fund in terms of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Scotland) Regulations 2008.

2. Accounting Policies

The transactions of the Fund are accounted for on an accruals basis, thereby taking into 
account all known and determinable amounts due by and due to the Fund in 2011.

The custodian, the Northern Trust Company, has valued all investments at fair value. In 
accordance with the Code of Practice, valuations at 31 March 2011 are at bid market 
values. Items denominated in foreign currency have been translated into sterling at the 
closing exchange rate as at 31 March 2011.

The Financial Statements summarise the transactions of the fund during the year and the 
net assets at the year-end.

It is a requirement of IAS 26 to disclose the ‘actuarial present value of promised retirement 
benefits’ this can has been represented at page 36 in the form of a report from Hymans 
Robertson LLP.

3. Accounting Treatment

The accounts have been prepared with regard to statute and the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

4. Administration, Operation, Management of the Fund

The Pension Fund is funded by contributions from employees and employers, as well as 
investment income, and pays pensions and lump sum benefits to members. From 1 April 
2009 tiered employee contribution rates have been introduced in respect of all scheme 
members. The tiers ranging from 5.5% to 12% depending on the member’s rate of 
pensionable pay. Shetland Islands Council as an employer contributed, during 2010/11, an 
additional 16.6% of pensionable pay with admitted bodies paying between 15.7% and 
21.9% of pensionable pay. 

The last actuarial valuation of the Fund carried out as at 31 March 2008 indicated a 
funding level of 88%.  As a result, the rate of employer’s contribution for Shetland Islands 
Council is 15.5%, 16.6% and 17.7% for years 2009/10, 2010/11 and 2011/12 and the rate 
of employer’s contribution for admitted bodies will vary according to certain circumstances 
peculiar to the individual employers (in line with the Funding Strategy Statement.) The 
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method of calculating the employer's rate of contribution is known as the "Projected Unit" 
method.

This method determines the future contribution rate required by considering the benefits 
accruing over the following three years. The employer's contribution rate is set to ensure 
that the assets of the Fund are sufficient to cover the expected benefits. In order to 
determine the contribution rate, a number of assumptions are made based on the historical 
performance of the Fund and on forecasts for the future.

These assumptions were:

Investment returns 4.5% p.a.
Salary increases 5.1% p.a.
Pension increases 3.6% p.a.
Price Inflation 3.6% p.a.

Actuarial valuations and fund management advice are provided by Hymans Robertson 
LLP.    At the date of the last actuarial valuation (31 March 2008) the market value of the 
Scheme’s assets was £199.8m.

5. Investments

The Pension Fund’s investments are managed by Black Rock Investment Management 
(UK) Limited and Schroder Property Investment Management Limited. The Shetland 
Islands Council Pension Fund terminated Record Currency Management’s mandate during 
2010/11 due to under performance. In addition to making presentations to the 
Management Committee at least annually they provide detailed quarterly reports and 
weekly valuations of all assets to the Finance Service, which are used to monitor Fund 
activity and performance on an ongoing basis. 

The investment strategy which has been adopted is to invest in a portfolio that aims for a 
split along the following guidelines: U.K. Equities 40%; Overseas Equities 40%; Bonds 
10% and Property 10%. The Fund also uses the services of a custodian, The Northern 
Trust Company.

a) The table below gives details of investments held:

Market Value at 31 
March 2010

Market Value at 
31 March 2011

£000 £000
Pooled Investment Vehicles (Unit Trusts)

(103,079) Unquoted - UK (121,558)
(90,587) Unquoted - Overseas (100,187)

Pooled Investment Vehicles (PropertyUnit Trusts)
(10,839) Unquoted - UK (14,195)
(4,137) Unquoted - Overseas (4,020)

Cash Deposits
(7,383)  UK (9,361)

Other Investments 
(2,143) UK 0

(218,168) (249,321)
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b) The Investments held can also be analysed by Investment Managers as shown below:

Black Rock Schroders Record Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 2010 203,672 15,558 2,143 221,373
Net Gain/(Loss) from short-term and long-
term investments 1,324 197 (700) 821
Payment for investing activities (170) (197) (28) (395)
Withdrawals 0 0 (1,627) (1,627)
Other receipts from investing activities 65 582 0 647
Injections 12,013 3,685 2 15,700
Unrealised Gain/(Loss) change 13,689 200 210 14,099
Closing balance at 31 March 2011 230,593 20,025 0 250,618

Totals above include investment assets and external cash only.

c) The following investments exceed 5% of the net assets available for investment:

Share/ Par 
Value Fair Value %
£000 £000

Black Rock AM (IE) IDX Selection Euro EX UK AC 2,423 32,973 13.2
Black Rock AM (IE) Index Selection Japan IDX 3,560 20,313 8.1
Black Rock AM (IE) BGI North America IDXNAV 2,640 23,576 9.4
Black Rock AM (IE) BGI Pacific Rim Index Acc 929 23,324 9.3
Aquila Life UK Equity Index Fund Ser1 15,842 98,332 39.2

6. Contributions Receivable and Benefits Payable

The total contributions receivable and benefits payable during the year were as follows:

2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11
Contributions Receivable:
      employers (8,284) (9,139) (63) (70) (1,340) (1,571)
      members (3,447) (3,594) (20) (23) (517) (515)
Benefits payable:
      pensions 4,802 4,847 52 52 355 472
      lump sums 891 2,740 0 0 55 26
      lump sum death benefits 7 84 0 0 36 111

Administering Authority 
£000

Scheduled Body     
£000

Admitted Bodies 
£000
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7. Purchases and Sales During the Year

The value of purchases and sales in 2010/11 £24.951m and £8.672m as compared to 
09/10 were £22.406m and £11.990m respectively.

2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed interest securities - Govt
      Quoted - UK 0 0 0 0
Unit Trusts
      Unquoted - UK 2,392 3,340 0 0
      Unquoted - Other 0 900 0 0
Equities
      Quoted - UK 0 0 0 0
      Quoted - Other 0 0 10 0
      Quoted Pref Shares - Other 0 0 0 0
Unit Trusts
      Unquoted - UK 3,895 8,343 5,137 3,050
      Unquoted - Other 7,082 6,535 3,738 2,983
      Unquoted - Property UK 4,764 3,855 751 1,012
      Unquoted - Property Other 386 0 0 0
      Currency - UK 2,354 0 2,354 1,627
Cash
      Deposits 1,533 1,978 0 0
TOTAL 22,406 24,951 11,990 8,672

Purchases Sales
(incl Gains and Losses)

The Funds are all invested within pooled funds therefore there are no direct trading costs.

8. Fund Administration Costs

Expenses of the Fund in 2010/11 include an administration charge from the Council of 
£0.155m (2009/10 £0.174m). This represents the time spent by the staff of the Council 
(principally in Finance) in administering the Fund.

The management fee for Black Rock was £0.152m (2009/10 £0.133m).

The fees for Record Currency Management Limited are £0.026m (2009/10 £0.049) and for 
Schroders are £0.031m (2009/10 £0.030m). Schroders is a fund of funds and additional 
charges levied by Unit Trust managers amounted to £0.151m (2009/10 £0.038m).

There are also management fees to be paid to The Northern Trust Company as the Fund’s 
custodian.  The total paid to them in 2010/11 amounted to £0.027m (2009/10 £0.017m).  
This is calculated by a set minimum charge.

9. Investment Return

Black Rock achieved a return for 2009/10 of +6.9% versus the benchmark return of +7%. 
Schroders achieved a return of  +5.5% versus the benchmark of  +8.8%.

10. Debtors

The figure for debtors includes amounts due by Shetland Islands Council of £0.304m for 
employee contributions (2009/10 £0.281m) and £0.776m for employer contributions 
(2009/10 £0.675m).
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11. Creditors

The figure for creditors includes an amount due to Shetland Islands Council of £0.155m for 
administration recharge costs (2009/10 £0.097m).

12. Statement of Investment Principles

The Council has prepared and approved a Statement of Investment Principles in relation 
to investments made by its fund managers for the Pension Fund. The Statement is made 
available to Pension Fund members in a Pension Fund report sent to them.

13. Funding Strategy Statement

The Council has approved a Funding Strategy Statement, which is a summary of the 
Pension Fund’s approach to funding liabilities.

14. Additional Voluntary Contributions

Prudential and Equitable Life manage the Additional Voluntary Contributions investments. 
The market value of these investments at 31 March 2011 was £4.624m (2009/10 
£4.059m) and total purchases for 2010/11 were £0.752m (2009/10 £0.694m). The 
amounts are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts in accordance with regulation 5 
(2) (c) of the Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) regulations 1998 
(SI 1998 No. 1831).

15. Risks 

There is a financial risk to the Fund in respect of a liability to meet any funding shortfall 
arising from the transfer of pension benefits accruing until February 2006 to staff of 
Shetland Towage.  The assets of Shetland Towage’s Pension Scheme that were intended 
to fund these benefits were also transferred to the Fund. 

The latest interim actuarial valuation provided by Hymans Robertson LLP to 31 March 
2011 indicated a funding shortfall of £8.091m. The Council has agreed to fully fund this 
shortfall and will make specific and appropriate provision to meet its obligation in this 
regard after receiving the Fund Interim Valuation in the Autumn 2011. This provision will 
take full account of the scale and likely timing of the liability and will ensure relevant 
service accountability for this funding.
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Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”) Actuarial 
Statement for 2010/11
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Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Statement of Accounts is subject to audit in accordance with the requirements of Part 
VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The Auditor appointed for this purpose by the Accounts Commission for Scotland is:

Audit Scotland
Osborne House
1/5 Osborne Terrace
EDINBURGH

[insert audit report]
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Contact Details

For more information relating to this Report, please contact:

Finance Services
Shetland Islands Council
Montfield Offices
26 Burgh Road
Lerwick
ZE1 OTY

Telephone:  01595 744681
Email: finance@sic.shetland.gov.uk  
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Shetland Islands Council

1.0 Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the unsigned financial
statements for approval and to receive Audit Scotland’s independent
report on the financial statements, known as the ISA 260 report.

2.0 Decision Required

2.1 The Audit and Standards Committee is asked to RECOMMEND to the
Council:

(a) to note the ISA 260 report and agree the recommended actions;
and

(b) to approve of the 2010/11 Final Accounts.

3.0 Detail

3.1 In January 2011, Audit Scotland issued the Annual Audit Plan for
2010/11.  That Plan set out the planned audit activity in the year,
including: the financial statements; shared risk assessments; the
annual report; governance and performance arrangements; grant
claims; and a review of the national fraud initiative.   The key dates for
the Council are:

Latest Submission of unaudited
financial statements

By 30 June 2011

Latest Submission of audited
financial statements

By 30 September 2011

Annual Report and Certified
Accounts presented to Council

December 2011

Special Audit and Standards
Special Shetland Islands Council

27 September 2011
27 September 2011

Final Accounts 2010/11

F-039-F

Report Presented by Head of Finance Finance Services

Agenda Item

4
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3.2 The Council did submit unaudited financial statements by the deadline
of 30 June 2011.  Unfortunately, the submission was incomplete and
not compliant with the relevant Codes of Practice in some significant
areas.  This required a resubmission of a revised draft to Audit
Scotland in July 2011.   This has led to delays in the audit programme
and, in some cases, double audit work to reach a satisfactory sign off
position.

3.3 The accounts remain qualified in respect of the Council’s non-
compliance regarding not grouping the accounts with those of Shetland
Charitable Trust.  The Council continues to work towards reaching a
resolution to this matter with Shetland Charitable Trust in time for
preparation of the 2012/13 accounts.

3.4 The 2010/11 Audit Plan contained a range of high level risks that could
have affected the financial statements of the Council, including:

-  setting priorities and address spending needs
-  ensuring adequate reporting of financial matters
-  equal pay claims
-  preparedness for International Financial Reporting Standards
-  resourcing the financial accounting function
-  compliance with the relevant codes, particularly on fixed assets and
   investments
-  addressing the Pension Fund deficit for the Shetland Towage
   transfer
-  separating the Pension Fund accounts and governance
   arrangements
-  compliance with reporting Whole of Government Accounts within the
   required timescales
-  audit and standards committee arrangements
-  difficulties with the capital accounting system

3.5 A significant number of the issues raised for the 2010/11 audit plan
have been addressed.   Some more work in required to support the
Council with setting priorities for resource allocation decisions, in line
with the recently approved Planning and Performance Management
Framework policy.   The staffing structure and skills and competency
framework for the financial accounting function is being developed but
the final arrangements will be determined once the new Director of
Corporate Services and Executive Manager – Finance are in post.

3.6 The Audit Manager, Carol Hislop, will present an independent and
objective view of the Council’s progress in the ISA 260 report, which is
attached as Appendix 1.

3.7 The audited financial statements are included at Appendix 2.

      - 78 -      



4.0  Implications

Strategic

4.1 Delivery On Corporate Priorities – This Report forms part of the annual
performance reporting arrangements on financial matters in support of
the Financial Strategy, Reserves Policy and Budget Strategy.

4.2 Community /Stakeholder Issues – None.

4.3 Policy And/Or Delegated Authority – The Audit and Standards
Committee remit includes consideration of all reports from the external
auditors, including the External Auditor’s ISA 260 report and to review
the Council’s financial performance as contained in the Annual Report.
Receiving the unaudited and audited accounts of the Council and
related certificates and reports is a matter reserved by the Council.

4.4 Risk Management –  The Final Accounts and the ISA 260 report
includes the identification of key financial risks and internal control
arrangements in place to manage those risks, together with any
improvement actions required.

4.5 Equalities, Health And Human Rights – None.

4.6 Environmental – None.

Resources

4.7 Financial –  None.

4.8 Legal – None.

4.9 Human Resources  –  None.

4.10 Assets And Property – None.

5.0 Conclusions

5.1 The Council is required to prepare and publish a set of Accounts, within
a set timescale.  The accounts are then subject to external audit and
currently Audit Scotland is the Council’s nominated auditors.      The
first set of accounts submitted required considerable amendment, to
ensure that they were complete and compliant with all the relevant
codes.  This was disappointing and has resulted in additional work for
finance staff, external advisers and Audit Scotland.   The Accounts
remain qualified in respect of the non grouping of accounts with those
of Shetland Charitable Trust.  Audit Scotland will present their
independent and objective view of the accounts at today’s meeting, as
set out in Appendix 1.
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For further information please contact:
Hazel Sutherland, Head of Finance
hazel.sutherland@shetland.gov.uk
Telephone:
Direct Line:  01595 74 4607
Mobile: 07825 088925

22 September 2011

List of Appendices

ISA 260 Report from Audit Scotland

Final Accounts 2010/11

END
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Key Issues 
Introduction 

1. International Standard on Auditing 260 (ISA 260) requires auditors to communicate matters relating 

to the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance of a body in time to enable 

appropriate action. 

2. ISA 260 requires us to highlight: 

 relationships that may bear on our independence and the integrity and objectivity of the audit 

engagement lead and audit staff 

 the overall scope and approach to the audit, including any expected limitations, and the form of 

reports expected to be made 

 expected modifications to the audit report 

 management representations requested by us 

 unadjusted misstatements 

 material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 

 views about the qualitative aspects of accounting practices and financial reporting, including 

accounting policies 

 matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be communicated and any other 

matters that are relevant to the audit. 

3. This report sets out for the Council’s consideration the relevant matters arising from the audit of 

Shetland Islands Council financial statements for 2010/11 that require reporting under ISA 260.  The 

contents should be brought to the attention of the head of finance and the chief executive so that they 

can consider them before they sign the relevant pages of the financial statements.  An audit of the 

financial statements is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to those charged with 

governance.  The report has been prepared for the use of Shetland Islands Council and no 

responsibility to any third party is accepted.  In line with good practice, this report will also be 

considered by the audit and standards committee on 27 September 2011, before the audit is 

concluded. 
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Status of the audit 

4. The council’s financial statements are an essential part of demonstrating its stewardship of its 

resources and performance in the use of those resources.   Auditors are required to audit the financial 

statements, in accordance with the timescales set by Audit Scotland, by 30 September,  and to give 

an opinion on: 

 whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of audited bodies and their 

expenditure and income 

 whether they have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant legislation, the applicable 

accounting framework and other reporting requirements. 

5. Our work on the audit of the council’s financial statements is now nearly complete and the matters 

identified during the audit have been discussed with the head of finance at a meeting on 6 

September and with other officers in the finance section since that date.  Usually we would include a 

draft of our audit opinion with this letter however we are unable to do so until the outstanding matter 

at paragraph 25 is resolved with the council and we receive a revised set of financial statements to 

reflect the changes agreed with the council as part of the audit.   

6. The quality of the financial statements submitted by the council for audit on 30 June was 

unacceptable, and they did not comply with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2010/11 (the Code). There was no evidence that officers had checked disclosure 

requirements back to the Code or carried out basic checks or a read through of the accounts.  Further 

versions of the accounts were issued on 4 July, 26 July and 12 September.  We gave the council 

several opportunities to improve the statements and a significant amount of important information was 

only provided to support figures in the financial statements as late as 22 September.  These issues 

are discussed further below.  A final version of the financial statements is now to be issued to us for 

checking and on which our audit opinion will be based.   

7. If the outstanding matter is resolved satisfactorily and revised financial statements are provided before 

27 September, which reflect all the agreed significant changes detailed later in this report, we will be 

able to provide an audit opinion with the group qualification noted at paragraph 9 only.  If however this 

is not the case the audit opinion will be reviewed and the sign off of the financial statements may be 

delayed. 

Matters to be reported to those charged with governance 

Conduct and scope of the audit  

8. Information on the integrity and objectivity of the audit engagement lead and audit staff, and the 

nature and scope of the audit, were outlined in the Annual Audit Plan submitted to management in 
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January 2011 and follow the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice prepared by Audit Scotland 

in March 2007. 

Audit opinion & representations 

9. Group accounts qualification:  Our auditor’s report will be qualified due to the fact that, as in 

previous years, the council’s group accounts do not include the results of the Shetland Charitable 

Trust.  We have reviewed this issue throughout the year and have spoken to council officers about 

options for the council to consider to resolve the qualification.  However, we did not receive any 

further evidence from the council which would lead us to change our previous opinions for the 

2010/11 group accounts.  The impact of the omission of this body is material to the results of the 

group and we will refer to the disagreement in the auditor’s report.   

10. Note 39 of the financial statements that were advertised for public inspection, includes an 

acknowledgement that the trust is recognised as a subsidiary of the council.  Despite this, the council 

did not include the trust in the council’s group.  The finance section has now said that this note was 

an error and the council does not agree with our view that the trust should be included in the group.  

The trust’s inclusion as a subsidiary at note 39 has now been removed from the latest version of the 

financial statements presented to us on 12 September.  In our opinion, this is a significant change to 

the financial statements that were presented for public inspection and could be considered 

misleading to anyone who reviewed the accounts at this time.  As noted in paragraph 21 below, the 

council should ensure that the financial statements advertised for public inspection are of a good 

standard so that significant changes are not required following the audit process.   

Resolution:  Options to resolve the group qualification will be considered further by the 

council in 2011/12.    

11. As part of the completion of our audit we seek written assurances from the head of finance on aspects 

of the accounts and judgements and estimates made.  A draft letter of representation under ISA 580 

will be provided to the head of finance.  This should be signed and returned by the head of finance 

prior to the independent auditor’s opinion being certified. 

Accounting and internal control systems 

12. Quality of the financial statements:  As noted above, and as reported in previous years, there were 

significant problems with the preparation and submission of the financial statements.  In recognition of 

this, the council’s improvement plan approved in November 2010, in response to last years Accounts 

Commission findings, includes an action point for the head of finance to ensure issues relating to 

compliance with accounting standards were resolved (by March 2011).   

13. Section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 states that “every local authority shall make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that the proper 
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officer of the authority has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.” The council’s S95 

officer with this responsibility is the head of finance who also has an obligation to ensure that the 

council’s accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 (the Code).  All councils are required to submit accounts to 

the Controller of Audit by 30 June, prior to them being audited by the appointed auditor’s team 

between 1 July and 30 September. 

14. The S95 officer who was in post at the start of the financial year retired from the council on 31 March, 

together with the financial accountant.  The current S95 officer was appointed in April 2011 on an 

interim basis.  The changes in the finance section were progressed as part of a planned restructuring 

of the council departments.  It was recognised by the council that the scale of these changes was 

substantial at a key stage in preparing the council’s financial statements.  The council therefore 

employed specialist external support, to assist with the preparation of the statements. The S95 officer 

was responsible for ensuring that these arrangements were adequate for compiling the financial 

statements.   

15. The council’s unaudited accounts were submitted to the Controller of Audit on the deadline date of 30 

June.  This version of the accounts is expected to be of appropriate quality so it can be advertised for 

public inspection.  However the accounts submitted for audit did not comply with the Code as several 

sections were incomplete.  In particular, the group accounts section of the financial statements had 

not been prepared.  Further to this, the council’s financial statements included the accounts of the 

Shetland Pension Fund which should have been submitted separately to the Controller of Audit on 30 

June.  These accounts had also not been reviewed or discussed by council members prior to being 

submitted for audit as is considered good practice in other local authorities.   

16. A second set of accounts was submitted for audit on 4 July but these still did not comply with the 

Code in several major areas.  

17. On the 18 July, the appointed auditor, Fiona Mitchell-Knight wrote to the head of finance to express 

her serious concerns on the quality of the accounts that had been submitted for audit and on the lack 

of working papers to support the figures in the financial statements.  The impact of the poor quality of 

the accounts and working papers was that the audit team could not progress the audit and there was a 

risk that the audit would not be concluded by the 30 September deadline.  The principal points raised 

in the appointed auditor’s letter to the head of finance were as follows: 

 a complete set of working papers had not been provided to the auditors 

 the auditors had not been provided with a trial balance or ledger download to support the figures 

in the financial statements 
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 the finance section had not prepared the Code compliance checklist or alternative working 

paper to demonstrate that the financial statements had been prepared in accordance with the 

Code 

 several sections of the accounts were incomplete 

 several errors were noted where the figures on the core financial statements did not agree to 

the supporting notes and a large number of arithmetical errors were also present in the 

accounts 

 a large amount of narrative detail within the financial statements had not been brought forward 

from previous years’ accounts which meant that the benefit of improvements to the accounts 

made by the finance section in previous years had been lost. 

18. A third set of draft accounts was provided for audit on 26 July together with more detailed working 

papers.  This set of financial statements was more complete than the previous versions, although the 

group accounts section was still incomplete.  This version of the unaudited accounts was submitted to 

the Controller of Audit on the same day and was later advertised in the local press for public 

inspection.   

19. The audit team began working on the revised version of the accounts on the 26 July.  The delay in 

submitting these accounts, and the fact that this was the third set of unaudited accounts prepared, led 

to a large amount of duplication in the audit process, which had originally started on 30 June, and 

additional work for the auditors and the finance section staff.  On 6 September the matters arising 

identified through the audit of these revised statements were discussed with the head of finance.  As a 

consequence, a further version of the financial statements was provided to external audit on 12 

September.  This version reflects a number of the errors and amendments identified through the audit 

process.  However in our opinion, it did not incorporate all the amendments requested by us at the 

meeting of 6 September.  Also as late as 22 September some supporting information relating to 

financial instruments and reserves was incomplete.  When this information was received, significant 

errors in the accounts were identified which are now to be corrected, these are described further 

below.   

20. In addition to the corrections that the council is to make, there are two other agreed errors which the 

council is not planning to correct.  These are detailed at Appendix A.  If these total errors were 

corrected the surplus for the year shown in the income and expenditure account would increase by 

£26,000. The total net impact on the general fund would be an increase of £26,000. These total errors 

are not material to the accounts and we agree that the errors should not be corrected.   

21. In conclusion, the number of errors and omissions in the financial statements submitted for audit on 

30 June was unacceptable.  The number of revisions to these accounts has increased substantially 
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the amount of work for both finance staff and the audit team to conclude the audit this year.  Of 

greater concern is that the council advertised for public inspection a set of financial statements that 

were not Code compliant and have now been changed substantially.   

22. We understand that the current S95 officer is due to leave the council during the current financial year, 

and that the post of a finance section manager has been advertised.  It is essential that recruitment to 

this position is advanced as soon as possible.  In addition, the significant problems highlighted during 

the final accounts process has highlighted that there is a need to review the structure of the finance 

department to ensure it has the capacity to deliver Code compliant financial statements.   

Resolution: For 2011/12 it is essential that a S95 officer is in place to review the council’s 

processes for preparing the 2011/12 financial statements.  The council should ensure that the 

statements are Code compliant before they are submitted for audit in future years.   

23. Access to finance staff throughout the audit:  As part of the audit planning process we were 

provided with a list of proposed annual leave by finance staff prior to the audit beginning and we 

structured our work and visits round this list to ensure that the relevant staff would be at work during 

our trips.  There have been several instances of staff key to the audit process being granted leave at a 

later stage which led to a disruption in our work because we were not informed of their absences.  

Whilst we have now overcome these issues for the council’s accounts, this is now a concern for the 

audit of Shetland Pension Fund which has just started.  The audit was planned early in 2011 in 

consultation with the finance section and is taking place during the 2 weeks beginning 19 September.  

We have asked the finance section to give us assurance that appropriate staffing arrangements will 

be put in place to ensure that the audit can progress as planned, taking account of any staff absences 

now approved.  This is essential so that the accounts will achieve the statutory sign-off deadline. 

Resolution: Two members of the finance section have been identified as our contacts during 

the audit and the finance section has assured us that these staff members will have 

appropriate knowledge of the Shetland Pension Fund accounts to allow the audit to progress. 

Matters arising identified in the audit  

24. In our view, the following specific issues should also be brought to your attention regarding errors 

made in compiling the financial statements,  the appropriateness of the council’s accounting policies 

or accounting estimates and judgements, the timing of transactions, the existence of any material 

unusual transactions or the potential effect on the financial statements of any uncertainties: 

25. Financial instruments:  There is a risk that gains on investments have been incorrectly accounted 

for in the comprehensive income and expenditure account.  Further evidence was required from the 

council to confirm that the £19.383 million figure relates to unrealised gains on investment which 

were held at 31 March 2011 and that all gains relating to investments sold have been removed.  
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Working papers provided by the council on 22 September confirmed that £20.520 million of realised 

gains have been included within this figure and this is leading us to the conclusion that a further 

adjustment may be required to restate this figure as investment income. We are currently performing 

the audit work on these figures.  There is also a risk that an additional gain of £2.635 million, in 

relation to the elimination of the effective interest rate, has been accounted for incorrectly in the 

accounts.  Supporting papers were also received on 22 September and we are currently auditing 

them. 

Resolution:  The audit work on the financial instruments disclosures is to be concluded.  Any 

adjustments required will be discussed with the council.   

26. Financial instruments:  The movements in the available for sale financial instruments reserve 

includes £19.383 million as unrealised gains on investments and this did not agree to the narrative in 

Note 22b).   

Resolution:  The council has agreed to correct the narrative in Note 22b)  

 

27. Financial instruments: The council made an adjustment of £696,000 to account for accrued interest 

on investments.  As a result of this, accrued interest was accounted for twice in long-term 

investments, incorrectly included in creditors and was omitted from short-term investments. The 

correct figure should be a debit to investments of £119,000. 

Resolution:    The council has agreed to revise the financial statements to correct this error.   

28. Movement in reserves statement (MIRS):  Several errors were identified by audit between the 

MIRS figures and the figures disclosed in supporting Note 8 to the accounts.  

 for 2009/10, the transfer from other statutory reserves in the MIRS for the General Fund balance 

is £20,378,000 compared with £91,000 in Note 8 

 for 2009/10, the transfer from other statutory reserves in the MIRS for HRA is £297,000 compared 

with zero in Note 8 

 for 2010/11, the transfer from other statutory reserves in the MIRS for the General Fund balance 

is £23,156,000 compared with £2,983,000 in Note 8 

 for 2010/11, the transfer from other statutory reserves in the MIRS for the HRA balance is 

£489,000 compared with zero in  Note 8 

 for 2010/11, the transfer from other statutory reserves in the MIRS for unapplied capital grants is 

zero compared with £171,000 in Note 8. 
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Resolution:    On 22 September the council resolved these differences and corrected the 

figures in Note 8 so that they agree to the MIRS.   

29. Group accounts – The group accounts include unaudited accounts for the Northern Joint Police 

Board and they may require to be updated if material adjustments are included in the final audited 

version of these accounts. 

Resolution:  When the Northern Joint Police Board accounts are signed off, we will discuss 

with the council whether any adjustments to the council’s group accounts are required.   

 

30. Holiday pay accrual:  The holiday pay accrual for teachers required under the new international 

financial reporting standards (IFRS) was calculated by the council as £377,545.  The calculation had 

not been performed in line with guidance issued by CIPFA or Audit Scotland and the audit team 

estimated that the accrual should be increased to approximately £1.3 million.   

Resolution:  Further work was performed by the finance section and the total accrual has now 

been increased to £1.365 million. 

31. Governance statement : to comply with the Code, the governance statement should be signed by 

the Section 95 officer and should include information on the internal controls of subsidiaries. 

Resolution:  The council has agreed to revise the financial statements to reflect these 

changes.  

32. Capital adjustment account:  Several differences were noted when comparing the entries in the 

capital adjustment account to the ledger: 

 there was a difference of £684,000 between the capital adjustment account movement of £3.66 

million and the ledger balance of £4.344 million 

 there was a difference of £1.59 million between the capital financed from current revenue 

(CFCR) balance of £3.403 million in the accounts and the ledger balance of £1.813 million 

 the capital fund reserve balance of £7.32 million could not be agreed to any balance in the 

ledger 

 there was a balance in the ledger of £4.371 million which had not been disclosed in the capital 

adjustment account. 

By 20 September all differences were resolved with the exception of agreeing the capital fund reserve 

balance to the ledger.  The amended accounts have a balance of £7.35 million and the supporting 
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working paper provided by the council quotes a figure of £7.821 million.  The unreconciled difference 

of £471,000 is assumed to be an error. 

Resolution: The unreconciled difference of £471,000 is assumed to be an error.  This error is 

not to be corrected by the council, it is included in the unadjusted errors at appendix A. 

33. Year-end purchase ledger balance:  There is an unresolved difference of £26,068 between the end 

of year creditor breakdown report and the creditors listing which agrees to the balance sheet.  The 

council could not provide system prints to support this figure, it is therefore assumed to be an error 

for accounting purposes.   

Resolution:    This error is not to be corrected by the council, it is included in the unadjusted 

errors at appendix A. 

34. Long term investments:  The long term investments figure of £222 million on the balance sheet 

includes £103,000 relating to short term investments in error.   

Resolution:    The council has agreed to revise the financial statements to reflect these 

changes. 

35. Termination benefits:  The Code states that termination benefits are to be charged on an accruals 

basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The 

council had incorrectly charged £1.469 million to non-distributed costs in the unaudited accounts. 

Resolution:    The council has not amended the accounts as it has no effect on the total net 

cost of services. 

36. Asset register:  A large number of differences were identified by audit between the asset balances 

included in the financial statements and the asset register figures which should support the asset 

figures. Confirmation was received from the finance section on 16 September that all of these 

differences were caused by the fact that entries for assets held for sale had not been updated in the 

fixed asset register.  The council has explained that this was due to a system process error which 

prevents the register being updated after finance costs are processed via the system.  Audit work 

confirmed that the figures in the financial statements could be agreed to the financial ledger and that 

the financial statements are correct.  

Resolution:  The council has agreed to review how the asset register is updated in advance of 

preparing the 2011/12 financial statements. 

37. Employee benefit accrual:  The council has calculated the employee benefit accrual using an 

average hourly rate and leave balance based on a sample of employees.  It would be more accurate if 
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the actual hourly rate and actual leave balance was used for each employee in the sample and then 

extrapolated to the whole population.  In addition there is no indication that the council has included 

the employers national insurance and superannuation costs within the accrual calculation. However 

any error on the accrual is an estimate only, is not material to the accounts and no adjustment is to be 

made to the financial statements . 

Resolution: The methodology for calculating the annual leave accrual should be reviewed 

prior to the completion of the 2011/12 accounts.  Superannuation and national insurance costs 

were incorrectly excluded from the 2010/11 calculation.  Finance staff should ensure that the 

2011/12 accrual calculation is correctly performed.   

 

Acknowledgements 

38. We would like to express our thanks to the staff of Shetland Islands Council for their help and 

assistance during the audit of this year’s financial statements which has enabled the appointed 

auditor to certify the statements by the Controller of Audit’s target date. 

 

 
September 2011 

 

      - 92 -      



 

11 

Appendix A 
Non-Adjusted Errors within the 2010/11 Annual Accounts 

Below is a summary of the non-adjusted error which has not been processed in the accounts, with an 

explanation. 

Non-Adjusted Errors 

Narrative DR  

£000 

CR 

£000 

 Income & Expenditure Account 

Difference between general ledger and purchase ledger 
reconciliation 

26  

   

   

 Balance Sheet 

  26 

Total 26 26 

 Balance Sheet 

Being difference between  the Capital Fund Reserve balance as 
reported on the Capital Adjustment Account and supporting working 
papers 

471  

  471 

Total 471 471 
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Introduction

Welcome to the Council’s accounts for the year 2010/11. These look very different from
those that you will be used to seeing in the past. In particular, this year we have been
required to adopt a new approach to the presentation of the Accounts.

This is intended to make the information presented more relevant and to give you a better
understanding of the most significant financial matters that have affected the Council and the
wider group of organisations covered by the Accounts.

Nonetheless the accounts remain, as they must, a rather technical document but I hope that
the Explanatory Foreword will help you better understand the financial affairs of the Council.
The Explanatory Foreword below does not comment on policies but concentrates on trying
to explain the financial facts in respect of 2010/11.

Explanatory Foreword

The purpose of the foreword is to explain the most significant aspects of the authority’s
financial performance, year-end financial position and cash flows in a concise and
understandable manner; for ease of understanding and in the interest of conciseness the
foreword is structured under broad headings below.

The Regulatory Framework

First of all it is helpful to understand the regulatory framework within which the authority
works. In Scotland the local authority accounting framework is enacted as follows:

section 96 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 requires Scottish authorities to
keep accounts;

section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 places a duty of Best Value on
the authority and also a duty to observe proper accounting practices; the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code), supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Best Value Accounting Code of
Practice, the Prudential Framework and other statutory guidance issued under section 12
of the 2003 Act, defines proper accounting practices for local authorities in the UK;

the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 (SSI No.2011/64)
amended the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985 (SI No.1985/267) to
require local authorities in Scotland to prepare a Remuneration Report as part of the
annual statutory accounts;

under paragraph 3 of the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985 (s1
1985/267, Finance circular 5/1985) the “proper officer” is formally responsible for the form
of accounts; the Code requires this officer to sign, date and submit the un-audited
statement of accounts to the authority and the Controller of Audit by 30 June.
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The Code was developed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board under the oversight of the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board and has effect for financial years commencing on or
after 1 April 2010. The overriding requirement of the Code is that the Statement of Accounts
provides a true and fair view of the financial position and the financial transactions of the
authority. The Code reiterates the primacy of legislative requirements whereby the overriding
principle of local authority accounts is that, where an accounting treatment is prescribed by
law, the legal requirement must be applied even where this contradicts accounting
standards.

The primary financial statements and notes to the accounts, including the accounting
policies form the relevant Statement of Accounts for the purpose of the auditor’s certificate
and opinion.

Primary Financial Statements

The Statement of Accounts summarises the authority’s transactions for the year, its year-end
position at 31 March 2011 and its cash-flows. All monetary amounts shown in the statements
are rounded to the nearest one thousand pounds for the purposes of presentation. The
statement of accounts is prepared in accordance with the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (the IASB Framework) as interpreted by the Code.

The four primary statements and their relationships are explained in more detail below:

Movement in Reserves Statement – this shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and those that the authority
is not able to use to provide services but must set aside under statute and accounting
regulations.

The (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the authority’s services which is different from the statutory amounts required to
be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account for setting
council tax and dwelling rents.

The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Reserves line shows the statutory
General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary
transfers to or from reserves are undertaken by the Council.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this shows the accounting cost
in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices (GAAP), rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from
the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Statement, as explained above, and the adjustments made between the accounting basis
and the funding basis to reflect the amount available to the authority to meet future
capital and revenue expenditure is disclosed at note 7.
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Balance Sheet – this shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and
liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in
two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that
the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level
of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
category of reserves are those that the authority is not able to use to provide services.
This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to
provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in
the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations’.

Cash Flow Statement – this shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the
authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and
financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of
taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority.
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for
resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows
by providers of capital (ie borrowing) to the authority.

Financial Performance – Budget Out-turn

Council services are paid for from national taxation by way of a grant from the Government,
non domestic rates; local taxation by way of the Council Tax and more generally from fees
and charges.  The Council is also able to draw on income which it generates from reserves
to pay for services and projects.

The Council’s financial performance is presented in the four primary Statements.  The
outturn position for each of the budgeted funds, excluding accounting practice adjustments,
as compared to the budget set is summarised below.

Further details were presented in a report to the Executive Committee of the Council on 4
July 2011, which is available on the Council’s website.

2010/11 Original Revised Actual Revised
Budget v Expenditure Budgeted Budgeted Draw on Budget v Actual

Draw on Draw on Reserves Variance
Reserves Reserves (after capital trfs) Fav/(Adv)

£m £m £m £m

General Fund Revenue 2.000 15.070 14.740 0.330
Reserve Fund Revenue 11.366 11.366 11.050 0.316
Harbour Account (3.898) (3.898) (2.357) (1.541)
Housing Revenue Account (0.398) (0.398) 0.489 (0.887)
Capital 31.300 31.300 7.350 23.950

Total 40.370 53.440 31.272 22.168
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The main variances against revised budget arose in the following areas:

a net overspend of £0.330m on the General Fund;

a net underspend of £0.316m on the Reserve Fund, mainly to do with the scheduling of
grant aid expenditure;

a net reduction in the contribution to the Reserve Fund, from surpluses on the Harbour
Account of £1.541m, mainly due to reduced income streams;

a net overspend of £0.887m on the Housing Revenue Account from meeting new build
capital spend from Revenue;

a net underspend of £23.950m on Capital, of which £4.060m was transferred to revenue,
with the remainder being slippage or revisions to the programme, i.e. projects not
commencing as originally anticipated in 2010/11.

In 2010/11, the Council continued to face significant financial pressures. Potential future
pressures relate to the general economic climate such as:

the potentially lower level of returns on funds invested in equities;

the reduction in direct government support through the revenue support and capital
grants;

reduction in household income and the ability to pay for goods and services and council
tax.

From a service perspective there is a growing need for community care and services for
people with learning disabilities, increases in fuel costs impacting on the transport system
and the severe weather resulting in increases to the winter maintenance service.

The Council was successful in securing a new income stream from the gas processing plant,
based at Sullom Voe, which was a very welcome increase in industry at a time of more
general economic recession.

During the year, the Council undertook some significant service redesign projects, with a
view to achieving significant savings in areas where efficiencies could be implemented.  The
projects were called “Ports for the Future” and the “Education Blueprint” and both projects
have made significant contributions to delivering ongoing revenue savings.  A different
model of providing community care was developed, through an extra care housing scheme,
which is a more cost effective model than permanent care places.  That work is continuing
into 2011/12, alongside a new drive for efficiencies and some focused best value reviews
around community care and infrastructure services.

The Chief Executive introduced a Vacancy Management Panel, to critically review the
Council’s approach to recruitment to vacant posts.  This system, alongside general budget
pressures, has created a slow down and stabilisation of overall staffing numbers, so helping
to manage staffing costs.   Reducing the Council’s overall staffing costs by a significant
amount will be a key part of the 2011/12 savings process.
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The start of the process of management reform saw the amalgamation of some posts,
following the early retiral of some senior managers.  That work continues into 2011/12 with
the formal approval of the management review, which has a target saving of fifteen senior
management posts and £1 million per annum.

Another key area of cost is property costs. The Council had developed a specific project to
look for savings and efficiencies in the way in which it uses property.  There will be a drive to
find uses for, or dispose of, vacant properties and a concentrated effort to support dispersed
working and shared services across all areas of Shetland.

The Council’s financial policy framework since 2005 has been made up of several elements:

General Fund Reserves (mainly the Reserve Fund, Capital Fund and Repairs and
Renewals Fund) should be maintained at no less than £250 million (the Reserves Floor
policy).

Use of Reserves to support General Fund revenue spending to be reduced by a
minimum of £1 million per year (with a target level of £1 million in 2011/12 and £0
thereafter).

Use of Reserves to support the General Fund Capital Programme should be constrained
to levels consistent with the Reserves Floor policy. Initially the target was £20 million per
year, subsequently modified to a Programme of no more than £100 million over five
years.

In 2010/11 the Council budgeted to draw £40.370m from Reserves, in order to balance the
accounts. However, the actual draw on reserves in 2010/11 is £31.272m.  The overall impact
of the projects and services provided during 2010/11, and funded from reserves, is that the
Council has ended the year with a balance on Reserves of £268.899m.  This is a reduction
in reserves from the previous year of £4.856m.  This is less than the estimated draw on
reserves as there were exceptionally high gains on the sale of investments, interest and
dividends due to very good market conditions.
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The Council holds the following balances in reserves:

Reserves
Opening Balance

1 April 2010
Closing Balance

31 March 2011
£m £m

Capital Fund (117.625) (108.404)
Capital Efficiency/Spend to Save Reserve 0.000 (5.000)
Reserve Fund (66.752) (61.621)
Repairs & Renewals Fund (74.318) (62.900)
General Fund Balance 0 (3.000)
Revenue Efficiency/Spend to Save Reserve 0 (0.500)
Potential Contingent Liabilities 0 (11.400)
Discretionary Reserves (258.695) (252.825)

Marine Superannuation Fund (2.974) (2.582)
Pilot Boat Renewal Fund (0.944) (0.942)
Housing Repairs & Renewals Fund (10.577) (12.035)
Quarry Repairs & Renewals Fund (0.150) (0.150)
Insurance Fund (0.254) (0.222)
Hansel Funds (0.083) (0.090)
Central Energy Efficiency Fund (0.077) (0.052)
Ring Fenced Reserves (15.059) (16.073)

TOTAL (273.754) (268.898)

The overall level of reserves of £268.898m is in accordance with the long-term strategy for
maintaining the financial policies of the Council.   However, when the funds to be used for
specific purposes are deducted, the level of reserves held for general use falls to
£252.825m, just above the financial policy floor of £250 million set by the Council.

The reserves held are more than adequate to manage risks and unplanned expenditure in
the short term.  However, there is a significant risk that the Council’s reserves will be fully
used in a short period of time if expenditure levels are not brought into line with the level of
income able to be generated.

The Council is taking immediate steps to address this financial risk by bringing forward the
financial planning process for 2012/13 and started that process in July 2011.  It has
recognised the need to pro-actively manage the exercise as a significant change
management project, involving all staff and the local community.

A risk has been identified that not all of the general fund reserves are held in a way that can
be quickly converted to cash.  There is no short-term risk associated with how the money is
held but, over time, if the Council has a need to make a significant and unplanned draw on
reserves, it may need to borrow to secure the cash required. This issue will be addressed in
detail in the financial planning process.

The Council has no external debt at 31 March 2011.
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The Council agreed, in November 2010, a Corporate Improvement Action Plan, to address
concerns raised by the Accounts Commission.  The detail of that process is set out in the
Governance Statement.  The concern surrounded the Council’s capacity to deliver the
overall financial strategy with specific recommendations for improvement as follows:

The Council should establish rigorous processes to ensure that it can put its use of
resources on a footing that is consistent with implementing and sustaining its financial
strategy, and demonstrate that it can deliver services in a way which achieves Best
Value.

The Council should address the weaknesses in its finance function to ensure that it
complies with good practice and relevant objective standards, and provides appropriate
information to allow councillors to exercise robust strategic budget management.

The Council should ensure that the qualification of its accounts in relation to the
accounting treatment of the Shetland Charitable Trust is resolved in time for the audit of
the financial statements for 2010/11.

The Council is making progress is addressing these high-risk issues.  The Council agreed to
support the work of all the actions in the Corporate Improvement Action Plan through an
investment in a £1 million improvement budget.

The Council continues to work closely with Shetland Charitable Trust to resolve the
qualification on the accounts.  The planned actions should resolve this issue for the 2012/13
accounts.

The emerging picture for next few years’ financial predictions is that the gap between income
and expenditure on the revenue account will be about £25 million, off-set by any ongoing
savings achieved in the current year.  The extent of the savings required is such that the
Council has put in place early arrangements to tackle the budget deficit. This work will
include a process of staff and community engagement, to help councillors to make choices
over the services provided, the level of service provided and the quality of service provided
to this community.   Alongside this work, the Council is updating its corporate priorities,
through a process called “scenario planning” to take a long term view of how the Council can
contribute to Shetland remaining a vibrant, safe and healthy place to live and work.

Accounting Ratios

CIPFA Scotland Directors of Finance Section, working with Audit Scotland, are developing a
suite of accounting ratios for incorporation into the financial statements.

The planned indicators are intended to represent a Council’s sustainability and the
affordability of its financial plans. They will also aid the Council to demonstrate the
effectiveness of its financial management.

Unfortunately, the planned suite of ratios has not been finalised by CIPFA in time for
inclusion within the 2010/11 financial statements but this Council is committed to including
them from 2011/12 onwards.
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Material Items of Income and Expenditure

Pension
The Council is still the administering authority for the Local Government Pension Scheme
and more details of what this means are included in Note 33 to the accounts. However, it is
worth noting that the pension fund accounts are no longer included within the Shetland
Islands Council’s financial statements.  This is because there is now a statutory requirement
for the publication of a separate pension fund annual report.  Any person interested in
obtaining a copy of the Shetland Pension Fund financial statements can do so by going to
the following web link:

http://www.shetland.gov.uk/council/documents/Shetland Islands Council Pension Fund
Account 2010-11.pdf

It is worth mentioning that as at 31 March 2011, the Council’s Pension Fund had a net
pension liability of £91,113m, a significant reduction from the previous year’s figure of
£147.169m. This arose mainly, but not wholly, from upward movements in fund assets and
changes in the way in which inflation is applied to future pension increases (i.e. future
pension increases will be linked to CPI rather than RPI), as introduced by the Chancellor of
the Exchequer in his statement on 22 June 2010.

We continue to monitor and measure this pension liability and make changes to cash
contributions as required as part of the regular assessment made by an independent
actuary.

It should be noted that the 10/11 net pension liability (source: Hymans Robertson LLP
“IAS19 as at 31 March 2011 – Results Schedule”) at time of writing is an unaudited amount.

Changes in Accounting Policies

A move to an IFRS based code of practice from a UK GAAP based SORP has resulted in a
number of significant changes to accounting practice. The date of transition to the Code was
1 April 2009. The IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards requires retrospective application of accounting policy changes although in limited
circumstances it permits exceptions to this requirement.

The Code clearly specifies which exemptions from retrospective application are available to
local authorities. Shetland Islands Council has applied the following exemptions in
accordance with the Code:

Depreciated Historical Cost - the Code states that the depreciated historical cost of an
asset at 1 April 2009 (the transition date) is its depreciated historical cost at 31 March
2009 under the SORP.  With the exception of assets where the carrying amount is
restated due to other accounting policy changes (for example, leased assets and non-
current assets held for sale), the authority is required to carry forward depreciated
historical cost figures without any restatement.
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IFRIC 4 - Shetland Islands Council reviewed its contracts and other arrangements
existing at 1 April 2009 under IFRIC 4 to determine whether any contained (the
substance of) a lease whereby the authority would be required to account for those
leases retrospectively from the date of commencement of the lease but none were found
to contain the substance of a lease.

Details of Shetland Islands Council first time adoption can be found on page 38.
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Annual Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

Shetland Islands Council is responsible for administering and safeguarding public money
received from national and local sources, on behalf of the community.  The Council is also
responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and
proper standards and that public money is used properly, safeguarded and accounted for
appropriately.   Further, the Council has a duty to secure “value for money”, sometimes
referred to as economy, efficiency and effectiveness, and “best value” in all its spending
decisions.  We, as Leader (Joseph G Simpson) and Chief Executive (Alistair Buchan),
acknowledge our responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of overall governance
and internal financial control is maintained and applied.

In general terms, the Council Members, led by the Leader, are responsible for setting the
strategic direction for the Council and deciding on key policy objectives, of both a financial
and service nature.    The Council staff, led by the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service,
is responsible for putting in place the appropriate systems to make sure that the policy
decisions taken by Council Members are implemented.   How this process works, the
decision-making and implementation, is referred to as the governance arrangements of the
Council.

The Governance Framework

The governance framework covers some key elements and processes, as set out below:

The legal powers, duties and functions of the Council and roles and responsibilities of the
people who take decisions on behalf of the community.

The levels at which decisions can be made, referred to as the Scheme of Delegation.

The Administrative Regulations and the rules around how committees are run and
decisions are made.

The Financial Regulations and rules about contracting with other parties.

How the Council performs in delivering services and securing value for money.

The process of internal control and checking that the Council’s policies and procedures
are being followed, through the work of the Internal Audit staff and others.

There are also a number of key documents which combine to create the governance
arrangements, as follows:

In response to the funding which the Council receives from the Scottish Government
through national taxation, the Council has committed, through the Single Outcome
Agreement, to achieving certain targets and improvements across services which are
deemed to be a priority at national and local level.  Often, this work is done in partnership
with other public, voluntary or private sector organisations.
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The key objectives which this Council has signed up to deliver, drawn from the Single
Outcome Agreement and local Members’ commitment to their constituents, are drawn
together into the Corporate Plan.

Shetland Islands Council administers a number of funds, held on behalf of the community
and a key strand of the governance arrangements relates to how that money is invested,
what level of reserves to hold for future generations and formal approval of the spending
plans each year.  Looking after the Council’s finances covers six key strands:

-  Medium and Long Term Financial Planning;
-  Fund and Investment Management;
-  Budget Strategy;
-  Budget Approval and Management;
-  Accountability and the Final Accounts;
-  Risk Management and Insurance.

A key element of making sure that everything works is to have good connections between all
the different elements of governance and have good relationships between Council
Members and staff, through a shared culture, shared objectives, shared values and shared
behaviours.  This is set out in Codes of Conduct for Council Members and staff.  Where
concerns around the conduct of Members are felt to have taken place, referrals can be made
to the Standards Commission for Scotland. A range of human resources policies are in place
to support concerns and complaints raised against staff.

The Council is planning to formally approve a Code of Governance, based on best practice
guidance.

The Governance Framework

The overall objective of the Council, through the Single Outcome Agreement and the
Corporate Plan, approved in June 2010, is to secure the long-term economic health of the
community by ensuring that we maintain our economically active population.

Flowing from that overall objective are a range of strategic and service specific targets, such
as:

ensuring the economy is healthy and diverse, by growing the private sector;

 meeting Shetland’s skills and learning needs, to support the growing economy;

intervening early  to minimise or eliminate poverty and deprivation and promote healthy
lifestyles;

establishing patterns of early intervention to help young people, adults and families to live
safely and independently and fulfil their full potential;

providing affordable housing; and

making sure we organise and carry out all business properly.
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The Council is not able on its own to solve all the social, economic and environmental issues
facing the community. The Council therefore works with other partners to provide services
which are joined up around the needs of individuals, families, organisations and
communities.  This work is often formalised through Partnership Agreements, which have
been established to tackle specific issues, such as: the Community Health and Care
Partnership; the Community Safety Partnership; the Skills and Learning Partnership and the
Carbon Group.

Priority Areas which the Council, with its partners, set out to achieve progress on throughout
the year were:

Priority Area Progress Assessment Progress Commentary

Fast and reliable
broadband throughout
Shetland

GREEN / AMBER Good progress being made on provision of resilient broadband to
Lerwick, but challenges remain in being able to roll this out to other
areas.

Development of
renewables

GREEN / AMBER Progress continues to be made, but continues to be restricted by
decisions made outwith Shetland on the interconnector. First
phase of the Smart Grid project is on schedule for implementation
later this year.

Decide on and
implement the Blueprint
for Education

GREEN The Blueprint process is still on target to meet the statutory
consultation and reporting milestones.

Decide on Shetland’s
long-term transport
infrastructure

GREEN Currently on target to present a proposed programme over a
period of 20 years to Council in 2011.

Get more affordable
Housing

GREEN A number of projects are being developed by the Housing Service
to provide different options for people to access affordable
housing, such as agreement to progress sales of houses and
building plots as a pilot and agreement to progress a shared
ownership model for low cost home ownership.

Intervene early to tackle
any poverty

AMBER Multi-agency work continues, in particular through Getting it Right
for Every Child and With You For You, and improvements can still
be made.  However, the risk in this area is the impact on those on
low income and benefits with the potential for a reduction in
services and changes to the national benefit system.

Make sure we organise
and carry out all our
business properly

AMBER Progress being made on development and approval of Corporate
Improvement Action Plan and achieving long-term financial policy
objectives.  However, due to the current financial context, risks
remain in meeting targets.

The Council’s decision-making structure was based around three main committees, each
reporting to the Full Council, namely: Infrastructure, Development and Services Committees.
These Committees, led by a Chair and Vice Chair, held the responsibility for developing
strategies and policies across the range of local government services, alongside the
resources and money required to deliver those services.

In May 2011, the Council renewed the governance arrangements. The Council has
introduced a committee structure around four strategic groupings: Environment and
Transport; Economic Development; Social Services; and Education and Families. A
refreshed policy and performance framework underpins the new governance arrangements,
including a focus on service prioritisation, resource allocation, performance management
and securing efficiencies.

The overall strategic direction, in terms of setting corporate priorities and allocating
resources, rests with a new Executive Committee.  The Executive Committee also has
responsibility for overall financial planning arrangements, the reserves policies, budget
setting and monitoring. The decision making process is appropriately supported and
challenged through the Audit and Standards Committee, with a remit to oversee standards
within the Council.

      - 109 -      



Shetland Islands Council Accounts 2010/11 15

The Committees ensure that their decisions are implemented by: drawing up action plans
and receiving progress reports; setting and monitoring performance targets; and receiving
budget monitoring reports on revenue and capital spend.  From time to time, committees
receive reports on performance from external scrutiny bodies, such as: the External
Auditors; the Housing Regulator; the Social Work inspectorate; and Her Majesty’s Inspector
of Education.

At the beginning of the financial year 2010/11, there were complaints against four councillors
outstanding. The complaints against all four were investigated and in relation to two were not
upheld but in the case of the other two a report was submitted by the Chief Investigating
Officer to the Standards Commission. Following a hearing where the breach was admitted
under mitigation, the Commission handed down a sanction of "censure" against the two
councillors: the circumstances were reported to a meeting of Shetland Islands Council on 27
October 2010.

During 2010/11, three further Standards Commission complaints against five Councillors
were lodged but all of those were dismissed, there being no discernible breach warranting
further formal investigation.

The financial strategy of the Council is to maintain reserves levels at £250 million.  The
underpinning philosophy to this policy is to maintain the capital sums for future generations
to enjoy.  Shetland, given its remote location, has seen many periods of economic downturn
in its history.  In times of relative stability and economic health, the Council considers it
appropriate to set aside funding for future use, if difficult economic times occur again. The
Council agrees each year, as part of the budget setting process, how much money will be
drawn from reserves, to pay for services and specific projects.

A detailed analysis on the finance policy and reserves’ levels is included at page 8.

The Audit and Standards Committee’s remit ensures that the work of the Council, from both
a control and performance perspective, is checked and scrutinised.  As well as an annual
plan, the Committee can call for one-off reviews to investigate a particular issue.  The
Council’s Service Manager Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit and Standards
Committee.

The Internal Audit Service reports directly to the Council’s Section 95 Officer, the Head of
Finance, and has direct access to the Chief Executive, if required.   Working to an annual
audit plan, their work is endorsed to ISO 9001:2008 quality standard for systems based audit
work.

The Audit and Standards Committee also holds responsibility for the Council’s Risk
Management arrangements.  The Council employs a dedicated Safety and Risk Manager to
ensure that the Council’s arrangements for strategic and operational risks are robust and
embedded in day-to-day work practices.  A risk management board supports this work, with
representatives from each service department. The Council has secured external assistance
to develop a comprehensive set of Business Continuity Plans across all service areas.
These plans set out what actions the Council will take to maintain service delivery in the
event of a major incident or emergency.
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The Chief Executive chairs the Central Safety Committee, with representatives from service
departments and unions.   Clear lines of communication and reporting are established
between departmental health and safety forums, through to this strategic forum, to ensure
that all risks associated with health and safety matters are acknowledged, resourced and
addressed.

The formal approval of the Budget each year gives staff the authority to spend money and
raise charges for services delivered to the community.  The Financial Regulations explain
the rules under which decisions and choices on how to spend money can be made, with a
focus on value for money. The highest proportion of Council expenditure is on staff and
assets.

The Council has a range of policies and procedures relating to staff.  The Performance
Review policy seeks to ensure that there is a good connection between the strategic
direction of the Council, the priorities of each service area and the work of all staff, including
front line staff.   The Council has an approved Code of Conduct and a Policy on Reporting
Concerns at Work is in place.   A system of formally responding to complaints exists, with a
referral and review process through to senior managers.

A formal investment appraisal system has been established for capital expenditure
decisions, known as the Gateway process.  This aims to ensure that options have been fully
explored before decisions to incur capital expenditure are made, in order that value for
money can be demonstrated.  All capital spending proposals are drawn together into one
overall capital plan.  The process involves a formal project management approach, with clear
stages and roles and responsibilities.

A project management approach, using PRINCE methodology, also underpins all the
investment decisions for ICT systems and product development.

As part of the Final Accounts work, potential and actual contingent liabilities are identified
and actions agreed to mitigate the risk of cost or loss to the Council. A review of financial
performance is also carried out so that cost pressures and financial risks can be identified
and managed.

The Corporate Management Team receives regular progress and performance reports on all
aspects of the work of the Council, to identify problems or issues which need to be
resourced or alternative solutions found in order that the Council may deliver on its stated
objectives.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has a responsibility for ensuring the continuing effectiveness of its governance
framework and systems of internal control.  The review of effectiveness is informed by:

direct feedback from members of the public through a variety of mechanisms including
the local media and formal consultation exercises;

progress towards key strategic and service objectives, as demonstrated through
reporting on targets and performance;

financial and budget monitoring, including comparisons on cost and quality through
benchmarking exercises;
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Internal Audit reviews on specific services and on activities which occur across the
Council;

the work of managers within the Council, which will include self evaluation against key
performance standards, such as the Best Value 2 Framework, How Good is Our School,
Balanced Score Card, and ISO:9001;

the Annual Report and Accounts;

External inspections and quality assurance reports and recommendations for
improvement; and

External audit and the Accounts Commission observations, comments and
recommendations for improvement following Best Value and / or Financial Accounting
audit work, including the Assurance and Improvement Plan.

The Council’s external auditor, Audit Scotland, reports to the Accounts Commission, through
the Controller of Audit.  The Accounts Commission’s role is to help ensure that public money
is spent properly, efficiently and effectively. It is responsible for the audit of all local
authorities, police and fire and rescue joint boards and other similar public bodies. The
Commission operates independently of local authorities and of the Scottish Government,
and it reports in public.  Where the Accounts Commission has concerns about the operation
of a public body, it can call for further reports to investigate the issues in more detail.

In 2009/10, for the fourth consecutive year, Audit Scotland gave a qualified opinion on the
financial statements of Shetland Islands Council, with respect to an issue over the grouping
of accounts with Shetland Charitable Trust.

The 2009/10 audit work also identified a significant number of late adjustments to the
financial statements and areas of non-compliance with accounting requirements, to the
extent that Audit Scotland expressed concerns over financial stewardship.   Concerns were
also expressed over the Council’s ability to achieve savings that would enable it to live within
the financial policy framework set.

In December 2009, the Commission expressed serious concerns about Shetland Islands
Council.  The Controller of Audit therefore called for a report under Section 102(1) of the
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.  At the time, the Chair of the Accounts Commission
stated that, “the qualifications may be symptoms of deeper problems at the Council.  Bearing
in mind the Council’s duties to deliver best value to local people we have decided to seek
further evidence from Audit Scotland on how the Council is being run”.

This led to the Accounts Commission holding a public hearing on 28 and 29 June 2010,
where a wide range of areas for improvement were discussed in respect of the Council’s
governance arrangements.  The Hearing provided an opportunity for the Commission to hear
at first hand from the Council on how it was addressing the concerns raised by Audit
Scotland.

The recommendations from the Public Hearing, as set out in a Report by the Controller of
Audit, are set out below in full.
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Recommendations

The Commission makes the following recommendations to Shetland Islands Council:

The Council must put in place a comprehensive programme of improvements as a matter of
urgency to address the issues we have identified. The programme should set clear
objectives, milestones and timescales for delivery.

This programme of improvements should ensure that:

the Council can develop the leadership, governance and strategic direction it requires;

there is the basis for effective working relationships among councillors and between
councillors and officers;

all procedures for decision-making are robust and transparent, and can command public
confidence;

the Council has the capacity to deliver its financial strategy.

In particular, the programme of improvements should address the following specific
recommendations:

a) The Council should establish a comprehensive programme of training and development
to be undertaken by all councillors and senior officers to enable them to understand
how to perform effectively in their roles and how to demonstrate the value of good
governance through their conduct. This programme should ensure that:

 councillors, in particular those holding positions with additional responsibilities, are
able to develop clear and authoritative strategic leadership;

 councillors are able to distinguish appropriately the requirements of their separate
duties as local representatives and corporate leaders;

 mutual trust and respect is established among and between councillors and  officers
for their respective roles;

 senior officers establish a strong and effective commitment to meet their strategic
corporate responsibilities.

b)  The Council should review its approach to governance, and ensure that rigorous
systems are in place to support clear and transparent decision-making, such as formal
recording of meetings and routine systems for the dissemination of decisions and
information to staff and the public.

c)  The Council should agree effective procedures for engaging with the local community
and understanding its needs and expectations, and put these procedures on a
systematic basis.
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d)  The Council should improve the way it develops clear, coherent messages to
communicate with the local community, and take steps to improve the way it conducts
its relationship with the media and recognises the media’s legitimate interest in Council
matters.

e)  The Council should develop a systematic approach to engaging with the wider local
government community, ensuring regular attendance at meetings of professional and
representative bodies, and learning from good practice.

f)  Councillors and senior officers should work together to improve the management
information available to councillors, to enhance the capacity and commitment to deliver
robust appraisal of policy choices, and thereby help to ensure that councillors are
supported to develop the skills to discharge their scrutiny role rigorously.

g)  Councillors should work together to ensure that they have a shared understanding of
the requirements of the Code of Conduct and other relevant guidance for the way they
approach the Council’s business.

h)  The Council should review the way in which it advises councillors on the issue of their
interests, and ensure that it is able to explain coherently and publicly the way in which
councillors are expected to approach recurring issues such as the role of councillors as
trustees of Shetland Charitable Trust.

i)  The Council should ensure that senior officers, particularly the relevant statutory
officers, are able fully to advise councillors on their obligations.

j)  The Council should establish rigorous processes to ensure that it can put its use of
resources on a footing that is consistent with implementing and sustaining its financial
strategy, and demonstrate that it can deliver services in a way which achieves Best
Value.

k)  The Council should address the weaknesses in its finance function to ensure that it
complies with good practice and relevant objective standards, and provides appropriate
information to allow councillors to exercise robust strategic budget management.

l)  The Council should ensure that the qualification of its accounts in relation to the
accounting treatment of the Shetland Charitable Trust is resolved in time for the audit of
the financial statements for 2010/11.

m)  The Council should ensure that robust and transparent procedures are established and
followed for the creation and filling of all posts, and the performance management and
appraisal of all staff.

A full copy of the Findings and Recommendations can be accessed on the following web
link.

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/docs/local/2010/ac_100816_shetland_findings.pdf

The Council was required to put in place an Improvement Plan, to establish a
comprehensive programme of improved governance to address all the concerns raised.  The
Chief Executive, appointed in July 2010, put together the Corporate Improvement Action
Plan and this was approved by the Council in November 2010.
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The Council acknowledges the weaknesses which were identified in the Council’s
governance arrangements and welcomes the clarity from the external scrutiny of what is
required to change to ensure that the Council works towards best practice. Considerable
work has been done in 2010/11 to address this and significant progress has been made.

As at June 2011, a significant number of items in the Corporate Improvement Action Plan
have been fully implemented and the Council continues to make good progress in other
areas.  Audit Scotland, on behalf of the Accounts Commission, continue a watching brief on
progress and will formally undertake a review of progress culminating in a report at the end
of 2011.  Both the Single Outcome Agreement and the Corporate Plan have been refreshed
and updated.  Work has been done to ensure that there is consistency of message with
regard to the strategic direction, influencing services on the ground and for all staff
throughout the organisation.   More focused performance measures and targets have been
set, moving away from measuring how we do things to challenging the difference which the
service or activity actually makes to people’s lives.

In February 2011, the Council identified significant savings, in the order of £9 million, to
achieve a balanced revenue budget and set the Council Tax within the financial policy
framework.  To date, £5.1 million of ongoing revenue savings have been secured. Similarly,
significant adjustments to the Capital Programme were agreed, to reduce the total spend by
£5 million in 2011/12 in line with a more affordable draw on reserves.   This work was done
through a Member / Officer Working Group, focused on financial resources and led by the
Leader and Chief Executive.  The process demonstrated the Council’s ability to work
together to reach strategic solutions to some long standing matters.

Internal and external data indicates that the Council provides high quality services to the
community. There remain concerns, for some service areas, about the cost of providing
those services and a real focus has begun on identifying ways of making savings, ideally
from doing our work more efficiently and comparing what we do with other areas.

Significant challenges have been addressed in balancing the services which local
communities would like to see with an affordable and efficient level of service, such as with
the debates on the school estate and transport links.

The arrangements in place for the management of the Council’s investments, through
unitised products and cash investments are robust and risk-based.  The portfolio is split by
category of investment, and by value of investment, to ensure that the risks are spread
across funds, investment type and fund managers.  The arrangements are subject to an
external quality assurance and scrutiny check through Hymans Robertson.

During the 10/11 financial year, Audit Scotland, the Council’s External Auditors, have raised
specific concerns by letter on the following items:

the Council’s state of readiness with regard to adopting the International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS); and
potential internal control weaknesses with regard to contracts and procurement.

The Council has commissioned external assistance to ensure that the Council addresses all
aspects of the IFRS and the Final Accounts to 31 March 2011 are prepared in accordance
with this guidance.
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The Head of Capital Programme has drawn up an Action Plan to address the concerns
raised by Audit Scotland.  In addition, detailed analysis has been done on expenditure
incurred during 2010/11 to confirm that no legislative or policy breaches have occurred. The
raised awareness of legal and policy requirements relating to procurement, which also came
about from Internal Audit work, and the improved systems and procedures which are now
being developed and implemented, will go some way towards ensuring that any risk of
internal control weaknesses are minimised, or avoided in the future.  This is an area of work
that the Council will continue to work hard at to make sure that all the relevant law,
regulations and policies are followed, through an updated strategy, improved guidance and
training.

The Internal Audit work programme has been completed, with some minor carry forward of
work into the 2011/12 financial year.   A programme of cross Council corporate audits has
been particularly effective in identifying and addressing areas of high strategic risk, such as
procurement and contracts.   This is an increasingly effective tool in ensuring effective
governance and strong internal controls.  As a result of their work, improved practices have
been addressed by the Corporate Management Team with regard to the application of the
Council’s Standing Orders for Tenders and Contracts; the Relocation Policy and absence
management.

Specifically with regard to the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial control
arrangements, the Council’s Service Manager Internal Audit states in his annual report for
2010/11 that managers had generally undertaken to rectify issues through agreed action
plans to a satisfactory degree.

However, in relation to the key issues identified in the original review of Remote Working,
progress had not been in accordance with original timescales. In addition the follow up audit
of Economic Development identified that some key issues had not been fully resolved in
relation to whitefish quotas, VAT and other tax matters. With effect from 2010/11 Internal
Audit introduced Corporate Reviews covering specific topics across the Council. The
contracts review identified a number of issues of concern and these have been taken
forward and were subject to a recent report to Council.  Absence Management was a further
area where compliance with policy was poor. Communication has been issued in relation to
this.

Risk Registers throughout the Council are still not fully completed although progress has
been made in the last year. Completion of these is important to fully assess risks faced by
the Council.

Internal Audit concluded that the Council’s system of internal control was generally adequate
and effective to provide reasonable assurance that the assets were safeguarded, waste or
inefficiency was avoided, reliable financial information was produced and that value for
money was continuously sought. This assumed that issues identified and agreed are or have
been addressed.

The Council identified four entities that it treats as “associates” and has included them within
its Group Accounts.  Two of these entities, the Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board
and the Shetland Transport Partnership (Zetrans) are operated by the officers of the Council
using the systems of the Council and are therefore effectively covered by its systems of
internal financial control.  The other two entities, the Northern Joint Police Board and
Highlands and Islands Fire Board, are operated by Highland Council and so the Council’s
influence over their systems of internal financial control is limited to the involvement of the
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members that represent the Council on these boards.  The Council also identified the
Shetland Development Trust as an entity to be included in its Group Accounts as a
“subsidiary” as its trustee is the Council.  The activities of the Trust are now effectively run
through the Council via its Development Committee and Economic Development Unit.
However, the Trust is still currently accounted for as a separate entity using systems outside
the scope of the Council’s internal audit process.

Significant Governance Issues

The system of governance can provide only reasonable (and not absolute) assurance that
assets are safeguarded, the transactions are authorised and properly recorded, that material
errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period and
that all the significant risks impacting on the achievement of our objectives have been
mitigated.
Work continues apace to address the key improvements required to develop and implement
more effective governance arrangements for Shetland Islands Council.  Some key strategic
actions are highlighted below.

Audit Qualification and Non-Compliance Issues.  Additional resources have been brought
in to address the specific concerns on the application of accounting regulations.
Shetland islands Council recognises the need to resolve the issue of grouping of
accounts with the Shetland Charitable Trust.  However, it has not been possible to
prepare the 2010/11 Accounts as a group and the Council regrets that the qualification
will continue into a fifth year.  The Council is, however, working [closely with the Shetland
Charitable Trust] to resolve the situation.  The Shetland Charitable Trust is in a process
of renewing the composition of the Trust and when that work is complete it will be
possible to reassess the relationship between the Council and the Trust, for accounting
purposes.  It is envisaged that this work will be completed in time for the preparation of
the 2012/13 Final Accounts.

Clear Common Purpose.   A process of “scenario planning” what Shetland might look like
in 20 years is being developed with a wide range of local people.  From this, the Council
will develop a “clear, common purpose” around which future plans will be built.

Decision Making Processes.  A new committee structure has been implemented with the
core documents to support that work approved in May 2011.  With a more transparent
decision making process in place, it is hoped that the number of referrals to the
Standards Commission will decrease, as the community builds confidence in Council
decisions.

Financial Sustainability.   Work continues to put a focus on managing the cost of services
downwards, seeking more efficient ways of delivering services, linked with a review of the
policy on reserves.

Communications and Community Engagement.  A clear, consistent and common
approach to communicating within the Council and with the local community, and seeking
their views as to how we do our work, is being developed.

Financial Monitoring.  Forward focused and analytical budgetary reports, to Corporate
Management Team and Council Members will be developed from July 2011.
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Asset Strategy.  A comprehensive asset strategy, to make more efficient use of public
sector buildings across partner agencies and promote dispersed ways of working, will be
in place by December 2011.

Workforce.  The Council’s workforce strategy is being developed, alongside key policy
updates including: recruitment; competency; and the code of conduct.

Management Review.  The Council has approved a new management structure, to
support the Chief Executive in managing services on behalf of the Council.  The structure
is based on five strategic director positions for: children; community care; development;
infrastructure; and corporate services.    The process of recruitment will take place in the
summer of 2011 and, from a financial perspective, has an objective to save £1 million per
annum by reducing the overall number of management posts across the Council by
fifteen.

Conclusion

The difficulties surrounding the governance arrangements, risks and internal controls in
Shetland Islands Council have been well documented over the past year.   Activity over the
last six months has demonstrated the Council’s capacity to work together to address the
weaknesses and put in place modern, appropriate and robust structures, systems and
procedures to make Shetland Islands Council “fit for purpose” in delivering all that is
expected of modern local government.   It is a challenge, and will continue to be so for the
next eighteen months as the new ways of working bed in.  While the corporate
improvements are made, we are reassured that the level of service at the front line continues
to be delivered to the local community.

Significant corporate risks have been identified, but plans are in place to mitigate those risks
and implement improvements to how the Council operates, at all levels.   Regular progress
reports are presented to Council Members on the Corporate Improvement Action Plan.    For
core services and systems, robust arrangements are in place and are operating as planned;
exceptions and non-performance are highlighted for action.

We propose over the coming year to continue to take steps to address all the improvement
actions identified; we are confident that Shetland Islands Council has turned the corner in its
approach and attitude to ensuring effective governance arrangements are in place.  We look
forward to the Accounts Commission follow up later in 2011, to help us assess our progress.

There is a common saying that an organisation is only as good as the staff who work there.
Shetland Islands Council is no different in that respect and we pay them thanks for their hard
work, dedication and commitment to the public services they provide to this community.
More specifically, we thank the staff who have worked hard to prepare and present this set
of Accounts.

Overall, we consider the governance and internal control environment provides reasonable
and objective assurance that any significant risks impacting on the achievement of our
principal objectives will be identified and actions taken to avoid or mitigate their impact.

Hazel Sutherland CPFA Alistair Buchan

Head of Finance Chief Executive
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Remuneration Report

Introduction

The remuneration report is set out in accordance with the Local Government Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 1985 (as amended by the Local Authority (Scotland) Amendment
Regulations 2011 (SSI No. 2011/64)).  These Regulations require various disclosures on the
remuneration and pension benefits of senior councillors and employees.

All information disclosed in the tables in this Remuneration Report was audited by Audit
Scotland. The other sections of the Remuneration Report were reviewed by Audit Scotland
to ensure that they are consistent with the financial statements.

From 2011/12 the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK (the Code) will
require the disclosure of exit packages. This disclosure has been included in the
remuneration report for 2010/11.

Remuneration arrangements of Senior Councillors

The remuneration of councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004
(Remuneration) Regulations 2007 (SSI No. 2007/183). The Regulations provide for the
grading of councillors for the purposes of remuneration arrangements, as either the
Convener of the Council, senior councillors or councillors. A senior councillor is a councillor
who holds a significant position of responsibility in the Council’s political management
structure, usually referred to as the Chair or Vice-Chair of a committee, sub-committee or
board.

When determining the level of remuneration for councillors the Scottish Ministers consider
the recommendations of the Scottish Local Authority Remuneration Committee (SLARC).
SLARC is an advisory Non-Departmental Public Body set up in 2005 to advise Scottish
Ministers on the remuneration, allowances and expenses incurred by local authority
councillors.

The salary that is to be paid to the Convener of the Council is set out in the amended
Regulations SSI 2008/415 which came into effect on 10 February 2009. For 2010/11 the
salary for the Convener of Shetland Islands Council was £27,057.96. It was confirmed that
Shetland Islands Council could apply the remuneration payable for a Civic Head to the
position of Vice-Convener. For 2010/11 the salary for the Vice-Convener was £20,293.92

The Regulations also set out the remuneration that may be paid to senior councillors and the
total number of senior councillors the Council may have. The maximum yearly amount that
may be paid to a senior councillor is 75 per cent of the total yearly amount payable to the
Leader of the Council. The total yearly amount payable by the Council for remuneration of all
of its senior councillors shall not exceed £164,376.  The Council is able to exercise local
flexibility in the determination of the precise number of senior councillors and their salary
within these maximum limits.

The nine senior councillor positions are:

Chair of Services Committee
Chair of Infrastructure Committee
Chair of Audit and Scrutiny Committee
Chair of Development
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Chair of the following sub-committees or boards:

-  Shetland College / Train Shetland
-  Inter Island Ferries
-  Harbour
-  Planning; and
-  Licensing.

As the Vice-Convener is also the Chair of Development only one additional remuneration
(that which would have been payable to a Civic Head) was paid in respect of these two
positions in 2010/11.  Similarly, the Chair of Planning is also the Vice-Convener of the
Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board so again only one responsibility allowance was
paid in 2010/11, in respect of the latter position, and that additional remuneration was paid
by the Board.

In 2010/11, excluding the Convener and the Vice-Convener, Shetland Islands Council
therefore had eight senior councilors and the additional remuneration paid to these
councillors totalled £144,958.

The Regulations also permit the Council to pay contributions or other payments as required
to the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of those councillors who elect to
become councillor members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

The original policy, following the regulations, which encompasses the salaries of all elected
members including the Convener, Vice-Convener and senior councillors was agreed at a
meeting of the full Council on 8 February 2007, in a Report entitled Review of Committee
and Decision Making Structures, and is available at the web address below.

http://www.shetland.gov.uk/coins/submissiondocuments.asp?submissionid=5835

The scheme was updated on 7 March 2011 to reflect amendments to the Committee
Structure, including the positions which attract special responsibility allowances.

http://www.shetland.gov.uk/coins/submissiondocuments.asp?submissionid=11923

Remuneration of Conveners and Vice-Conveners for Joint Boards

In addition to the senior councillors of the Council the Regulations also set out the
remuneration payable to councillors with the responsibility of a Convener or a Vice-Convener
of a Joint Board such as the Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board. The Regulations
require the remuneration to be paid by the Council of which the Convener or Vice-Convener
(as the case may be) is a member. The Council is also required to pay any pension
contributions arising from the Convener or Vice-Convener being a member of the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

The Vice-Convener of the Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board is also a senior
councillor of Shetland Islands Council.

The Council is reimbursed by the Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board for the
additional remuneration paid to the councillor from being the Vice-Convener of the Joint
Board.
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Remuneration of Senior Employees

Remuneration is the term used to describe the total payments made to staff and will include
salary payments and allowances such as distant islands allowance and statutory duty
allowances.

The salary of senior employees is set by reference to national arrangements. The Scottish
Joint Negotiating Committee (SJNC) for Local Authority Services sets the salaries for the
Chief Executives of Scottish Local Authorities.  The Full Council on 24 June 2010 approved
payment in excess of the rate set by the SNJC due to the need to appoint an interim Chief
Executive.  Remuneration for interim appointments are unavoidably higher than standard
rates. Circular CO/144 sets the amount of salaries for the Chief Executives of Scottish Local
Authorities  for the period 2008 to 2011. The salaries of the Executive Directors and Heads
of Service are based on a fixed percentage of the Chief Executive’s salary for Shetland
Islands Council, as detailed in circular CO/144, in three bandings. Executive Directors
receive 93% (maximum point of 6 point salary range) of the amount of the Chief Executive’s
salary.  Heads of Service fall into two bandings, to reflect their level of responsibility, at 75%
(maximum point of 10 point salary range) and 65% (maximum point of 8 point salary range)
of the Chief Executive’s salary. These arrangements were agreed through approval of
Report  “SIC Staff Organisational Change Proposals” at a meeting of the Full Council on 17
May 2000 and updated through the Organisational Update and Change Report at a meeting
of the full Council on 13 April 2006.   Four Heads of Service holding the named statutory
posts also receive an annual allowance to reflect their specific duties, ranging from £5,000 -
£8,000 per annum.  This was agreed through approval of Report “Head of Services Salaries”
at a meeting of the Full Council on 18 February 2009.

The senior employees of the Council are those who form the Council’s Corporate
Management Team, those who report directly to the chief executive and those who hold
certain statutory positions, namely:

Chief Executive
Executive Director, Education and Social Care
Executive Director, Infrastructure
Assistant Chief Executive
Head of Service Finance, being the Chief Financial Officer
Head of Service Legal, being the Chief Legal Officer
Head of Service Schools, being the Chief Educational Officer
Service Manager Social Work, being the Chief Social Work Officer
Head of Service, Economic Development
Head of Service, Capital Programmes

Other benefits received by senior employees are an essential car user allowance and some
have the provision of a mobile phone/blackberry.  These benefits are currently being
reviewed.
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General Disclosure by pay band (paragraph 4 of the Schedule)

The Regulations require the Remuneration Report to provide information on the number of
persons whose remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be disclosed in
bands of £5,000.

Remuneration Bands 2010/11 2009/10
£50,000 - £54,999 41 58
£55,000 - £59,999 29 35
£60,000 - £64,999 17 12
£65,000 - £69,999 14 15
£70,000 - £74,999 15 11
£75,000 - £79,999 5 1
£80,000 - £84,999 2 1
£85,000 - £89,999 0 0
£90,000 - £94,999 3 0
£95,000 - £99,999 0 0
£100,000 - £104,999 2 0
£105,000 - £109,999 0 0
£110,000 - £114,999 0 0
£115,000 - £119,999 0 0
£120,000 - £124,999 0 0
£125,000 - £129,999 0 0
£130,000 - £134,999 2 0
£135,000 - £139,999 0 0
£140,000 - £144,999 1 0
Total 131 133

Number of Employees

The table above includes staff that terminated employment during 2010/11.  Many of the
staff who left received remuneration packages that included compensation for loss of office,
and because of this payment, a number of staff’s remuneration has increased in the 2010/11
year only.

Summary of Remuneration paid to Councillors

The Council paid the following salaries, allowances and expenses to all councillors (including
the senior councillors).

2010/11 2009/10
£000 £000

Salaries 357 357
Allowances 33 34
Expenses 95 93

TOTAL 485 484

The annual return of councillors’ salaries and expenses for 2010/11 is available for any
member of the public to view at Finance Services, Montfield during normal working hours.
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Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Councillors

2009-10
Salary, Fees

and
Allowances

Taxable
Expenses

(a)
Benefits other

than Cash

Total
Remuneration

2010-11

Total
Remuneration

2009-10
£ £ £ £ £

Mr A Cluness Convener 27,057.96 0.00 27,057.96 27,328.42

Mr J Simpson (b) Vice Convener & Chairperson of Development Committee 20,293.92 154.50 20,448.42 20,748.68
Mrs F Grains Chairperson - Audit & Scrutiny Committee 17,755.92 117.69 17,873.61 18,088.58
Mr L Angus Chairperson - Services Committee (Part 2010/11) 19,456.06 81.65 19,537.71 20,521.90 Chair of Services to 03/02/2011
Mrs E Fullerton Chairperson - Services Committee (Part 2010/11) 16,682.34 311.86 16,994.20 16,866.18 Chair of Services from 17/02/2011
Mr R Henderson Chairperson - Inter Island Ferries Board 17,755.92 117.84 17,873.76 18,098.66

Mrs I Hawkins Chairperson - Infrastructure Committee (Part 2009/10) 20,040.00 0.00 20,040.00 19,714.44
Chair of Infrastructure from 17/09/2009

Mr A Wishart Chairperson - Infrastructure Committee (Part 2009/10) 16,233.96 0.00 16,233.96 18,259.47 Chair of Infrastructure to 16/09/2009

Mr A Cooper Chairperson - Harbour Board 17,755.92 106.42 17,862.34 18,219.19

Mr F Robertson (c )
Chairperson - Planning Board & Vice Convener of O & S
VJB 19,278.96 470.23 19,749.19 19,777.78

Mr C Cmith Chairperson - Licencing Sub-Committee 17,755.92 0.00 17,755.92 17,979.86
Mr A Hughson Chairperson - Shetland College/Train Shetland Mgmt 17,755.92 0.00 17,755.92 17,987.74

Councillor Name Designation

2010-11

Notes

Notes:   a)  Taxable Expenses – Telephone Line Rental/Broadband
              b)  Mr J Simpson only receives one senior councillor payment even though he holds two positions.

  c)  Mr F Robertson only receives one senior councillor payment even though he holds two positions.  The position of
     Vice-Convener of the Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board attracts a payment of £3,405 per annum, which
     is included in the salary figure detailed above but is reimbursed to the Council by the Board.
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Remuneration of Senior Employees of the Council

2009/10

Salary, Fees
and

Allowances
Taxable

Expenses (a)

Compensation
for Loss of

Employment (e)

Benefits
other than

in Cash

Total
Remuneration

2010/11

Total
Remuneration

2009/10
£ £ £ £ £ £

M Goodlad Chief Executive 0.00 16,662.03 Terminated Employment 31/05/2009
Chief Executive - Full Yr Remn 09/10 £98,887.50 0.00

D Clark Chief Executive 0.00 73,476.79 Employed 1/06/2009 to 24/02/2010
Chief Executive - Full Yr Remn 09/10 £98,887.50 0.00

A Buchan (b) Chief Executive from 5/07/2010 118,278.88 18,821.97 137,100.85 Commenced with SIC   05/07/2010
Chief Executive - Full Yr Remn 10/11 £141,803 0.00

H Sutherland (c) Executive Director: Education  & Social Care
93,526.36 822.00 94,348.36 77,922.00

Acting Chief Executive 09/9/09 to
18/10/09  & 25/01/10 to 08/8/10

G Greenhill Executive Director: Infrastructure 77,268.00 1,011.40 78,279.40 74,568.64
W Shannon Assistant Chief Executive 66,948.00 822.00 67,770.00 66,192.00
G Johnston Head of Service: Finance 73,713.44 822.00 27,075.42 101,610.86 71,316.96 Efficiency Retirement 31/03/2011
J Riise (d) Head of Service: Legal and Administration 72,201.12 822.00 73,023.12 73,121.95
H Budge Head of Service: Schools 72,201.12 822.00 73,023.12 71,316.96
R M Sinclair Head of Service: Capital Programme 55,000.88 822.00 55,822.88 43,964.88
J R Smith Head of Service: Organisational Development 65,172.09 822.00 65,994.09 66,745.67
N Grant Head of Service: Economic Development 65,253.00 822.00 66,075.00 64,539.00
M A Williamson Service Manager: Social Work 56,289.25 991.01 57,280.26 55,330.73

Notes (a)  Taxable Expenses  - Essential Car User Allowance & Telephone Line Rental/Broadband

Name of Senior
Official Designation

2010/11

Notes

(f)   Data has not been disclosed in respect of confidentiality agreements where such agreements were agreed prior to 7 February 2011 (the date the
amendment Regulations were laid before the Scottish Parliament).

(b)  A Buchan - Salary, Fees and Allowances,  includes SIC Secondment Allowance.  Benefits other than in cash include provided accommodation, car and
return family trips
(c)  H Sutherland Remuneration in 2010/11 includes payment of £12,803.91 in respect of Acting Chief Executive in  2009/10 & 2010/11.  The  remuneration for
H Sutherland's substantive post equated to £80,722.45 in 2010/11.
(d)  Jan Riise carries out both  Returning Officer & Deputy Returning Officer Duties.  Deputy Returning Officer Duties were carried out in 2009/10 and the
associated fee in this regard is included in the 2009/10 figure disclosed above.
(e)  Compensation for loss of Employment -  The figures detailed in this column are the Compensatory Added Years (CAYs) Lump Sum Payment paid on
termination of employment.
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Pension Benefits – Senior Councillors

The pension entitlements for senior councillors for the year to 31 March 2011 are shown in the table below, together with the contribution made by
the Council to each senior councillor during the year.

Year ending
31 March 2011

Year ending
31 March

2010
As at 31

March 2011
As at 31

March 2010
Increase /

(Decrease)
£ £ £ £ £

Pension 2,076.86 1,311.31 765.55
Lump Sum 2,079.02 1,941.86 137.16
Pension 1,636.72 986.21 650.51
Lump Sum 1,152.07 1,096.57 55.50
Pension 0.00 0.00 0.00
Lump Sum 0.00 0.00 0.00
Pension 1,317.97 776.87 541.10
Lump Sum 927.16 878.73 48.43
Pension 937.90 491.19 446.71
Lump Sum 1,146.15 968.82 177.33
Pension 1,167.92 736.00 431.92
Lump Sum 1,337.53 1,235.92 101.61
Pension 1,037.50 616.75 420.75
Lump Sum 1,267.87 1,121.04 146.83
Pension 1,135.03 743.92 391.11
Lump Sum 1,311.91 1,276.69 35.22
Pension 1,098.94 758.38 340.56
Lump Sum 1,371.09 1,336.51 34.58
Pension 1,732.47 1,102.74 629.73
Lump Sum 1,626.71 1,523.45 103.26
Pension 1,055.39 658.72 396.67
Lump Sum 1,316.75 1,223.66 93.09
Pension 1,021.09 687.34 333.75
Lump Sum 1,247.81 1,193.66 54.15

Note Para 61 of Guidance confirms "The Pension disclosure for Joint Boards for a convener or vice-convener is limited to the contribution the Board has been asked to make to that person's pension by
the Council of which the convener or vice-convener is a member.  the amount of In Year Employer Pension Contributions included in the above figures for Frank Roberteson the vice-chair of the
Orkney & Shet land VJB amount to £505.47 in 2010/11 and £471.98 in 2009/10.

Accrued Pension Benefits

Mr A Cluness Convener

Mrs F Grains

8,608.90 8,388.00

Name of
Councillor

Designation

In-Year Employer Pension
Contributions

Chairperson - Services Committee (Part 2010/11)

Chairperson - Audit & Scrutiny Committee

6,456.79 6,291.12

0.00 0.00

5,032.565,313.97

5,649.26 5,504.40

Mr J Simpson Vice-Convener & Chairperson - Development Committee

Mr R Henderson Chairperson - Inter Island Ferries Board

Mr L Angus Chairperson - Services Committee (Part 2010/11)

Mrs E Fullerton

6,212.40

Mr A Hughson Chairperson - Shetland College/Train Shetland Mgmt

Mrs I Hawkins Chairperson - Infrastructure Committee

Mr A Wishart Chairperson - Infrastructure Committee

Mr A Cooper Chairperson - Harbour Board

Mr F Robertson Chairperson - Planning Board & Vice-Convener of O & S
VJB

Mr C Cmith Chairperson - Licencing Sub-Committee

5,504.40

Chair of Services to 03/02/2011

Chair of Services from 17/02/2011

5,165.11 5,578.84

6,376.06 6,041.86

6,182.00

Notes

Pension Scheme's age limit exceeded

Chair of Infrastructure from 17/09/2009

Chair of Infrastructure to 16/09/2009

5,649.26 5,504.40

5,649.26 5,504.40

6,133.87 5,976.48

5,649.26
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Pension Benefits - Senior Employees

Year ending 31
March 2011

Year ending 31
March 2010

As at 31
March 2011

As at 31
March 2010

Increase
(Decrease)

£ £ £ £ £
ER 2,564.81 Pension 11,571.20 (11,571.20)
Strain Lump Sum 33,904.00 (33,904.00)

David Clark Chief Executive ER 11,294.99 Pension
Strain Lump Sum

A Buchan Chief Executive ER 14,066.63 Pension Accrued Pension Benefits held with OIC
Strain Lump Sum
ER 29,960.93 23,901.04 Pension 26,373.73 23,851.31 2,522.42
Strain Lump Sum 70,405.91 67,383.22 3,022.69
ER 24,609.51 22,772.56 Pension 2,658.30 1,307.10 1,351.20
Strain Lump Sum 246.16 234.82 11.34
ER 21,322.54 20,264.76 Pension 17,086.64 15,584.20 1,502.44
Strain Lump Sum 44,563.17 43,485.16 1,078.01
ER 22,995.71 21,853.36 Pension 27,182.57 25,357.24 1,825.33
Strain 155,711.86 Lump Sum 74,327.60 72,547.99 1,779.61
ER 22,995.71 21,853.36 Pension 23,436.23 21,649.85 1,786.38
Strain Lump Sum 62,632.58 61,143.11 1,489.47
ER 20,640.82 21,007.46 Pension 16,759.13 15,472.57 1,286.56
Strain Lump Sum 50,277.40 46,417.71 3,859.69
ER 20,782.81 19,752.36 Pension 7,341.67 6,102.64 1,239.03
Strain Lump Sum 15,497.74 15,123.07 374.67
ER 17,527.95 13,374.32 Pension 14,300.26 10,286.21 4,014.05
Strain Lump Sum 37,398.75 28,744.24 8,654.51

A Williamson Chief Social Work Off icer ER 17,881.86 16,859.42 Pension 21,107.49 19,627.71 1,479.78
Strain Lump Sum 57,726.70 56,161.04 1,565.66

Total 368,496.33 195,498.44 569,322.03 575,954.39 (6,632.36)
Notes a)

               b)

Pension
Lump Sum

56.90
0.00

The "strain" costs detailed are the cost to the pension fund (which requires to be met upfront by the general fund) for allowing staff to ret ire early with an unreduced LGPS pension & lump sum.

Head of Legal & Administration has pension benefits arising from his Returning Off icer Duties in respect of Local Government and Scottish Parlimentary Elections.  A single disclosure of the
pension benefits is detailed above and detailed below is the pension benefits associated with Returning Off icer duties.

  680.98
1,588.88

As at 31 March 2010
£

   624.08
1,588.88

As at 31 March 2011
£

Increase (Decrease)
£

Accrued Pension Benefits
Returning Officer

M Goodlad Chief Executive

Name of
Senior Official

Designation
Accrued Pension Benefits

Executive Director:
Infrastructure

In-Year Employer Pension
Contributions

R M Sinclair  Head of Service: Capital
Programme

H Budge Head of Service: Schools

N R J Grant Head of Service: Economic
Development

H Sutherland Executive Director: Education
& Social Care

G Greenhill

W Shannon Assistant Chief Executive

Head of Service: Finance

J Riise Head of Service: Legal and
Administration

G Johnston

Notes

Eff iciency Retirement 31/03/2011

Includes Returning Off icer Pension Benefits

Terminated employment 31/05/2009, pension
benefits preserved

Acting Chief Executive from 09/09/09 to 18/10/09
and 25/01/10 to 08/08/10

Scheme memebership less than 2 years - no
pension benefits due.
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Pension Benefits

Pension benefits for councillors and local government employees are provided through the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).   The pension scheme is a funded pension
scheme consisting of payment from members of the scheme as well as the Employer.

Councillors’ pension benefits are based on career average pay. Councillors pay for each year
or part year ending 31 March (other than the pay in the final year commencing 1 April) is
increased by the increase in the cost of living, as measured by the appropriate index (or
indices) between the end of that year and the last day of the month in which their membership
of the scheme ends. The total of the revalued pay is then divided by the period of membership
to calculate the career average pay. This is the value used to calculate the pension benefits.

For Local Government employees this is a final salary pension scheme. This means that
pension benefits are based on the final year’s pay and the number of years that the person has
been a member of the scheme.

The scheme’s normal retirement age for both councillors and employees is 65.

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from
scheme members being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give
more equality between the cost and benefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2009
contributions rates were set at 6% for all non manual employees.

The tiers and members contribution rates for 2010/11 remain at
the 2009/10 rates, (due to negative increases in the costs of living
index for 2010/11) and are as follows:

Contribution Rate
2010/11

Contribution Rate
2009/10

% %

Whole time pay:
    On earnings up to and including £18,000 5.5 5.5
    On earnings above £18,000 and up to £22,000 7.25 7.25
    On earnings above £22,000 and up to £30,000 8.5 8.5
    On earnings above £30,000 and up to £40,000 9.5 9.5
    On earnings above £40,000 12 12

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for
the job, with actual contributions paid on actual pay earned.

There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute)
pension for lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees
a pension based on 1/60th of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service. (Prior
to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a pension based on 1/80th and a lump sum based on
3/80th of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service).

The value of the accrued benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the
person will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on
account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute pension
entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation.
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The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a
consequence of their total Local Government service, and not just their current appointment.
The figures will also reflect any transfer of pension benefits from another pension fund or
scheme.

Joseph G Simpson …………………………………………………..  27 September 2011
Leader

Alistair Buchan ………………………………………………………..  27 September 2011
Chief Executive
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Council’s Responsibility

The Council is required to:

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that the proper officer has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs;  in this
Council the proper officer is the Head of Finance;
manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and to
safeguard its assets;
(acknowledge) the audited accounts must be laid before a meeting of the authority (i.e.
the Council under SIC/Scheme of Administration and Delegations par. 2.1.3 sub par. 1
(G)) within two months of receipt of the audit certificate.

The Head of Finance’s Responsibilities

The Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

It is the responsibility of the Head of Finance to sign, date and submit the un-audited
statement of accounts to the authority and Controller of Audit by 30 June.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Head of Finance has:

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
complied with the local authority Code.

The Head of Finance has also:

kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the
authority at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2011.

……………………………………………………..
Hazel Sutherland CPFA.
Head of Finance
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Movement in Reserves Statement

General
Fund

Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Receipts

Reserve /
Capital
Funds

Capital
Grants

Unapplied

Other
Revenue
Statutory

Funds

Total
Usable

Reserves
Unusable
Reserves

Total
Authority
Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 31 March 2009 (70) 0 (114,308) 0 (180,329) (294,707) (222,090) (516,797)
Movement in reserves during
2009/10:
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of
services 34,949 (458) 34,491 34,491
Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure 0 21,637 21,637
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure 34,949 (458) 0 0 0 34,491 21,637 56,128
Adjustments between accounting
basis & funding basis under
regulations (Note 7) (14,662) 755 0 0 0 (13,907) 13,907 0
Net Increase/Decrease before
Transfers to Statutory Reserves

20,287 297 0 0 0 20,584 35,544 56,128
Net Transfers to/(from) Other
Statutory Reserves (20,378) (297) (4,273) 25,304 356 (356) 0

(Increase)/Decrease in 2009/10 (91) 0 (4,273) 0 25,304 20,940 35,188 56,128

Balance as at 31 March 2010 (161) 0 (118,581) 0 (155,025) (273,767) (186,902) (460,669)

General
Fund

Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Receipts

Reserve /
Capital
Funds

Capital
Grants

Unapplied

Other
Revenue
Statutory

Funds

Total
Usable

Reserves
Unusable
Reserves

Total
Authority
Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance as at 31 March 2010 (161) 0 (118,581) 0 (155,025) (273,767) (186,902) (460,669)
Movement in reserves during
2010/11:
(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of
services 3,428 9,943 0 0 0 13,371 0 13,371
Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure (66,433) (66,433)
Total Comprehensive Income and
expenditure 3,428 9,943 0 0 0 13,371 (66,433) (53,062)
Adjustments between accounting
basis & funding basis under
regulations (Note 7)

16,745 (9,454) 0 (171) 0 7,120 (7,120) 0
Net Increase/Decrease before
Transfers to Statutory Reserves

20,173 489 0 (171) 0 20,491 (73,553) (53,062)
Net Transfers to/(from) Other
Statutory Reserves (23,156) (489) 4,224 0 3,615 (15,806) 15,806 0

(Increase)/Decrease in 2010/11 (2,983) 0 4,224 (171) 3,615 4,685 (57,747) (53,062)

Balance as at 31 March 2011 (3,144) 0 (114,357) (171) (151,410) (269,082) (244,649) (513,731)

Total usable and unusable reserves are shown within disclosure notes 21 and 22 respectively.
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for year ended 31
March 2011

2009/10 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
Net Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000

50,933 Education Services 56,104 (8,304) 47,800
1,523 Housing Services 8,779 (5,677) 3,102

(2,059) Housing Revenue Account 15,578 (6,758) 8,820
6,915 Cultural and Related Services 7,706 (877) 6,829
8,551 Environmental Services 9,094 (2,681) 6,413
2,196 Fire Services 2,197 0 2,197

13,321 Roads and Transport Services 21,394 (9,847) 11,547
11,847 Trading Services 28,272 (17,341) 10,931

1,972 Police Services 1,461 0 1,461
10,471 Planning and Development Services 14,765 (4,796) 9,969
26,744 Social Work 40,887 (8,384) 32,503

2,370 Central Services to the Public 2,436 (310) 2,126
6,649 Corporate and Democratic Core 7,572 0 7,572
2,268 Non Distributed Costs (28,826) 0 (28,826)

143,701 Cost of Services 187,419 (64,975) 122,444
(44) Other operating income 9 (327)

(2,784)
Financing and Investment income and
expenditure 10 106

(106,382)
Taxation and non-specific grant
income 11 (108,852)

34,491 Deficit on Provision of Services 13,371

(20,308)
(Surplus) on revaluation of Property,
Plant and Equipment assets (15,540)

(43,410)
(Surplus) on revaluation of available for
sale financial assets 22 (19,382)

85,355
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension
assets/liabilities 33 (31,511)

21,637
Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure (66,433)

56,128
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure (53,062)

Notes

      - 131 -      



Shetland Islands Council Accounts 2010/11 37

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2011

1 April 31 March 31 March
2009 2010 2011
£000 £000 Notes £000

350,488 367,468 Property, Plant & Equipment 12 374,529
1,016 689 Intangible Assets 13 436

199,744 218,959 Long term Investments 14 222,739
18 13 Long Term Debtors 14 1,066

551,266 587,129 Long Term Assets 598,770

0 0 Short Term Investments 14 103
3,465 3,609 Inventories 15 4,023

11,803 10,349 Short Term Debtors 16 8,516
26,459 20,906 Cash and Cash equivalents 17 7,273

654 1,245 Assets held for Sale 18 206
42,381 36,109 Current Assets 20,121

(17,818) (15,396) Short Term Creditors 19 (14,037)
(17,818) (15,396) Current Liabilities (14,037)

(53) (4) Provisions 20 (10)
(58,979) (147,169) Other Long Term Liabilities 33 (91,113)
(59,032) (147,173) Long Term Liabilities (91,123)

516,797 460,669 Net Assets 513,731

(294,707) (273,767) Usable Reserves 21 (269,082)
(222,090) (186,902) Unusable Reserves 22 (244,649)
(516,797) (460,669) Total Reserves (513,731)

The unaudited accounts were issued on 26 July 2011 and the audited accounts were
authorised for issue on 27 September 2011.

…………………………………………………………… Date: 27 September 2011
Hazel Sutherland CPFA
Head of Finance
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Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31 March 2011

Refer to note 17 for an analysis of the components of cash and cash equivalents.

2009/10 2010/11 2010/11
£000 £000 £000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows

(99,097) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (102,976)
(75,727) Other operating cash payments (88,966)
(4,168) Precepts Paid (3,407)

(178,992) (195,349)
Cash Inflows

3,706 Housing Rents 2,711
0 Trading 551

84,694 RSG 86,894
676 DWP Grants 769

30,243 Sales of goods and services 39,561
10,256 Other operating cash receipts 3,575
13,679 Other Government Grant 12,220
7,857 Council Tax income 8,647
9,189 NDR Income 8,672

160,300 163,600
Movement of working capital

(145) (Increase)/Decrease in Stock (414)
1,454 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 1,833

(2,449) Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors (782)
(1,140) 637

(19,832) Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities (31,112)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows

(24,578) Purchase of Fixed Assets (18,048)
(170,448) Purchase of Long Term Investments (238,884)
(195,438) Purchase of Short Term Investments (107,700)
(390,464) (364,632)

Cash Inflows
932 Sale of Fixed Assets 1,572

194,793 Sale of Long Term Investments 253,280
199,434 Sale of Short term investments 119,300

4,371 Capital Grant receipts 4,657
5,225 Interest Received & Dividends 3,302

404,755 382,111
14,291 Net Cash Inflow from Investing Activities 17,479

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
0 Cash Outflows 0
0 Cash Inflows 0
0 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 0

(5,541) NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH (13,633)

26,459 Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 April 20,906

(5,541) Net movement of Cash and Cash Equivalents during the year (13,633)

20,918 Cash & Cash Equivalent at 31 March 7,273
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Accounting adjustments made to prior year comparatives to comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11.  The Code requires that for the
first time, Local Authority accounts in 2010/11 should be prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (except in instances where the Code allows
departures), and the comparative figures for the 2008/09 and 2009/10 Balance Sheets as
well as the 2009/10 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement should be restated
from UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP) where required. The
reconciliation to IFRS from the previous UK GAAP accounts is summarised in the tables
below.
Restatement of Shetland Islands Council’s 2008/09 UK GAAP Balance Sheet on an
IFRS basis

2008/09 UK
GAAP

Balance
Sheet

Adjustment 1 -
IAS 20

Adjustment 2
- IAS 40

Adjustment 3
- IFRS 5

Adjustment 4
- IAS 19

Adjustment 5
- IAS 7

IFRS based
Balance
Sheet 1

April 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-Current Assets:
PPE - Council Dwellings 59,931 (654) 59,277
PPE - Other Land & Buildings 104,233 4,328 108,561
Investment Properties 4,328 (4,328) 0
Current Assets:
Assets Held for Sale 0 654 654
Short-Term Investments 16,506 (16,506) 0
Cash & Bank / Cash & Cash
Equivalents 9,953 16,506 26,459
Current Liabilities:
Short-Term Creditors (16,478) (1,340) (17,818)
Long-Term Liabilities:
Government Grants Deferred (12,533) 12,533 0
Reserves:
Capital Adjustment Account (258,075) (12,533) (270,608)
Accumulating Compensated Absences
Adjustment Account 0 1,340 1,340

Adjustment 1 – IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and disclosure of
Government assistance – Under IFRS accounting, Shetland Islands Council is required to
recognise all grant income in its entirety at the point at which it is received.  Therefore all
deferred government grants have been written out of the liabilities in the balance sheet,
recognised through the Income and Expenditure account and subsequently transferred
from the General Fund to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Adjustment 2 – IAS 40 Investment property – Under the strict criteria of IAS 40, Shetland
Islands Council had £4.328m of property which had to be re-categorised out of investment
property because it did not meet the IFRS requirements to be classified as such.  Instead, it
has been determined that under IFRS these assets better meet the criteria of Other Land
and Buildings and have therefore been transferred into that category.
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Adjustment 3 – IFRS 5 Assets Held for Sale – Shetland Islands Council had a number of
council houses that were in the process of being sold to tenants at 31 March 2009.  As
such, these are required to be separately disclosed under IFRS 5 under a category named
Assets Held for Sale.  This adjustment is to transfer those council houses from non-current
assets to assets held for sale under current assets.

Adjustment 4 – IAS 19 Employee Benefits – Under this IFRS accounting standard,
Councils are required to recognise a liability for all holiday pay and other entitlements that
employees had accrued at the financial year-end.  This liability reflects the difference
between the holiday entitlement earned at 31 March and the actual amount of holidays
taken.  At Shetland Islands Council, the excess of holiday entitlement earned over the
holidays actually taken by 31 March, as well as TOIL and flexi-time balances due back to
employees, has resulted in a liability of £1,340m. The Scottish Government has introduced
Statutory Mitigation for this additional cost so that its negative impact can be removed from
the General Fund and transferred to a new Accumulating Compensated Absences
Adjustment Account.  This has been reflected in the adjustment above.

Adjustment 5 – IAS 7 Cash Flow Statement – Under IFRS accounting, Shetland Islands
Council must show cash and cash equivalents as a single balance on the face of the
Balance Sheet.  Cash and cash equivalents include the bank balances, petty cash,
overdrafts (if they are integral to the cash management of the organisation) and
investments due to mature within 3 months of the balance sheet date.  Therefore an
adjustment was made to consolidate the short-term investments balance with the bank
balance as all the short-term investments would be available to Shetland Islands Council in
cash within 3 months of 31 March 2009.

Reconciliation of Shetland Islands Council’s 1 April 2009 IFRS Balance Sheet to the
2009/10 IFRS Balance Sheet

1 April
2009 IFRS

Balance
Sheet

UK GAAP
In-year

Balance
Sheet

Movements
Adjustment 1

- IAS 20
Adjustment 2 -

IAS 40
Adjustment 3 -

IFRS 5
Adjustment 4 -

IAS 19
Adjustment 5

- IAS 7

IFRS based
Balance

Sheet 31
March 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-Current Assets:
PPE - Council Dwellings 59,277 1,204 (256) 60,225
PPE - Other Land & Buildings 108,561 13,329 175 122,065
PPE - Vehicles, Furniture & Plant 37,418 (1,185) (268) 35,965
Assets Under Construction 23,323 (418) (67) 22,838
Investment Properties 0 175 (175) 0
Current Assets:
Assets Held for Sale 654 0 591 1,245
Short-Term Investments 0 (3,022) 3,022 0
Cash & Bank / Cash & Cash
Equivalents 26,459 (2,531) (3,022) 20,906
Current Liabilities:
Short-Term Creditors (17,818) 2,446 (25) (15,397)
Long-Term Liabilities:
Government Grants Deferred 0 (3,218) 3,218 0
Reserves:
Capital Adjustment Account (270,608) 15,043 (3,218) (258,783)
Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account 1,340 0 25 1,365
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Adjustment 1 – IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and disclosure of
Government assistance – Under IFRS accounting, Shetland Islands Council is required to
recognise all grant income in its entirety at the point at which it is received.  Therefore all
deferred government grants received in 2009/10 have been written out of the liabilities in
the balance sheet, recognised through the Income and Expenditure account and
subsequently transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Adjustment 2 – IAS 40 Investment property – During 2009/10, Shetland Islands Council
recognised an increase in its investment property balance. However, under IFRS, no
properties meet the criteria as being investment properties and therefore this balance has
been transferred to Other Land and Buildings.

Adjustment 3 – IFRS 5 Assets Held for Sale – Shetland Islands Council had a number of
council houses that were in the process of being sold to tenants at 31 March 2010
(£0.915m).  As such, these are required to be separately disclosed under IFRS 5 in a
category named Assets Held for Sale.  This adjustment is to transfer those council houses
from non-current assets to assets held for sale under current assets.  In addition, the
houses held for sale in the 1 April 2009 balance sheet were subsequently sold (£0.654m)
and therefore written out of this balance.  Therefore the net movement for 2009/10 was
£0.261m.  In addition, a number of Vehicles, Furniture and Plant (£0.268m) and Assets
Held for Sale (£0.067m) were re-categorised as being held for sale.

Adjustment 4 – IAS 19 Employee Benefits – Under this IFRS accounting standard,
Councils are required to recognise a liability for all holiday pay entitlement that employees
had accrued at the financial year-end.  This liability reflects the difference between the
holiday entitlement earned at 31 March and the actual amount of holidays taken.  At
Shetland Islands Council, the excess of holiday entitlement earned over the holidays
actually taken by 31 March has resulted in a liability of £1.365m. The Scottish Government
has introduced Statutory Mitigation for this additional cost so that its negative impact can be
removed from the General Fund and transferred to a new Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account.  At 31 March 2010, the holiday pay accrual was re-
calculated and was found to have increased by £0.025m.  As a result this adjustment is to
reflect the increase in the accrual, and a debit to the Accumulating Compensated Absences
Adjustment Account to reflect the increase.

Adjustment 5 – IAS 7 Cash Flow Statement – Under IFRS accounting, Shetland Islands
Council must show cash and cash equivalents as a single balance on the face of the
Balance Sheet.  Cash and cash equivalents include the bank balances, petty cash,
overdrafts (if they are integral to the cash management of the organisation) and
investments due to mature within 3 months of the balance sheet date.  At 31 March 2009
the entire balance of short term investments were considered to be cash equivalents, and
the same assessment was made at 31 March 2010.  Under UK GAAP the short-term
investment balance reduced by £3.022m during 2009/10, however under IFRS this
reduction was against the cash and cash equivalent balance, and therefore this adjustment
has been made to reflect that.
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Reconciliation of Shetland Islands Council’s 2009/10 SORP based Income and
Expenditure Account to an IFRS based Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

£000 £000
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services for year ended 31 March 2010 (SORP) 37,685

IAS 20 Adjustment - Accounting for Government Grants and disclosure of Government assistance - Recognition of
all the income received in capital grants during 2009/10 (£4.371m) offset by the reversal of the government grant
amortisation credited to service expenditure as applied under the SORP (£1.153m). (3,218)

IAS 19 Adjustment – Employee Benefits – The holiday pay accrual was re-calculated at the 2009/10 year-end and
this resulted in a net reduction of £0.015m on the liability.  This adjustment is to reflect the movement on the accrual
during the year and has resulted in a credit to the Income and Expenditure account. 25

TOTAL VALUE OF CODE (IFRS) ADJUSTMENTS (3,193)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services for year ended 31 March 2010 (Code basis) 34,492
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 General Principles

The Code specifies the applicable accounting policies for:

 selecting measurement bases for recognising assets, liabilities, gains and losses in
the statement of accounts;

 making changes to reserves;
 the minimum disclosure requirements.

A valid estimation technique can be used to derive the monetary amount (i.e. the one
that best reflects the economic reality of a transaction or event) to be recognised in the
financial statements in such circumstances when the basis of measurement for the
monetary amount cannot be applied with certainty (and the range of options is
considered to be material).

1.2 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

Changes in accounting policies are made only when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect
of transactions, other events and conditions on the authority’s financial position or
financial performance.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively i.e. in the current and
future years affected by the change, and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Prior period adjustments arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected
retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior
period. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise)
by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the
new policy had always been applied.

1.3 Accounting Conventions and Concepts

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is historical cost
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

The concept of the authority as a going concern is based on the premise that its
functions and services will continue in existence for the foreseeable future.

The concept of materiality derives from the premise that financial statements need not
be precisely accurate to represent a true and fair view. It is a matter of professional
judgement as to whether users of the accounts could come to different conclusions
about the authority’s standards of stewardship or make different economic decisions as
a result of deviations from the provisions set out in the Code.
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The accounting policies, which have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements of Shetland Islands Council, are summarised below.

a) Accruals of Income and Expenditure

(1) Recognition of Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash
payments are made or received. In particular:

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the authority transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will
flow to the authority.

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the authority can
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is
probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the authority.

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed but where
there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption,
they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received
rather than when payments are made.

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest
rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.

(2)  Recognition of Debtors and Creditors on the Balance Sheet

Where revenue and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

b)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement cash (represented by cash in hand and deposits with
financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours) and cash equivalents (investments that mature in no more than three
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value) are shown net of
bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand.
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c) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following
amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there
are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses
can be written off
amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service.

The authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, amortisation,
revaluation or impairment losses but is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue equal to loans fund principal charges (Scotland). The General Fund
is balanced by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the
two.

d)  Contingent Assets

Where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the authority a contingent asset is disclosed
in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential but not recognised in the Balance Sheet.

e)  Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 34 to the accounts but not recognized in
the Balance Sheet.  In such circumstances where:

an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the authority;
a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

f)  Employee Benefits

(1) Accumulated Absences

The Accumulated Absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise
arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences
earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at
31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund
Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

      - 141 -      



Shetland Islands Council Accounts 2010/11 47

(2) Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits (i.e. those due to be settled within 12 months of the
year-end) such as wages, salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, bonuses
and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees are recognised as an
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the
authority.

An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g.
time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at
the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the
period in which the employee takes the benefit.

The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence
occurs.

(3) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the
authority to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or
an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. These costs are charged on
an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when the authority is demonstrably committed to the
termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer
to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount
payable by the authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at
the year-end.

(4) Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the authority are members of two separate pension schemes:

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by the Scottish Government;
The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Shetland Islands
Council.
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Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees work for the authority. The arrangements for the
teachers’ scheme however mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily
be identified specifically to the authority. The scheme is therefore accounted for as
if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of
benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Education Services line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the
employer’s contributions payable to Teachers’ Pensions in the year.

(5) The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

The liabilities of Shetland Islands Council’s pension fund attributable to the
authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, projections of
earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate of
5.5% which is equivalent to the gross redemption yield on the iBoxx Sterling
Corporate AA bonds over 15 years index at the valuation date but with the
removal of recently re-rated bonds from the index.

The pension fund assets attributable to the authority are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value:

- quoted securities – current bid price;
- unquoted securities – professional estimate;
- unitised securities – current bid price;

.
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

- current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of
service earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked;

- past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year
decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years –
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non
Distributed Costs;

- interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid – debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;
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- expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund
assets attributable to the authority, based on an average of the expected
long-term return – credited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

- gains or losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions
to relieve the authority of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future
service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited or credited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs;

- actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that
arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their
assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve. Actuarial gains and losses
are shown within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

- contributions paid to the pension fund – cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted
for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the authority to the pension
fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to
the relevant accounting standards in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

This treatment requires appropriations to and from the Pension Reserve to remove
the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather
than as benefits earned by employees.

(6) Discretionary Benefits

The authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of
retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to
arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including teachers) are
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the
same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

g)  Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.
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Two types of events can be identified:

those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period whereby the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such
events;
those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period
whereby the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but
where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in
the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

h)  Exceptional Items and Prior Period Adjustments

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior
period adjustment.

Prior period adjustments that arise as a result of a change in accounting policies
or to correct a material error are applied retrospectively by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

i)  Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:

loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but
are not quoted in an active market;
available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do
not have fixed or determinable payments.

(1) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their
amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For this authority it means that the
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable
(plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan
agreement.
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On an annual basis loans and receivables are assessed for impairment.  Events
that provide objective evidence of impairment include significant financial
difficulties of the counterparty or a breach of contract.  Impairment losses and
gains or losses on derecognition are taken to the Surplus or Deficit on the
provision of services.

(2) Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument which
initially is measured and carried at fair value.

Available for sale financial assets are shown in the Balance Sheet at fair value
which is based on the unit price provided by the Council’s external fund providers.
The fund providers use the following principles when determining the unit price:

Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price;

Investments with no quoted market prices – probable realisation value
based on recent market transactions, reference to transactions that are
substantially the same and discounted cash flows.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Financial
instrument Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets.

Where assets are identified as impaired because there is a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below cost, the asset is written down and a
charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The impairment loss is
measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the
instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).

There were gains on revaluation of £19.382m as at 31 March 2011 (2010: £43.410
m) and therefore no impairment has been identified and the Council did not carry
out an impairment review.

j)  Foreign Currency Translation

Where the authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign
currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable
on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are
outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31
March 2011. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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k)  Government Grants and Contributions

Government grants, third party contributions and donations are recognised as due
to the authority and hence credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when there is reasonable assurance that the authority will
comply with any conditions attached to payment of the grants.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are
satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line
(attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has
been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the
Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

l)  Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
controlled by the authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is
capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential
will flow from the intangible asset to the authority.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the
project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate
resources being available) and the authority will be able to generate future
economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the
asset.

Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the
asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase. Research
expenditure cannot be capitalised nor expenditure on the development of websites
if the website is solely or primarily intended to promote or advertise the authority’s
goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where
the fair value of the assets held by the authority can be determined by reference to
an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the authority meets this
criterion and they are therefore held at cost less accumulated amortisation. The
depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life on a
straight-line basis to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The useful life and amortisation rate used in the
calculation of amortisation is 1 – 8 years.

An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service
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line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for
statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the
Capital Receipts Reserve.

m)  Inventories and Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average
costing formula, except for fuel which is calculated on a First in First Out (FIFO)
basis.

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services with the value of works and services received
under the contract during the financial year.

n)  Landfill Allowances Schemes

Landfill allowances, whether allocated by DEFRA or purchased from another
Waste Disposal Authority (WDA), are recognised as current assets and are initially
measured at fair value. The scheme has been placed under review in Scotland
since 2008/09 as a result of the absence of an active market for the allowance and
hence assets and liabilities are measured at nil in 2010/11. Due to the inactive
market, penalties have been suspended but not cancelled. As the authority has
not exceeded its allowance (regulation 19 of the landfill allowance scheme) there
is no potential contingent liability.

o) Leases

Operating Leases

(1) The Authority as Lessee

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of
the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g.
there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

(2) The Authority as Lessor

 Where the authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant
or equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are
made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match

      - 148 -      



Shetland Islands Council Accounts 2010/11 54

the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the
lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are
added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Finance Leases

The Council recognises a finance lease when the risks and rewards of the asset
substantially lie with the Authority. The accounting treatment of finance leases is to
recognize the asset on the Council’s balance sheet as well as a liability to
represent future principal repayments. A depreciation charge is recognised in the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement as well as an interest charge.

None of the authority’s existing leases meet the definition of a finance lease.

p)  Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit
from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11 (BVACOP). The total absorption
costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are
shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the authority’s status as a
multifunctional, democratic organisation.
Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to
employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for
Sale.

These two cost categories are defined in BVACOP and accounted for as separate
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

q)  Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(1) Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to
the authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that
maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic
benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incurred.
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(2) Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

the purchase price;
any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management;
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Assets are carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

infrastructure - held at Depreciated Historical Cost (DHC);
community assets and assets under construction are held at Historical Cost.
dwellings – fair value, determined using the basis of Existing Use Value for
Social Housing (EUV-SH);
all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for
the asset in its Existing Use Value (EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist
nature of an asset, Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) is used as an estimate
of fair value.

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both),
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued every five years.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to
recognise unrealised gains.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance
(up to the amount of the accumulated gains);
where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007
only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have
been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

(3) Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences
are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss
is recognised for the shortfall.
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Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance
(up to the amount of the accumulated gains);

where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to
the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

(4) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An
exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold
land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use
(i.e. assets under construction).

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation
of depreciation (Straight Line method):

Council Dwellings:   30 - 50 years
Other Land and Buildings:   7 - 120 years
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment:             1 - 50 years
Infrastructure:               5 – 60 years

The straight line method referred to above has been used, until an asset is either
revalued or there is additions to the asset, at which point depreciation is then
calculated over the remaining outstanding life.

Surplus assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful economic
life. The relevant economic life for surplus assets is in line with those stated above
for each category of asset.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components
whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components
are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that
would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

(5) Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
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reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell,
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to
the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they
are reclassified back to non-current assets and are valued at the lower of their
carrying amount before they were classified as Held for Sale. They are adjusted
for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised
had they not been classified as Held for Sale and adjusted for their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell (assets to be abandoned or scrapped
are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale).

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the
asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets
Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or
loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time
of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts. The balance
of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can
then only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are appropriated to the
Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital
financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

r)  Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the authority a
legal or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the authority
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in
the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each
financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic
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benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be
recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only
recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation.

The authority has entered into a low minimal risk financial guarantee for £1.831m,
which is classified as a contingent liability and hence not recognised within the
financial statements. This risk was quantified when determining the level of the
General Fund Balance.

s) Reserves

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net
charge against council tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current
assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not
represent usable resources for the authority – these reserves are explained in the
relevant policies.

t)  Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been
charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the authority has determined to meet
the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance
to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that
there is no impact on the level of council tax.

u)  Value Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable
from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from
income.

2. Accounting Standards Issued, not Adopted

As a consequence of FRS 30 relating to heritage assets the Code has introduced a
change in accounting policy to be adopted for 2011/12 and onwards.  FRS 30 requires
heritage assets to be measured at valuation and disclosed as a separate classification
on the face of the Balance Sheet. Depreciation is not required on heritage assets,
which have indefinite lives but their carrying amount should be reviewed where there is
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evidence of impairment. Heritage assets that are used by the authority for other
activities or to provide other services are operational assets and should be accounted
for as Property Plant and Equipment.

The Code states that valuations of Heritage assets may be made by any method that is
appropriate and relevant but where it is not practicable to obtain a fair value, such
assets should be measured at historical cost (Audit Scotland technical bulletin
published 23/03/11, local authority chapter). The Code gives authorities the discretion
to elect to treat community assets in the same way as Heritage assets should it believe
that valuation is a better measurement of their economic benefits and service potential,
however, this authority does not intend to take up this option in the near future.

The treatment of Heritage assets represents a change in accounting policy which would
require retrospective application for 2011/12. The authority currently classifies two
heritage museum buildings, the Croft House Museum and Bod of Gremista, as
operational buildings under Property, Plant and Equipment; these buildings will be re-
classified in 2011/12. The museums were revalued in 2010/11 and their total carrying
amount in the Balance Sheet is £1.451m. Due to the recent revaluation it is estimated
that this change in accounting policy will have no significant impact on the 2011/12
financial statements.

3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the authority has had to make
certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about
future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

a) There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local
government in general. This Council, like others, continues to face significant
financial pressures related to the general economic climate and faces specific
demographic pressures related to its unique geographical location. Despite the
recession, the Council was successful in securing a new income stream from the
new gas processing plant, based at Sullom Voe.

b) For resource planning and allocation purposes the Council has had to make
critical judgments about (a) the growing need for community care and services for
people with learning disabilities, (b) the impact on the transport system from
increases in fuel costs, (c) the risk of severe weather resulting in increases to the
winter maintenance service and (d) meeting the challenges of implementing the
“BluePrint for Education” and “Ports for the Future”.

c) Had current levels of spend been continued into next year the authority would
have been facing a budget gap of around £25 million, however, early
arrangements have been put in place to tackle this potential budget deficit. It is
envisaged that a process of staff and community engagement, working alongside
a “scenario planning” initiative, will help Councillors make difficult choices
regarding the services to be provided over the medium to longer term time frame,
however, there is insufficient evidence at this time to indicate that the assets of the
authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce
levels of service provision.
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d) One area where a long-standing issue remains unresolved is the relationship
between the Council and the Shetland Charitable Trust. The Council continues to
work closely with the Trust to resolve any issues whereby the Council could be
deemed to have the ability to control the Trust even though it does not exert actual
control. It is anticipated that the qualification issue will not be resolved before the
2012/13 accounts.

4. Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions
made by the authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are
made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant
factors, however, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results
could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. The items in the
authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2011 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

The Council’s policy states that for componentisation to occur, an individual
component of an asset must exceed 25% of the overall cost of the asset and have
a different useful life. The policy states that all assets with a Net Book Value in
excess of £1 million which were acquired, re-valued or enhanced during the year
were to be reviewed.

Of the nine assets identified for review, three were found to have the same useful
life as their individual components and the remaining six were found not to contain
any individual components in excess of 25% of the value of the asset. A test of
these remaining assets was carried out to ascertain the level of componentisation
had the policy required a value in excess of 20%, 15% and 10%.  The result of this
testing was that four assets would have been identified at 20% and an additional
asset would have been identified at 10%.

The net effect of a change in policy to 10% would be to increase the depreciation
charge by 0.66% and decrease the total Net Book Value of assets by 0.57%,
which would not be considered material for the accounts.

b) Provisions

The authority reviewed its “Equal Pay” provision based on the number of claims
settled to date. One claim remained outstanding at the end of 2009/10 and one
was received during 2010/11. The Council does not envisage any further claims
arising as a result of precedents being set by other authorities at some time in the
future. The authority believes that the two remaining cases will be resolved during
2011/12 and has increased its provision to £10,000 based on an average
settlement rate of £5,000 per case.

c) Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are
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projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to
provide the authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. The
effects on the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be
measured. For instance, a 0.5% increase in the discount rate assumption would
result in a decrease in the pension liability of £32.823m however the assumptions
interact in complex ways. During 2010/11, the authority’s actuaries advised that
the net pensions liability had decreased by £56.056m largely as a result of
estimated future payments being linked to CPI rather than RPI.

d) Arrears

At 31 March 2011, the authority had a balance on sundry debtors of £2.410m
within short term debtors for Other Entities and Individuals. A review of significant
balances suggested that an impairment of doubtful debts of 8% (£201,000) is
appropriate in the current economic climate.

Council Tax collection does not impose a significant impairment risk as historically
only 0.38% of charges levied is ever written off. It is estimated that no more than
£30,000 will eventually be written off from Council Tax charges of £7.878m levied
during 2010/11.

e) Reserves

A sensitivity analysis of the Council’s General Fund usable reserves demonstrates
that £3 million is sufficient to mitigate unanticipated expenditure or reduced
income in the current financial climate.  An estimated contingent liability of £11.4m
has been recorded for a number of outstanding legal cases and a guarantee to
Viking Energy.

5. Material Items of Income

The Council received £1.572m in capital receipts during 2010/11.  This comprised of 50
social housing dwellings for £0.810m in total and a vessel for £0.762m.

6. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Head of Finance on 26 July
2011. Events taking place after this date is not reflected in the financial statements or
notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about
conditions existing at 31 March 2011, the figures in the financial statements and notes
have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.

7. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement recognised by the authority in the year, in accordance with
proper accounting practice, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions
as being available to the authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
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2010/11
General

Fund
Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Capital
Grants

Unapplied

Movement
Unusable
Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (11,598) (1,532) 0 0 13,130
Revaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipment (1,933) (10,986) 0 0 12,919
Amortisation of intangible assets (525) 0 0 0 525
Capital grants and contributions applied 4,486 0 0 0 (4,486)
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

(335) (909) 0 0 1,244

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 635 1,969 0 0 (2,604)
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 618 1,195 0 0 (1,813)
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

171 0 0 (171) 0

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 0 0 0 0 0

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

764 808 (1,572) 0 0

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0 0 1,572 0 (1,572)
Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

13,961 0 0 0 (13,961)

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year 10,583 1 0 0 (10,584)

Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account:
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in
the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(82) 0 0 0 82

Total Adjustments 16,745 (9,454) 0 (171) (7,120)

Usable Reserves
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2009/10 Comparative Figures
General

Fund
Balance

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Capital
Grants

Unapplied

Movement
Unusable
Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (12,099) (1,693) 0 0 13,792
Revaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipment (4,620) 0 0 0 4,620
Amortisation of intangible assets (489) 0 0 0 489
Capital grants and contributions applied 4,371 0 0 0 (4,371)
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (567) 0 0 0 567
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(902) 0 0 0 902

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 120 1,947 0 0 (2,067)
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 1,445 494 0 0 (1,939)
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

0 0 0 0 0

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account 0 0 0 0 0

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts’ Reserve:
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

926 20 (946) 0 0

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0 0 946 0 (946)
Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(12,211) (124) 0 0 12,335

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the
year

9,389 111 0 0 (9,500)

Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account:
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable
in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(25) 0 0 0 25

Total Adjustments (14,662) 755 0 0 13,907

Usable Reserves
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8. Transfers to/(from) other Statutory Reserves

This note sets out the amounts transferred to and from General Fund and HRA balances
and other statutory reserves to provide financing for current and future expenditure
plans.

Transfers
out

Transfers in Net transfers
to/(from) other
statutory funds

Transfers
out

Transfers in Net transfers
to/(from) other
statutory funds

2009/10 2009/10 31 Mar 2010 2010/11 2010/11 31 Mar 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

General Fund:
General Fund 6,782 (27,070) (20,288) 3,252 (26,426) (23,174)
Hansel 0 (83) (83) 0 (7) (7)
Central Efficiency 0 (7) (7) 25 0 25
Total 6,782 (27,160) (20,378) 3,277 (26,433) (23,156)

Capital:
Capital Fund 1,351 (5,600) (4,249) 12,351 (3,129) 9,222
Capital Efficiency/Spend to Save
Reserve

0 0 0 0 (5,000) (5,000)

Pilot Boat Renewal Fund 0 (24) (24) 14 (12) 2
Usable Capital Receipts 0 0 0 1,572 (1,572) 0
Elimination of inter Capital Fund
transfers 0 0 0 (6,587) 6,587 0
Total 1,351 (5,624) (4,273) 7,350 (3,126) 4,224

Other Revenue Statutory Funds:

Revenue Efficiency/Spend to Save
Reserve 0 0 0 0 (500) (500)
Marine Fund 85 (32) 53 621 (229) 392
Reserve Fund 18,808 (1,196) 17,612 27,529 (22,398) 5,131
Repairs & Renewals Fund 9,688 (2,049) 7,639 25,046 (13,628) 11,418
Quarry Repairs & Renewals Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing Repairs & Renewals Account 308 (273) 35 489 (1,947) (1,458)
Insurance Fund 0 (35) (35) 66 (34) 32
Potential Contingent Liabilities 0 0 0 0 (11,400) (11,400)
Elimination of inter Revenue Fund
transfers 0 0 0 (26,829) 26,829 0
Total 28,889 (3,585) 25,304 26,922 (23,307) 3,615

Balance at 31 March 37,022 (36,369) 653 37,549 (52,866) (15,317)

Capital Grants Unapplied 0 0 0 0 0 0
Usable Capital Receipts 0 (297) (297) 0 (489) (489)

Total Usable Reserves 37,022 (36,666) 356 37,549 (53,355) (15,806)

a) Reserves Held for Revenue Purposes

Under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Council is permitted to carry
forward balances on the General Fund.

The Revenue Efficiency/Spend to Save Reserve is an earmarked general fund reserve
established at the end of 2010/11.  This fund was established to facilitate the costs
associated with implementing future revenue savings plans.
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The Marine Fund was established by contributions from the Harbour Account for the
purpose of covering the unfunded element of pensions of Harbour staff. It made a
contribution of £0.621m to the Harbour Account during the year.

The Reserve Fund was established under Section 67(i) of the Zetland County Council
Act 1974. This Act empowers the Council to transfer to the fund surpluses arising on the
Harbour Account. The fund may be used to defray certain expenditure on the harbour
undertaking and for any other purpose that is solely in the interest of the County and its
inhabitants.

The Repairs and Renewals Fund was established under the provisions of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1975 for the purpose of defraying expenditure in repairing,
maintaining, replacing and renewing any buildings, works, plant, equipment or articles
belonging to the Council.

The Quarry Repairs and Renewals Fund was established under the provisions of the
Local Government (Scotland) Act, 1975 to fund environmental works at Council quarries.

The Insurance Fund may be used to make good loss or damage suffered by the Council
as a result of an occurrence against the risk of which the Council can insure. It can also
be used in paying premiums on a policy of insurance against the risk.

The Potential Contingent Liabilities Fund is an earmarked general fund reserve
established at the end of 2010/11.  The purpose of this fund is to set aside to  meet the
financial obligations that may arise if known contingent liabilities crystallise.

The Hansel Fund and the Central Efficiency Fund are earmarked general fund reserves
that were established several years ago.  The Central Efficiency Fund has been set up to
fund the reduction in energy consumption and carbon emissions.  The Hansel Funds are
held for the benefit of residents in care establishments.

It is Council policy to balance the Housing Revenue Account to zero by transfers to or
from the Housing Repairs and Renewals Fund.

b) Reserves Held for Capital Purposes

The Capital Fund was established under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1975.
This fund may be used to defray certain items of capital expenditure and for the
repayment of the principal of loans.

The Capital Efficiency/Spend to Save Reserve was established during 2010/11.  It is a
specific capital fund set aside for the purposes for financing energy related projects with
a view to reducing energy costs to the General Fund.

The Pilot Boat Renewal Fund was established by the Council, as Pilotage Authority in
1983 to defray expenditure on the building of vessels for boarding and landing duties. It
has been funded by contributions from the Harbour Account.

The Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and the Capital Grants Unapplied Account are
also used for capital purposes. An analysis of the movement within these accounts is
shown within disclosure note 21.
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9. Other Operating Income

Gains and Losses on the disposal of non current assets.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

0 Levies 0
(44) Gains/losses on the disposal of non-current assets (327)
(44) Total (327)

10. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

5,059 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 3,383
(5,225) Interest receivable and similar income (2,291)
(2,618) Other investment income (986)
(2,784) Total 106

11. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

(8,497) Council tax income (8,629)
(9,189) Non domestic rates (8,672)

(84,325) Non ring fenced government grants (86,894)
(4,371) Capital grants and contributions (4,657)

(106,382) Total (108,852)
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12.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Movement in 2010/11

Council
Dwellings

Other Land &
Buildings

Vehicles,
Furniture,
Plant &

Equipment

Infra-
structure
Assets

Community
Assets

Surplus
Assets

Assets Under
Con-

struction

Total
Property,
Plant and

Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2010 62,082 131,144 49,876 145,837 6,533 251 22,838 418,561
- additions 1,839 716 2,750 1,213 1 2 11,486 18,007
- donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
revaluation
increases/(decreases)
recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve

8,626 3,701 (119) 0 973 0 352 13,533

revaluation
increases/(decreases)
recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services

(11,713) (3) (29) 0 0 0 (1,313) (13,058)

derecognition – disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
derecognition – other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
assets reclassified (to)/ from
Held for Sale

(212) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (212)

other movements in cost or
valuation

(34) 8,783 1,428 146 0 442 (11,003) (238)

At 31 March 2011 60,588 144,341 53,906 147,196 7,507 695 22,360 436,593
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment

at 1 April 2010 (1,857) (9,080) (13,911) (26,223) (9) (13) 0 (51,093)
depreciation charge (1,579) (3,979) (4,169) (3,341) 0 (62) 0 (13,130)
depreciation written out to the
Revaluation Reserve

1,726 126 155 0 0 0 0 2,007

depreciation written out to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services

139 0 0 0 0 0 0 139

impairment losses/ (reversals)
recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

impairment losses/ (reversals)
recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of
Services
derecognition – disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
derecognition – other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
assets reclassified (to)/ from
Held for Sale

6 0 0 0 0 0 0 6

other movements in
depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2011 (1,571) (12,863) (17,924) (29,564) (9) (133) 0 (62,064)
Net Book Value
at 31 March 2011 59,017 131,478 35,982 117,632 7,498 562 22,360 374,529
at 31 March 2010 60,225 122,064 35,965 119,614 6,524 238 22,838 367,468

0 (58) 0 7(6) 70 1 0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0

      - 162 -      



Shetland Islands Council Accounts 2010/11 68

a) Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2011, the authority had entered into a number of contracts for the
construction or enhancement of Property Plant and Equipment in 2011/12 and future
years, budgeted to cost £14.531m. Similar commitments at 31 March 2010 were
£11.814m. The major commitments are:

 Scalloway dredging £2.873m
 Walls piers £2.751m
 Fetlar breakwater £2.246m
 Sellaness tugs £1.214m
 Fibre optic cable £1.029m

Comparator Movement in
2009/10

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2009 60,599 121,625 48,684 138,331 5,893 250 23,323 398,705
- additions 1,674 299 2,711 3,073 42 0 17,116 24,915
- donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
revaluation
increases/(decreases)
recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve

(291) 5,644 (54) 0 0 0 226 5,525

revaluation
increases/(decreases)
recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

derecognition – disposals (24) (120) (801) (8) 0 0 (7,762) (8,715)
derecognition – other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
assets reclassified (to)/ from
Held for Sale

(915) 0 (722) 0 0 0 (67) (1,704)

other movements in cost or
valuation

1,039 3,775 58 4,441 598 (9,998) (87)

At 31 March 2010 62,082 131,223 49,876 145,837 6,533 250 22,838 418,639
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment

at 1 April 2009 (1,322) (13,064) (11,266) (22,548) (8) (9) 0 (48,217)
depreciation charge (757) (5,446) (3,908) (3,676) (1) (4) 0 (13,792)
depreciation written out to
the Revaluation Reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

depreciation written out to
the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

217 9,342 49 0 0 0 0 9,608

impairment losses/
(reversals) recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

impairment losses/
(reversals) recognised in the
Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

derecognition – disposals 0 10 760 1 0 0 0 771
derecognition – other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Eliminated on
reclassification to Asset Held
for Sale

5 0 454 0 0 0 0 459

other movements in
depreciation and impairment
at 31 March 2010

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

at 31 March 2010 (1,857) (9,158) (13,911) (26,223) (9) (13) 0 (51,171)
Net Book Value
at 31 March 2010 60,225 122,065 35,965 119,614 6,524 237 22,838 367,468
at 31 March 2009 59,277 108,561 37,418 115,783 5,885 241 23,323 350,488

Assets
Under

Construction

Total
Property,
Plant and

Council
Dwellings

Other Land &
Buildings

Vehicles,
Furniture,

Plant &
Infra-structure

Assets
Community

Assets
Surplus
Assets
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b) Revaluations

The authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and
Equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All
valuations were carried out internally. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant,
furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-
hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. The significant
assumptions applied in estimating the fair values are:

 the properties are all freehold;

  that no high alumina cement, concrete or calcium chloride addition or other potentially
deleterious material was used in the construction of the properties and that none has
been subsequently incorporated;

 that the properties are not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions,
encumbrances, or outgoings and that good title can be shown;

 that the properties and their values are unaffected by any matters which would be
revealed by a local search or inspection of any register and the use and occupation
are both lawful;

 that the inspection of those parts which have not been inspected would not cause the
valuation to be altered;

 that the land and properties are not contaminated;

 that no statutory or other grants are available to carry out any improvements or
repairs;

 that there are no outstanding Statutory Notices affecting any of the properties.

c) The total revalued amount analysed across each of the preceding financial
years - rolling programme:

This statement shows the annual asset valuations within the rolling programme. The
valuations for operational and non-operational assets are carried out by Alan Rolfe
(MRICS) of the Asset and Properties Unit. Valuations are carried out as at 1 April of
the respective year.

The basis for valuation is set out in the statement of accounting policies.

Council Other Land Vehicles, Plant Non-operational Total all
Dwellings & Buildings & Equipment Assets Assets

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2010/2011 59,842 8,183 330 10,434 78,789
2009/2010 8,562 72,391 0 1,578 82,531
2008/2009 532 17,605 0 77 18,214
2007/2008 60,321 8,448 0 1,380 70,149
2006/2007 40,783 25,114 0 775 66,672
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13. Intangible Assets

The authority accounts for its software as intangible assets to the extent that the
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the
hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The intangible assets represent
purchased licenses. All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the
period that the software is expected to be of use to the authority.

a) Useful lives assigned to the major software suites used by the authority are:

b) The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Balance at start of year:
1,924  Gross carrying amounts 2,086
(908)   Accumulated amortisation (1,397)
1,016 Net carrying amount at start of year 689

Additions:
0   Internal development 0

74  Purchases 41
0   Acquired through business combinations 0
0 Assets reclassified as held for sale 0
0 Other disposals 0
0 Revaluations increases or decreases 0
0 Impairment losses recognised or reversed directly in the

Revaluation Reserve
0

0 Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

0

0 Reversals of past impairment losses written back to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

0

(489) Amortisation for the period (525)
88 Other changes 231

689 Net carrying amount at end of year 436

Years Assets
3 years Webroster
5 years Financial Management Systems
5 years Asset Management System
5 years Payroll/HR/Pension Systems
5 years COINS
5 years Orchard Management System
5 years SWIFT System
5 years Libraries Systems
5 years Planning Systems
5 years Tranman
5 years GIS Innogistic System
5 years Intuit System
5 years Symantec
5 years Web Filtering Systems
5 years Microsoft Licenses
5 years Corporate Back Up Systems
5 years Benefits Legislation Software
5 years Risk Assessment Software
7 years Housing Online Repairs System
10 years None
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There are no items of capitalised software that are individually material to the financial
statements.

c) Intangible asset commitments

At 31 March 2011 the Council had only one commitment with regard to intangible
assets. This was in relation to software for the Planning Department with a
commitment totalling £0.078m.

14. Financial Instruments

a) Categories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Long-Term Current
31

March
2009

31
March
2010

31 March
2009

31
March
2010

31       March
2011

31
March
2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Assets:
Investments:

0 0 0 0 Loans and receivables 0 0
199,744 218,959 0 0 Available for sale financial assets 222,739 103
199,744 218,959 0 0 Total Investments 222,739 103

Debtors:
3 2 0 0 Loans and receivables 1,051 271

15 11 0 0 Financial assets carried at contract
amounts

15 1

0 0 0 0 Accured Interest Debtor 0 0
18 13 0 0 Total Debtors 1,066 272

Financial Liabilties:
Other Long-Term Liabilities:

0 0 0 0 PFI and finance lease liabilities 0 0
0 0 0 0 Total Other Long-Term

Liabilities
0 0

Creditors:
0 0 0 0 Accured Interest liability 0 (119)
0 0 0 0 Total Creditors 0 (119)

Long-Term Current
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b) Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

Financial
Assets: Loans

and
Receivables

Financial
Assets:

Available
for Sale Total

Financial
Assets: Loans

and
Receivables

Financial
Assets:

Available
for Sale Total

Financial
Assets:  Loans

and
Receivables

Financial
Assets:

Available for
Sale Total

0 24 24 0 11 11 Interest expense 0 25 25
0 0 0 0 0 0 Losses on de-recogni tion 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 Reduction in fair value 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 Impairment Losses 516 0 516
0 635 635 0 723 723 Fee expens es 0 957 957

0 659 659 0 734 734

Total expense in
(Surplus)/Deficit on the
Provision of Services 516 982 1,498

0 (7,454) (7,454) (27) (5,206) (5,233) Interest income (54) (4,259) (4,313)

0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest income accrued on
impaired financ ial assets 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 Increases in fair value 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 Gains on de-recognition 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 Fee income 0 0 0

0 (7,454) (7,454) (27) (5,206) (5,233)
Total income in (Surplus)/Deficit
on the Provision of Services (54) (4,259) (4,313)

0 0 0 0 (43,410) (43,410) Gains on revaluation 0 (19,383) (19,383)
0 29,970 29,970 0 0 0 Losses on revaluation 0 0 0

0 29,970 29,970 0 (43,410) (43,410)

(Surplus)/Deficit arising on
revaluation of financial assets
in other CI&E 0 (19,383) (19,383)

0 23,175 23,175 (27) (47,882) (47,909) Net Gain/(Loss) for the Year 462 (22,660) (22,198)

31 March 2011
£000

31 March 2009
£000

31 March 2010
£000
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c) Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

Financial liabilities and assets represented by loans, receivables and long-term
debtors and creditors are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair
value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will
take place over the remaining term of the instruments, using the following
assumptions:

no early repayment or impairment is recognized;
where an instrument will mature in next 12 months, carrying amount is assumed
to approximate to fair value;
the fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed
amount.

The fair value of the assets is lower than the carrying amount because the authority’s
portfolio of investments includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate
receivable is lower than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet
date. This shows a notional future loss (based on economic conditions at 31 March
2011) attributable to the commitment to receive interest below current market rates.

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

£000 £000 £000 £000
1301 1301 Loans and Receivables 1322 1322

20 20 Long-Term Debtors (mortgages) 16 16

31 March 201131 March 2010

Available for sale assets and assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. These fair values are based on
public price quotations where there is an active market for the instrument.

15. Inventories

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance
outstanding at
start of year

2,383 2,110 752 909 474 447 3,609 3,466

Purchases 960 883 1,752 1,100 1,419 1,107 4,131 3,090
Recognised as an
expense in the year

(626) (609) (1,736) (1,253) (1,342) (1,077) (3,704) (2,939)

Written off Balances 0 0 (13) (4) 0 (4) (13) (8)
Reversals of write
offs in previous
years

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance
outstanding at year
end

2,717 2,384 755 752 551 473 4,023 3,609

Ports & Harbours Trading Operations Infrastructure Total

Inventories include consumable stores, maintenance materials, building services (work-
in-progress, property acquired or constructed for sale).
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16. Short-Term Debtors

31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000 £000

2,239 2,179 Central Government Bodies 1,290
215 534 Other Local Authorities 389
824 95 NHS Bodies 67
80 124 Public Corporation and Trading Funds 106

8,445 7,417 Other Entities and Individuals 6,664
11,803 10,349 Total 8,516

a) Movements in Impairment Allowance

The Council has made allowance for the risk of incurring bad debts on its General
Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The debtor figures in the Balance Sheet are
shown net of this allowance and the movement between years is shown in the table
below:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

(379) Opening balance-General Fund (402)
77 Miscellaneous Invoices written off 108
44 Council Tax written off 24

(144) (Charge)/Credit to General Fund for provision (143)
(402) (413)

(138) Opening balance-Housing Revenue Account (175)
5 Miscellaneous Invoices written off 2

54 Rents written off 38
(96) (Charge)/Credit to HRA for provision (20)

(175) (155)

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000 £000

27 20                      Cash held by the Authority 22
9,926 7,402 Bank current accounts 7,251

16,506 13,484 Short-term certificates of deposit 0
26,459 20,906 Total 7,273
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18. Assets Held for Sale

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

654 Balance outstanding at start of year 1,245
Assets newly classified as held for sale:

1,245    Property, Plant and Equipment 206
0   Intangible Assets 0

Assets declassified as held for sale:
0   Property, Plant and Equipment 0
0   Intangible Assets 0

(654) Assets sold (1,245)
1,245 Balance outstanding at year-end 206

19. Short-Term Creditors

31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000 £000

2,326 2,159 Central Government Bodies 3,252
17 129 Other Local Authorities 277

675 59 NHS Bodies 33
323 334 Public Corporations and Trading Funds 344

14,477 12,715 Bodies External to General Government 10,012
0 0 Financial Instruments Accrued Interest Expense 696

17,818 15,396 Total 14,614

20. Provisions

The council has provided £10,000 for two “Equal Pay” claims that were outstanding at 31
March 2011. Further details of the provision can be found in disclosure note 4.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000
(53) Balance at 1 April (4)

0 Additional provisions made (6)
0 Amounts used 0

49 Unused amounts reversed 0
0 Unwinding of discounting 0

(4) Balance at 31 March (10)

21. Usable Reserves

The movements in the authority’s usable and unusable reserves are detailed in the
disclosure note 7.

Reconciliation of Usable Funds to the balance sheet

31 March 2010
£000

Description 31 March 2011
£000

(273,754) General Fund and Other Funds (See Note 8) (268,898)
(13) Usable Capital Receipts Reserve (13)

0 Capital Grants Unapplied Account (171)
(273,767) Total balance of usable reserves at 31 March (269,082)
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Usable Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve was established for the purpose of financing capital
expenditure. Returns in the year are credited to the General Fund. The source of funding
is capital receipts not applied during the year.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000
(18) Balance at 1 April (13)

(941) Sales income from fixed assets (1,572)
946 Application 1,572
(13) Balance at 31 March (13)

Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Under IFRS, grants and contributions unapplied at the balance sheet date are reviewed
to ascertain whether there are any conditions attached to the grant or contribution.
Where there is no such condition, the grant or contribution is recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and transferred to the Capital Grants
Unapplied Account, where it will remain until the associated expenditure is incurred. The
Capital Grants Unapplied Account reflects the capital resource from grants and
contributions that is available to finance expenditure.

22. Unusable Reserves

Reconciliation of Unusable Funds to the balance sheet

31 March 2010
 £000

Description 31 March 2011
£000

(53,504) Revaluation Reserve (64,271)
(23,148) Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve (19,376)

(258,783) Capital Adjustment Account (253,562)
147,169 Pensions Reserve 91,113

1,365 Accumulated Absences Account 1,447
(186,901) Total balance of unusable reserves at 31 March (244,649)

a) Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the authority arising from
increases in the value of its Property Plant and Equipment (and Intangible Assets).
The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through
depreciation;
disposed of and the gains are realised.

31 March 2010
£000

31 March 2011
£000

0 Balance at 1 April 0
0 Capital Grant and Contributions unapplied during

the year
(171)

0 Application of grants to capital financing transferred
to the capital adjustment account

0

0 Balance at 31 March (171)
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The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the
date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

31 March 2010
£000 £000 £000

(33,946) Balance at 1 April (53,504)
(19,914) Upward revaluation of assets (29,007)

198
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not
charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 13,467
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not
posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (15,540)

1,615
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost
depreciation 1,636

231 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 404
0 Investment asset gains 0
0 Prior year difference between ledger and asset register 2,733

(1,688) Amount written off to the Capital Adustment Account 4,773
(53,504) Balance at 31 March (64,271)

31 March 2011

b) Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the
authority arising from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted
market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments. The balance
is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are:

revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
disposed of and the gains are realised.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

22,145 Balance at 1 April (23,148)
(43,786) Upward revaluation of assets 0

0
Removal of previously unrealised gains in relation to assets
sold 23,155

(1,507)
Unrealised revaluation gains to Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure (19,383)

(23,148) Balance at 31 March (19,376)
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c) Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in
accordance with statutory provisions. The authority accounts for post-employment
benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits
earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to
reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set
aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to
be financed as the authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or
eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on
the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned
by past and current employees and the resources the authority has set aside to meet
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by
the time the benefits come to be paid.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

58,979 Balance at 1 April 147,169
85,355 Actuarial (gains) and losses on pensions assets and liabilities (31,511)

12,335

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (13,961)

(9,500)
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year (10,584)

147,169 Balance at 31 March 91,113

d) Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and
for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under
statutory provisions. The Account is:

debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis) credited with the
amounts set aside by the authority as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement.

The Account contains:

accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on
donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the authority;
revaluation gains accumulated on Property Plant and Equipment before 1 April
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
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31 March 2010
£000 £000 £000

(270,608) Balance at 1 April (258,782)
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

13,792
Charges for depreciation and impairment of Non-Current
assets 13,130

4,620 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 12,919
489 Amortisation of Intangible assets 525

0 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 0

902

Amounts of Non-Current assets written off on disposal or
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 1,244 27,818

0
Adjustment amounts written out of the Revaluation
Reserve (4,773)

0
Net written out amount of the cost of Non-Current assets
consumed in the year 0
Capital financing applied in the year:

(947)
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure (1,572)

(4,371)

Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing (4,486)

0
Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account 0

(2,067)
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
charged against the General Fund and HRA balances (2,604)

(1,939)
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and
HRA balances (CFCR) (1,813)

1,347 Reverse 2009/10 credit from General Fund Appropriation 0
0 Capital Fund Reserve (7,350)

(258,782) Balance at 31 March (253,562)

31 March 2011

e) Accumulated Compensated Absences Account

The Accumulated Compensated Absences Account absorbs the differences that
would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated
absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried
forward at 31 March 2011. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the
General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

31 March 2010 31 March 2010
£000 £000

1,340 Balance at 1 April 1,365

0
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the
preceding year 0

25 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 82

0

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory requirements 0

1,365 Balance at 31 March 1,447
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23. Segmental Reporting

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code
of Practice.

Decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Council on the basis of budget
reports analysed across Funds. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the
accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

 no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation,
revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation
Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement)

 the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s
pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the
year

 expenditure on some support services is held centrally.
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The authority’s principal funds as recorded in the budget reports for the year are as follows:

Income and Expenditure Analysis
2010/11

Support
Services

Recharged
Services General Fund

Reserve
Fund

Housing
Revenue
Account

Harbour
Account Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees, charges and other service income 648 1,301 18,549 3,249 6,666 15,563 45,976
Total Income 648 1,301 18,549 3,249 6,666 15,563 45,976
Employee expenses 19,710 3,666 66,157 816 3 7,861 98,213
Operating costs 6,287 5,811 28,768 2,129 2,004 4,079 49,078
Transfer Payments (19) 0 8,694 9,289 14 92 18,070
Financing Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Support service recharges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total expenditure 25,978 9,477 103,619 12,234 2,021 12,032 165,361
Net expenditure 25,330 8,176 85,070 8,985 (4,645) (3,531) 119,385

Income and Expenditure Analysis
Comparative Figures 2009/10

Support
Services

Recharged
Services General Fund

Reserve
Fund

Housing
Revenue
Account

Harbour
Account

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees, charges and other service income 981 1,313 20,594 1,816 6,031 15,140 45,875
Total Income 981 1,313 20,594 1,816 6,031 15,140 45,875
Employee expenses 18,589 3,497 61,317 97 (5) 6,446 89,941
Operating costs 6,047 5,234 26,816 2,946 2,120 3,966 47,129
Transfer Payments (35) 0 8,558 9,070 32 105 17,730
Financing Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Support service recharges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total expenditure 24,601 8,731 96,691 12,113 2,147 10,517 154,800
Net expenditure 23,620 7,418 76,097 10,297 (3,884) (4,623) 108,925

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 Summary reconcilation  between Budget reported and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement £000

108,925 Net expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Analysis 119,385

8,669
Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the Analysis and not reported to
management for decision making 5,846

26,107 Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to management in the (2,787)
143,701 Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 122,444
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Detailed reconciliation between Budget reported and Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, charges & other service income 42,620 2,181 60 14,802 59,663

Interest and investment income 179 (125) 0 0 54

Income from council tax 9 0 0 0 9

Government grants and contributions 3,168 2,081 0 0 5,249

Total Income 45,976 4,137 60 14,802 64,975

Employee expenses 98,213 4,552 0 (18,241) 84,524
Other service expenses 67,148 5,176 5 0 72,329
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment &
Interest

0 0 0 26,574 26,574

Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0
Precepts & Levies 0 0 310 3,682 3,992
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0
Total expenditure 165,361 9,728 315 12,015 187,419
Cost of Services 119,385 5,591 255 (2,787) 122,444

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fees, charges & other service income 39,694 1,297 3 13,605 54,599
Interest and investment income 116 0 0 0 116
Income from council tax 5 0 0 0 5
Government grants and contributions 6,060 2,155 0 (4,371) 3,844
Total Income 45,875 3,452 3 9,234 58,564
Employee expenses 89,941 2,382 0 2,844 95,167
Other service expenses 64,859 9,459 (8) 1,153 75,463
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment &
Interest

0 0 0 26,901 26,901

Interest Payments 0 0 0 0 0
Precepts & Levies 0 0 291 4,443 4,734
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0
Total expenditure 154,800 11,841 283 35,341 202,265
Cost of services 108,925 8,389 280 26,107 143,701

Amounts
included in I&E

but not
reported to

management
for decision

making Total

Amounts
included in I&E

but not
reported to

management
for decision

making Total

Services and
Support Services

not in Analysis

Amounts not
reported to

management for
decision making

Services and
Support Services

not in Analysis

Amounts not
reported to

management for
decision making

2010/11
Income and
Expenditure

Analysis

Comparative Figures 2009/10 Income and
Expenditure

Analysis
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24. Statutory Trading Operations (STO)

The authority has established two trading units where the service managers are required
to operate in a commercial environment and balance their budgets by generating income
from other parts of the authority or other organisations. Details of those units with a
turnover of greater than 2.5% of the Council's revenue budget in 2010/11 are as follows:

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
The Authority has deemed its Highways
construction and repair undertaking as a
trading operation. The trading objective is
to breakeven over a 3 year rolling period.

Turnover (6,776) (6,518) (7,760)
Expenditure 6,930 6,188 7,562
Surplus 154 (330) (198)
Cumulative surplus - over last three
financial years

(129) (240) (374)

The Authority has deemed its Building
Maintenance undertaking concerned with
the repair and maintenance of council
houses, schools and public buildings as a
trading operation. The trading objective is
to breakeven over a 3 year rolling period.

Turnover (4,606) (4,880) (4,713)
Expenditure 4,826 4,595 4,588
Surplus 220 (285) (125)
Cumulative surplus - over last three
financial years

(81) (148) (190)

Net (surplus)/deficit on trading
operations:

374 (615) (323)

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

The table above is presented exclusively to show whether each STO met its statutory
financial target. The figures for 2008/09 and 2009/10 are based on UK GAAP in line with
the legislative requirement for those years. The 2010/11 figures are based on IFRS as
specified in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. For this reason the
figures quoted as not regarded as suitable for trend analysis.

Trading operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Some are an integral part of one of the authority’s services to the public (e.g.
refuse collection), whilst others are support services to the authority’s services to the
public (e.g. schools catering). The expenditure of these operations is allocated or
recharged to headings in the Net Operating Expenditure of Continuing Operations. The
allocation of this expenditure is as follows:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000
(285) Net surplus on trading operations (125)
(24) Services to the public included in Expenditure of Continuing Operations (35)
752 Support services charged to Expenditure of Continuing Operations 830

(1,013) Net surplus credited to Costs of Services (920)
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25.   Agency Services

The authority is required by legislation to provide a collection service for Scottish Water,
involving the collection of around £2.7 million of Scottish Water charges.  The legislation
stipulates a minimum amount Scottish Water must pay in commission for this service.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

33 Expenditure incurred in collection service for Scottish Water 33
(61) Commission payable by Scottish Water (62)
(28) Net surplus arising on the agency arrangement (29)

26. External Audit Costs

The authority has incurred the following costs in respect of external audit services
provided by Audit Scotland in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

263
Fees payable to Audit Scotland with regard to external audit services
carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 242

0
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by Audit Scotland
during the year (related to IFRS - prior year restatement) 5

263 Total 247

27. Grant Income

The authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2010/11:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
(8,497) Council tax income (8,629)
(9,189) Non domestic rates (8,672)

(84,325) Non ring fenced government grants (86,894)
(4,371) Capital grants and contributions (4,657)

(106,382) Total (108,852)

Credited to Services
(1,932) NHS (178)

(792) Council Tax Benefits Subsidy (788)
(2,708) Housing Benefit Subsidy (2,855)
(1,512) Housing Support Grant (1,233)

(10) ERDF & ESF (42)
(142) Training Grants (319)
(713) Shetland Development Trust 0

(94) Central - Government Grants (69)
(266) Cultural - Government Grants (206)
1,600 Education - Government Grants (2,824)
(149) Environment - Government Grants (126)
(926) Housing - Government Grants 0
(780) Planning & Development - Government Grants (136)
(261) Roads & Transport - Government Grants (477)
(401) Social Work - Government Grants (468)

(9,086) Total (9,721)
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There are a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the
monies or property to be returned to the giver if the grant is not fully spent on the
specified project.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Capital Grant Receipts in Advance
0 NHS - Joint Therapy Unit/Eric Gray Resource Centre 89

0
Government Grant - Low Carbon Vehicle Procurement
Support Scheme 82

0 Total 171

28. Related Parties

The authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the
extent to which the council might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain
freely with the authority.

a) Central Government and Other Public Bodies

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the authority
– it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the authority
operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the
terms of many of the transactions that the authority has with other parties (e.g.
council tax bills, housing benefits). Details of all grants received from central
government and other public bodies can be found in note 27.

b) Members

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating
policies. The Council holds a Register of Members’ Interests, open to public
inspection at the Town Hall during office hours. The Register details the bodies where
members are represented or for which they have declared an interest. The Council
made payments totalling £7.529m (£7.529m in 2009/10) to these bodies.

c) Officers

All Service managers and above were required to disclose any involvement with
related parties of the Council.

The manager for sport and leisure is responsible for the grant payable to Shetland
Golf Club under a three-year service level agreement and is also a member of the
golf club.  In order to ensure that no undue influence has occurred with regard to the
transaction, the assessment is undertaken by another member of staff and the
Executive Director presented the report for consideration by Council Members.
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29. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure
is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the
authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the authority that has
yet to be financed.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

Capital Investment:
24,915 Property, Plant and Equipment 18,007

74 Intangible Assets 41
0 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 0

24,989 Total Capital Investment 18,048
Sources of Finance:

947 Capital Receipts 1,572
4,721 Government Grants and Other Contributions 4,486

Sums set aside from Revenue:
8,066 Direct Revenue Contributions and Application of Reserves 9,163

11,229 Loans Fund Principal 2,827
24,963 Total Capital Financing 18,048

Explanation of Movements in Year:
9,162 Increase in underlying need to borrow 223
9,162 Increase in Capital Financing Requirement 223

30. Operating Leases

a) The Authority as a Lessee

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future
years are:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000
272 Not later than one year 173
150 Later than one year and not later than five years 638
996 Later than five years 852

1,418 Total 1,663

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

1,418 Minimum lease payments 1,663
0 Contingent rents 0

(289) Sub-lease payments receivable (245)
1,129 Total 1,418

The above table shows lease payments for the year.
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b) The Authority as a Lessor

The authority leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the
following purposes:

for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism
services     and community centres
for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable
accommodation for local businesses.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in
future years are:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

40 Not later than one year 45
42 Later than one year and not later than five years 228

239 Later than five years 58
321 Total 331

No contingent rents were recognised in the period (2009/10: £nil).

During 2010/11 the Council did not have any finance leases (2009/10: £nil).

31. Termination Benefits

The Council terminated 36 employee contracts in 2010/11, incurring liabilities of £1.480m
(£0.018m in 2009/10).  Of the 36 contracts, 15 formed part of the Blueprint for Education
review and 12 were part of the Ports of the Future project.

32. Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme,
administered by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA). The Scheme provides
teachers with specified benefits upon their retirement, and the authority contributes
towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’
pensionable salaries.

The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme.   It is administered separately by
the SPPA. The Council is not able to identify its share of the underlying financial position
and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the
purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis
as a defined contribution scheme. The reason why sufficient information is not available
to determine the Council’s share of the scheme is because it has always been accounted
for nationally with no detailed records for each local authority member.

In 2010/11, the Council paid £2.618m to the SPPA in respect of teachers’ retirement
benefits, representing 14.9% of pensionable pay. The figures for 2009/10 were £2.518m
and 14.9%. There were no contributions remaining payable at the year-end. The
authority is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early
retirement outside of the terms of the teachers’ scheme, in 2010/11 these amounted
to £0.74m (£0.72m for 2009/10), representing 4.21% of teachers pensionable pay
(4.23% for 2009/10.  These costs are accounted for on a defined benefit basis.
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33. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

a) Participation in Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the authority makes
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits
will not actually be payable until employees retire, the authority has a commitment to
make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their
future entitlement. The authority participates in two post-employment schemes:

The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Shetland Islands
Council is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the authority
and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to
balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early
retirement is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are
recognised when awards are made, however, there are no investment assets built
up to meet these pensions liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual
pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

b) Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services
when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually
paid as pensions.

The charge required to be made against council tax, however, is based on the cash
payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The
following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves
Statement during the year:
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31 March 2011 31 March 2010
£000 £000

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services:
Current service cost 11,561 5,554
Past service cost (30,072) 1,722
Settlements and curtailments 1,167 0
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:
Interest cost 17,900 14,125
Expected return on scheme assets (14,517) (9,066)
Total Post-Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services (13,961) 12,335
Other Post-Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Actuarial gains and losses 31,511 (85,355)
Total Post-Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 17,550 (73,020)
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the
Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance
with the Code (13,961) 12,335
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance
for pensions in the year:
Employers' contributions payable to scheme 9,134 8,284
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 1,450 1,216

Local Government Pension
Scheme

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 31 March 2011 is a loss of
£70.720m.

c) Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation):

31 March 2011 31 March 2010
£000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 342,879 193,332
Current service cost 11,561 5,554
Interest Cost 17,900 14,125
Contributions by scheme participants 3,593 3,447
Actuarial gains and losses (33,309) 131,475
Benefits paid (7,721) (6,776)
Past service costs (30,072) 1,722
Entity combinations 0 0
Curtailments 1,167 0
Settlements 0 0
Closing balance at 31 March 305,998 342,879

Total Liabilities: Local
Government Pension Scheme
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Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) assets:

31 March 2011 31 March 2010
£000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 195,710 134,353
Expected rate of return 14,517 9,066
Actuarial gains and losses (1,798) 46,120
Employer contributions 10,584 9,500
Contributions by scheme participants 3,593 3,447
Benefits paid (7,721) (6,776)
Entity combinations 0 0
Settlements 0 0
Closing balance at 31 March 214,885 195,710

Local Government Pension
Scheme

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected
returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected
yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
Balance Sheet date.

Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return
experienced in the respective markets.

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £12.756m (2009/10  £55.235m).

d) Scheme History

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Present value of liabilities:
Local Government Pension Scheme 223,057 197,917 193,332 342,879 305,998
Discretionary Benefits 0 0 0 0 0
Fair value of assets in the Local
Government Pension Scheme 187,924 179,810 134,353 195,710 214,885
Surplus/(Deficit) in the scheme: (35,133) (18,107) (58,979) (147,169) (91,113)
Local Government Pension Scheme (14,449) 1,208 (40,844) (122,943) (68,445)
Discretionary Benefits (20,684) (19,315) (18,135) (24,226) (22,668)
Total (35,133) (18,107) (58,979) (147,169) (91,113)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run
to pay post employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £306 million has a
substantial impact on the net worth of the authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet,
resulting in a negative overall balance of £91 million. However, statutory
arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the authority
remains healthy:

the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased
contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments
fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary

finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the
pensions are actually paid.
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The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension
Scheme by the Council in the year to 31 March 2012 is £10.2 million. Expected
contributions for the Discretionary Benefits scheme in the year to 31 March 2012 are
£0.5 million.

e) Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Hymans Robertson LLP, an
independent firm of actuaries, has assessed both the Local Government Pension
Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities. Estimates for the Shetland Island
Council's Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1
April 2011.

The inflation measure for determining the minimum pension increases in 2010/11 is
the Consumer Price Index (CPI), compared to the Retail Price Index (RPI) in 2009/10.

In the UK budget statement on 22 June 2010 the Chancellor announced that with
effect from 1 April 2011 public service pensions would be up-rated in line with the
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rather than the Retail Prices Index (RPI). This has the
effect of reducing the authority's liabilities in the Shetland Island Council Pension
Fund by £56.056m and has been recognised as a past service gain in accordance
with guidance set down in UITF Abstract 48, since the change is considered to be a
change in benefit entitlement. There is no impact upon the General Fund or Housing
Revenue Account.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

31 March 2011 31 March 2010

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:
Equity investments 7.5% 7.8%
Bonds 4.9% 5.0%
Other 5.2% 5.4%
Mortality Assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
    Men 21.5 21.5
    Women 24.9 24.9
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
    Men 23.5 23.5
    Women 27.0 27.0
Rate of inflation 2.8% 3.8%
Rate of increase in salaries 5.1% 5.3%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.8% 3.8%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 5.5% 5.5%
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump
sum 70% 85%

Local Government Pension
Scheme

The Discretionary Benefits arrangement has no assets to cover its liabilities. The
Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by
proportion of the total assets held:
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31 March 2011 31 March 2010
% %

Equity investments 80 80
Debt instruments 9 8
Other assets 11 12

f) History of Experience Gains and Losses

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2010/11 can
be analysed into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or
liabilities at 31 March 2011:

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
% % % % %

Differences between the expected
and actual return on assets (0.51) (15.60) (47.60) 23.57 (0.84)
Experience gains and losses on
liabilities 0.94 0.06 (4.19) 1.85 (0.13)

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits calculated similarly to the
defined benefit obligation under IAS19, is shown in the table below:

31 March 2011 31 March 2010
£000 £000

Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 299,000 345,000

34. Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2011, the authority had contingent liabilities of £11.4 million.

The Council has provided security cover, in the form of a irrevocable letter of credit for
£1.896m, to National Grid Electricity Transmission PLC in respect of its agreement with
Viking Energy in relation to an inter-connector cable to Shetland. The sum would only be
payable if Viking Energy withdrew from the wind farm project and therefore would not
need a grid connection. As it is uncertain whether Viking Energy would withdraw from the
project and the timing of such an event is unknown the authority has included the
security cover as a contingent liability, in line with the Code.

The pension benefits accruing to the staff of Shetland Towage up until 10 February 2006
were transferred to the Shetland Islands Council pension fund. The assets of Shetland
Towage’s Pension Scheme that funded these benefits were also transferred with the
Council agreeing to cover any funding shortfall. The amount of any shortfall will depend
upon when the Council chooses to fund it but an actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2011
indicated a funding shortfall of £8.091m. The Council will review the position once the
outcome of the 2011 triennial valuation is completed in December 2011.

There are a number of other projects, regarding which the Council is currently in legal
dispute. These claims are being contested and are at present unresolved and not
admitted and therefore the potential financial impact has not been disclosed.
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35. Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments

The authority’s investments and financial activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

 Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the
authority;

 Liquidity risk – the possibility that the authority might not have funds available to meet
its commitments to make payments;

 Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the authority as a result
of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

The authority’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to
fund services.  Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Service, under policies
approved by the Council in the annual Treasury Investment Strategy Statement.

a) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the authority’s customers.  This risk is minimised through the Annual
Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with financial
institutions unless they meet one of the following categories:

A Bank or Building Society with at least a –AA long term Fitch IBCA rating;
  Bank of Scotland – Council’s own bank;
  Any bank which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the above;
  Any local authority.

The –AA long term rating is defined by Fitch IBCA (International Bank Credit
Association) as a “low expectation of investment risk adverse changes in business,
economic or financial conditions may increase risk, albeit not very significantly”.

The authority has a policy of not lending more than £3 million of its surplus balances
to any single organisation at any one time, apart from the Council’s own bank; no
deposits were placed with any financial institutions during the financial year 2010/11.

The following analysis summarises the authority’s potential maximum exposure to
credit risk at 31 March 2011, based on experience of default and uncollectability,
adjusted to reflect current market conditions: -

Amount at
31 March

2011

Historical
experience

of default
(expressed

as % of A

Historical
experience

adjusted for
market

conditions at
31 March 2011

Estimated
maximum

exposure to
default and

uncollectability
at 31 March

2011

Estimated
maximum

exposure at
31 March

2010
A B C A*C

£000 % % £000 £000
Deposits with Banks 8,500 0 0 0 0
Customers 102 25 25 26 173
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No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the authority does not
expect any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to
deposits and local authorities.

The authority does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £0.447m of the
£2 million balance is past its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired
amount can be analysed by age as follows:

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

69 Less than three months 36
276 Three to six months 143
200 Six months to one year 104
316 More than one year 164
861 Total 447

b) Liquidity Risk

The authority has external investments with fund managers amounting to £223 million
at 31 March 2011.  The authority has ready access to these funds to ensure that cash
is available as needed, so there is no significant risk that it will be unable to meet its
commitments under financial instruments.  Instead, the risk is that the authority will be
bound to sell external investments at a time of unfavourable market conditions.

There are no current external capital borrowings and there is no requirement for
external capital borrowings during 2011/12.  All creditors are due to be paid in less
than one year.

c) Market Risk

(1) Interest rate risk

The authority’s investment strategy aims to manage interest rate risk within the
Council’s investments by having various investment portfolios managed by
external fund managers.  The investment portfolios are also separated into
different asset classes to minimise the overall exposure to interest rate
movements.  The entire investment portfolio is held in Unitised funds. As at 31
March 2011 the composition of these funds has been diversified between the
following asset classes:

UK Equities  - 37%
Overseas Equities -  38%
UK Government Bonds - 20%
Other Bonds - 5%

Overseas equities comprise investments in North America, Europe, Japan, Pacific
(ex Japan) and Emerging Markets.

The Council at present has no external variable or fixed rate borrowing and is
therefore not exposed to increased charges from movements in the interest rate.
A risk has been identified that not all of the general fund reserves are held in a
way that can be quickly converted to cash. There is no short-term risk associated
with how the money is held but, over time, if the Council has a need to make a
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significant and unplanned draw on reserves, it may need to borrow to secure the
cash required. This issue will be addressed in detail in the financial planning
process.

The treasury management team actively assesses interest rate exposure to
determine the impact on the authority’s financial reserves strategy and hence
medium to longer term financial strategy, which in turn informs the annual budget
setting process.

According to this risk assessment, a general shift of +/- 1% in the UK Stock
Market, which is the market with the largest investment exposure, would result in
a gain or loss in the region of £0.800m for 2011/12.

(2) Price risk

The authority had £223 million of investments as at 31 March 2011 in the form of
equity shares and bonds held within unitised products.  The authority is
consequently exposed to losses arising from movement in the price of the shares
and bonds.

The authority’s investment strategy reduces its exposure to price movements by
diversifying its investment portfolio through the use of external fund managers,
asset classes, investment guidelines and benchmarks.

The authority’s external investments are all classified as ‘available for sale’
meaning that all movements in price will impact on gains and losses recognised in
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  A general shift of 5% in
the general price of shares (positive or negative) would have resulted in a
£8.376m gain or loss being recognised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for 2010/11.

(3) Foreign exchange risk

The authority has £85.930m invested in overseas equities and bonds held within
unitised products, which are denominated in foreign currencies.  The exposure to
risk of loss in adverse movements in exchange rates are greatly reduced through
the use of currency hedging strategies to specifically negate any currency
movement impact.
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Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

a) Introduction and Statutory Background

The Housing (Scotland) Act 1987 provides the statutory framework for the housing
accounts of Scottish local authorities. Part X of the 1987 Act requires a local authority
to keep a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) of the income and expenditure for each
year in respect of the houses, buildings and land specified in Part I of Schedule 15.

Part X of the 1987 Act and Schedule 15 thereto make significant provisions relevant to
the preparation of the financial statements:

 Section 203(1) – housing authorities have a duty to keep an HRA.
 Section 203(5) – the HRA must be kept in accordance with Part II of Schedule 15

regarding debits, credits and supplementary provisions.
 Section 204 – the Scottish Government has the power to limit General Fund

contributions to HRA.
 Schedule 15 – Housing authorities have a duty to avoid a deficit in the HRA – if

there is a deficit a General Fund contribution must be made equal to the deficit.
 Schedule 15 – the Scottish Government may decide that items of income or

expenditure, either generally or of a specific category, shall be included or excluded
from the HRA.

 Schedule 15 – with the consent of the Scottish Government, a housing authority
may exclude or include any items of income or expenditure in the HRA.

 Schedule 15 – the Scottish Government may direct rectification of the account if it is
of the opinion that items of income or expenditure have not been, or have been
improperly, credited or debited in the HRA.

The operation of the HRA in terms of statutory debits and credits is governed by Part II
of Schedule 15 of the 1987 Act and will include Income, i.e. dwelling rents, services
and other charges, Housing Support Grant and Expenditure, i.e. repairs, maintenance
and management, capital financing costs, bad debts and voids.

Paralleling the treatment for the Council’s wider operations, the transactions relating to
the HRA have been separated into two statements:

 the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement;
 the Movement on the HRA Statement.

As the Movement on the HRA Statement incorporates the surplus or deficit on the HRA
Income and Expenditure Statement, it effectively meets the statutory requirement to
include the HRA as a single statement in the Statement of Accounts.

b) The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of
providing housing services in accordance with appropriate accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded from rents and government grants. Authorities charge
rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from
the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis of which rents
are raised, is shown in the Movement on the HRA Statement.
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Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement

2009/10
£000 £000 £000

Expenditure
2,324 Repairs and maintenance 2,317

563 Supervision and management 529
1,679 Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 12,518

96 Movement in the allowance for bad debts 20
136 Other expenditure 194

4,798 Total expenditure 15,578

Income
(5,145) Dwelling rents (5,411)

(195) Non-Dwelling rents (116)
(1,512) Housing Support Grant (1,233)

(5) Other Income 2
(6,857) Total income (6,758)

(2,059)

HRA share of other amounts included in the whole
authority Net Cost of Services but not allocated for
specific services 8,820

Net cost of HRA services as included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

106 HRA services' share of Corporate and Democratic Core 125
(1,953) Net Cost/(Income) of HRA Services 8,945

HRA share of operating income and expenditure included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(20) (Gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets 100
1,456 Interest payable and similar charges 901

0 Interest and investment income (4)
59 Pension interest cost & expected return on pension assets 1

1,495 Net HRA share of operating expenditure 998

(458) (Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services 9,943

2010/11
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c) Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement

2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000

0 Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year 0
(458) Surplus or (deficit) on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement 9,943

755 Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under statute (9,454)
297 Net increase or (decrease) before transfers to or from reserves 489

(297) Transfers to or (from) reserves (489)
0 Increase or (decrease) in year on the HRA 0

0 Balance on the HRA at the end of the current reporting year 0

The adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations are
shown within disclosure note 7 and transfers to or from other Statutory Reserves are
shown within disclosure note 8.

d) Notes to the Housing Revenue Account

(1) Number and Types of Dwellings

The following table shows the stock movements by apartment size.  In 2010/11 a
number of properties were identified as HRA properties that had previously been
counted under general housing stock.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
Number Housing Stock Number

88 1 Apartment 95
406 2 Apartment 417
550 3 Apartment 564
696 4 Apartment 678

39 5 Apartment 39
0 6 Apartment 0
2 8 Apartment 2

1,781 1,795

(2) Amount of Rent Arrears

The table below summarises the rent arrears position for the HRA dwellings.
The trend shown below is of a decrease in the number of properties in arrears
but the amount of arrears has increased per property.

31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000

125 Rent Arrears 119

374 Number of properties in arrears (Number) 325
21.0 Properties in arrears as share of total stock (%) 18.1
334 Average amount per property in arrears (£) 366
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(3) Provision for Bad Debts

The following table summarises the movements on the bad debt provision during
2010/11:

2009/10 2010/11 2010/11
£000 £000 £000

(138) Balance as at 1st April (175)

Bad rent debt written off
41     Over £1,000 (Council approved) 27
13     Under £1,000 (delegated authority) 11
54 38

5 Miscellaneous bad debt written off 2

(79) (135)
(96) Contribution to/(from) Housing Revenue Account (20)

(175) Balance as at 31st March (155)

(4) Void Rents

The following table summaries the income lost due to voids in 2010/11. These
amounts are included in the Other expenditure line of the Housing Revenue
Account Income and Expenditure Statement

2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000

4  Ladies Drive Void Rents and Charges 2
84  General Needs Void Rents and Charges 67
31  Sheltered Housing Void Rents and Charges 36
1  Refurbishment Properties Void Rents and Charges 20

120 125

(5) Depreciation and Impairment of Non-Current Assets

The depreciation and impairment charge to the Housing Revenue Account
increased significantly from £1.679m in 2009/10 to £12.518m in 2010/11. The
main reason for this increase was a revaluation of council dwellings resulting in a
reassessment of the split in the value of the assets between land and buildings.
This resulted in an impairment charge of £10.986m on the land and there was a
subsequent upward revaluation of buildings totalling £10.351m reflected in the
revaluation reserve.
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Council Tax Income Account

a) Statutory Background

The Council Tax Income Account (Scotland) shows the gross income raised from
council taxes levied and deductions made under statute. The resultant net income is
transferred to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

Council tax is payable on any dwelling which is not an exempt dwelling (prescribed by
an order made by the Scottish Government). The amount of council tax payable
depends on the valuation band of the dwelling.

Council Tax Income Account

2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000

(9,729) Gross Council Tax levied and contributions in lieu (9,847)
(9,729) (9,847)

(4) Council Tax benefits (net of Government grant) (3)
1,156 Other discounts and reductions 1,162

60 Write-offs of uncollectable debts and allowance for impairment 34
20 Adjustment to previous years' community charge and council tax 25

(8,497) Transfer to General Fund (8,629)

(1) Council tax base

Overleaf is the analysis of the Council Tax base used to set the 2010/11
charges. The analysis sets out the number of chargeable dwellings in each
valuation band, before and after adjustment for exemptions and discounts, with
all figures also shown after conversion to band D equivalents.

(2) Charge setting

The analysis then sets out the tax yield and the charge per property in each
band for the General Fund.

(3) Deductions

The gross charge to a given property may be affected by the following
deductions:

Exemptions - Council Tax will be payable on almost all houses. A few,
however, will be exempt. Houses where all the residents are students or
are under 18 years old or are persons with a severe mental impairment will
be exempt. So will some classes of empty property, although in many
cases only for a limited period.
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Discounts - Council Tax bills can be reduced by discounts for dwellings
with less than two adults. If only one adult lives there, the bill may be cut by
25%. If the property is unoccupied and is no-one’s sole or main residence,
the bill may be cut by up to 50%. If the property is a second home or long
term empty the discount will only be 10%. Certain persons will not be
counted when establishing the number of residents, these being students,
student nurses, apprentices, Youth Training trainees, persons with a severe
mental impairment, adults for whom child benefit is still payable, people
absent in nursing homes or hospitals, prisoners, care workers, and
members of religious communities.

Reliefs - If a house has been structurally altered for a disabled person, the
Council Tax bill may be set at the next band lower in value than that shown
in the Valuation List. A reduction is also available for houses in band A.
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COUNCIL TAX VALUATION BANDS 2010/11

B A N D  A B A N D  A B A N D  B B A N D  C B A N D  D B A N D  E B A N D  F B A N D  G B A N D  H T OT A L

Subject to
Disabled

Relief
£0 to

£26,999.99
£27,000.00 to

£34,999.99
£35,000.00 to

£44,999.99
£45,000.00 to

£57,999.99
£58,000.00 to

£79,999.99
£80,000.00 to

£105,999.99
£106,000.00 to

£211,999.99
£212,000.00 to

infinity

Council Tax Weighting per Band 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 18

Total Properties per Register (Number) 3,073 1,782 2,587 1,661 1,153 214 51 1 10,522

Gross Tax Base (Properties x Weighting) 18,438 12,474 20,696 14,949 12,683 2,782 765 18 82,805

Adjusted Properties (Band D Equivalents) 2,049 1,386 2,300 1,661 1,409 309 85 2 9,201

Vacant Properties (Number.):
  M andatory Standard Exemptions (176) (57) (67) (47) (10) (3) (2) (1) (363)
Chargeable Dwellings subject to Disabled
Reduction (Number) (12) (6) (13) (11) (5) 0 (1) 0 (48)
Dwellings Effectively Subject to Tax by
Virtue o f :
  Disabled Relief (Number) 12 6 13 11 5 0 1 0 0 48
Class 18 (M oD) Dwellings (Number) 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Revised Total Properties (Number) 12 2,891 1,732 2,518 1,608 1,139 212 48 0 10,160

Types o f Property (Number):
  Single Discount (25%) 4 1,259 715 947 351 170 19 9 0 3,474
  Double Discount (50%) 0 290 107 69 34 21 4 0 0 525
  No Discount (0%) 8 1,342 910 1,502 1,223 948 189 39 0 6,161

12 2,891 1,732 2,518 1,608 1,139 212 48 0 10,160

Properties Subject to Council Tax
(Number) 11 2,431 1,500 2,247 1,503 1,086 205 46 0 9,029
Net Tax Base (Properties x Weighting) 55 14,586 10,500 17,976 13,527 11,946 2,665 690 0 71,945

Adjusted Properties (Band D Equivalents) 6 1,621 1,167 1,997 1,503 1,327 296 77 0 7,994

C OUN C IL  T A X  2010/ 11:
General F und Charge
   Tax Yield (£) 7,722 1,706,738 1,228,295 2,102,958 1,582,922 1,397,682 312,185 80,291 0 8,418,793
   C harge per P ro perty (£) 702 702 819 936 1,053 1,287 1,521 1,755 2,106 10,881
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Non-Domestic Rate Income Account

a) Statutory Background

Occupiers of non-domestic property pay rates based on the valuation of property within
the valuation roll for the area. The non-domestic rate poundage is determined by the
Scottish Government.

The Non-Domestic Rate Account (Scotland) is an agent’s statement that reflects the
statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Non-Domestic Rate
Account. The statement shows the gross income from the rates and deductions made
under statute. The net income is paid to the Scottish Government as a contribution to
the national non-domestic rate pool.

Non-Domestic Rate Income Account

2009/10 2010/11
£000 £000

(15,520) Gross rates levied and contributions in lieu (17,912)
(15,520) (17,912)

3,196 Reliefs and other deductions (net) 3,751
11 Payment of interest 0
38 Write-offs of uncollectable debts and allowance for impairment 4

156 Adjustments to previous years' national non-domestic rates 83

(12,119) Contribution to national non-domestic rates pool (14,074)

(1) Analysis of Rateable Values

The table below sets out the number of subjects liable for General Rates and the
rateable values at the start of the year.

The amount paid for Non-Domestic Rates is determined by the rateable value
agreed by the Assessor multiplied by the rate per £ (rate poundage) that is
announced annually by the Scottish Government. The national Non-Domestic
Rate poundage set for 2010/11 is 40.7p (down from 48.1p) with a large business
supplement of 0.7p for all subjects with a rateable value above £29,000. The aim
of the reduction in poundage is to offset the increase in rateable values in
Scotland due to the 2010 rateable value revaluation.

The Small Business Bonus Scheme was introduced by the Scottish Government
from 1 April 2008, replacing the Small Business Rate Relief Scheme and applies
to properties with a rateable value of £18,000 or less. Larger businesses will
continue to contribute to the cost of the scheme by paying a supplement on the
rate poundage for all subjects with a rateable value above £29,000. For 2010/11
this supplement is 0.7p (0.4p in 2009/10) on the rate poundage of all properties
with a rateable value above £29,000, therefore the rate is 41.4p in the pound.

Category Number of Subjects Rateable Value £000
Commercial 561 6,447
Industrial 487 24,450
Other 857 12,171
TOTAL 1905 43,068
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Trust Funds Administered by the Council

The Council administers, as sole trustee, 8 trust funds related to specific services. These are
varied in nature and relate principally to legacies left by individuals over a great many years.
Funds are in the main held in deposit accounts with local banks.  The funds do not represent
assets of the Council and are not included in the Balance Sheet.

Fund Fund
Balance Balance

31 March 2010 31 March 2010
£000 £000

(16,910)  Shetland Development Trust (16,855)
(647)  Zetland Educational Trust (649)
(52)  Gilbertson Trust (52)
(3)  William Strong Bequest 0
(2)  Samuel Mullay Bequest (3)
(5)  Other (5)

(17,619) Total (17,564)

The Zetland Educational Trust, with an income of £14,461 and expenditure of £12,464, pays
bursaries to university students, aids apprentices and supports educational trips. The
Gilbertson Trust, with an income of £941, makes annual payments of £20 to deserving
persons, mainly in Lerwick, amounting to £100. These and the Samuel Mullay Bequest are
registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator. The other trusts are, due to their
low annual income, dormant.

The Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator gave consent for the William Strong Bequest to
be wound up; the Trustees donated the closing balance of £3,262 to Crossreach, the social
care arm of the Church of Scotland. Confirmation was received on 15 February 2011, from
Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator, that the William Strong Bequest had been removed
from the Scottish Charity Register.

Details of The Shetland Development Trust can be found in the notes to the Group accounts.
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Group Accounts

a) Introduction

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011
requires the Council to prepare group accounts where the authority has interests in
subsidiaries, associates and/or jointly controlled entities, subject to the consideration of
materiality.

With regard to the position of Shetland Charitable Trust, Shetland Islands Council
recognises the need to resolve the issue of grouping of accounts with Shetland
Charitable Trust.  However, it has not been possible to include the results of the
Shetland Charitable Trust in the 2010/11 Group Accounts and the Council regrets that
the qualification is likely to continue into a fifth year.

The Council is, however, working closely with Shetland Charitable Trust to resolve the
situation.   The Shetland Charitable Trust is in the process of renewing the composition
of the Trust and when that work is complete it will be possible to reassess the
relationship between the Council and the Trust, for accounting purposes.  It is
envisaged that this work will be completed in time for the preparation of the 2012/13
Final Accounts.

b) Statement of Group Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the group accounts are the same as those for the Council’s
single entity accounts.  Where component bodies of the group prepare their financial
statements on a different basis to that of Shetland Islands Council, appropriate
accounting adjustments will be made, where they would have a material impact, to
ensure that accounting treatments are in compliance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011.

(1) Group Boundary

Shetland Islands Council considers all entities in which it has an interest for
consolidation into the group accounts.  The following criteria are used for
determining whether an entity falls within the group accounts and if so, on what
grounds:

Materiality

Where the financial impact of omitting an entity from the group accounts would
not cause a user of the accounts to form a different view on the accounts, the
council has opted not to include these entities within the group boundary.
Shetland Islands Council has therefore not included the Trust Funds (detailed in
Note 38), with the exception of the Shetland Development Trust on the grounds
that they are immaterial in relation to the group accounts.

Subsidiary

The Code defines a subsidiary as an entity which the authority controls through
the power to govern their financial and operating policies sop as to obtain benefits
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from the entity’s activities.  Control is usually presumed where an authority owns
more than half the voting power of the entity.

The Council has identified two entities which fall under the criteria of subsidiaries:

Shetland Towage; and
Shetland Development Trust.

The Shetland Development Trust has been consolidated into the Group
Statements as a subsidiary. Shetland Towage has been excluded as it is not
currently operational nor does it hold significant assets and is therefore not
material.

Associates

The code defines an associate as an entity for which the authority is an investor
that has significant influence.  Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity.  The Council has
identified four entities that meet the definition of an associate, and as such, both
have been included in the group accounts as associates.  These are;

Northern Joint Police Board;
Highlands and Islands Fire Board;
Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board; and
Zetland Transport Partnership.

(2) Method of Consolidation

In accordance with the Code, the subsidiary Shetland Development Trust, has
been fully consolidated. The Shetland Development Trust has a financial year-end
of 31 March 2011. This means that the financial statements of the subsidiary are
consolidated by adding like items of assets, liabilities, reserves, income and
expenses together line by line to those of the Council’s financial statements. All
intra-group balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

The four associates have been consolidated at their financial year-ends of 31
March 2011 using the equity method, which is in compliance with the Code.  This
approach involves consolidating the Council’s share of the net surplus or deficit
for the year, as well as a share of the net assets of the entities. These results are
expressed as a separate line within the Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account and Group Balance Sheet.  The Council’s share of the
results is deemed to be equal to the share of the funding that the Council
contributed to each entity.  In 2010/11 that was as follows –

Northern Joint Police Board – In 2010/11 the Council contributed 6.15% of
NJPB operating costs (6.42% in 2009/10);
Highlands and Islands Fire Board – In 2010/11 the Council contributed 10.08%
of HIFB operating costs (9.36% in 2009/10);
Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board – The Council contributed 51.7% of
the Board’s operating costs (51.8% in 2009/10); and
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Zetland Transport Partnership – In 2010/11 the Council contributed 100% of
the partnership’s operating costs (100% in 2009/10).

With the exception of the Shetland Development Trust, all group entities prepared
their financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011.  The Shetland Development
Trust’s accounts have been converted to a Code compliant basis where material
(except as detailed below).

Financial Assets

All investments are classified as Available-for-sale and are shown at fair value
which is based on the quoted market bid price, except for investments held by the
Shetland Development Trust.  These are valued at cost less provision for
impairment where evidence exists.

Pensions Accounting

Pension assets and liabilities have been included in the accounts on the basis of
IAS 19.  The Shetland Development Trust is exempt from IAS 190 and no
adjustment has been made in the Trust’s accounts for it.
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement 2010/11

General
Fund
Balance
£000

HRA
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve /
Capital
Funds
£000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

Other
Revenue
Statutory
Reserves
£000

Total
Usable
Reserves
£000

Unusable
Reserves
£000

Total
Authority
Reserves
£000

Authority's
share in
reserves of
subsidiaries
and associates
£000

Total
Group
Reserves
£000

Balance as at 31 March 2010 (160) 0 (118,582) 0 (155,025) (273,767) (186,902) (460,669) 18,335 (442,334)
Movement in reserves during
2010/11
(Surplus) or deficit on the
provision of services

3,428 9,943 0 0 0 13,371 0 13,371 737 14,108

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

0 0 0 0 0 0 (66,433) (66,433) (10,990) (77,423)

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

3,428 9,943 0 0 0 13,371 (66,433) (53,062) (10,253) (63,315)

Adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under
regulations

16,745 (9,454) 0 (171) 0 7,120 (7,120) 0 0 0

Adjustment for a change in the
authority's share of equity in its
associates (See Note 10)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (620) (620)

Net Increase/Decrease before
Transfers to Statutory Reserves

20,173 489 0 (171) 0 20,491 (73,553) (53,062) (10,873) (63,935)

Transfers to/(from) Other Statutory
Reserves

(20,156) (489) 4,220 0 619 (15,806) 15,806 0 0 0

Increase/Decrease in 2010/11 17 0 4,220 (171) 619 4,685 (57,747) (53,062) (10,873) (63,935)

Balance as at 31 March 2011 (143) 0 (114,362) (171) (154,406) (269,082) (244,649) (513,731) 7,462 (506,269)
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement 2009/10

General
Fund
Balance
£000

HRA
£000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve /
Capital
Funds
£000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

Other
Revenue
Statutory
Reserves
£000

Total
Usable
Reserves
£000

Unusable
Reserves
£000

Total
Authority
Reserves
£000

Authority's
share in
reserves of
subsidiaries
and associates
£000

Total
Group
Reserves
£000

Balance as at 31 March 2009 (70) 0 (114,308) 0 (180,329) (294,707) (222,090) (516,797) 3,587 (513,210)

Movement in reserves during
2009/10
(Surplus) or deficit on the
provision of services

34,949 (458) 0 0 0 34,491 0 34,491 2,485 36,976

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

0 0 0 0 0 0 21,637 21,637 12,661 34,298

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

34,949 (458) 0 0 0 34,491 21,637 56,128 15,146 71,274

Adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under
regulations

(14,662) 755 0 0 0 (13,907) 13,907 0 0 0

Adjustment for a change in the
authority's share of equity in its
associates (See Note 10)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (398) (398)

Net Increase/Decrease before
Transfers to Statutory Reserves

20,287 297 0 0 0 20,584 35,544 56,128 14,748 70,876

Transfers to/(from) Other Statutory
Reserves

(20,378) (297) (4,274) 0 25,304 355 (355) 0 0 0

Increase/Decrease in 2009/10 (91) 0 (4,274) 0 25,304 20,939 35,189 56,128 14,748 70,876

Balance at 31 March 2010 (161) 0 (118,582) 0 (155,025) (273,768) (186,901) (460,669) 18,335 (442,334)
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for year ended 31 March
2011

2009/10 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
Net Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000

50,933 Education Services 56,104 (8,304) 47,800
1,523 Housing Services 8,779 (5,677) 3,102

(2,059) Housing Revenue Account 15,578 (6,758) 8,820
6,915 Cultural and Related Services 7,706 (877) 6,829
8,551 Environmental Services 9,094 (2,681) 6,413
2,196 Fire Services 2,197 0 2,197

13,321 Roads and Transport Services 21,394 (9,847) 11,547
11,847 Trading Services 28,272 (17,341) 10,931
1,972 Police Services 1,461 0 1,461
9,739 Planning and Development Services 14,838 (5,457) 9,381

26,744 Social Work 40,887 (8,384) 32,503
2,370 Central Services to the Public 2,436 (310) 2,126
6,649 Corporate and Democratic Core 7,572 0 7,572
2,268 Non Distributed Costs (28,826) 0 (28,826)

1,529
Associates and Joint Ventures Accounted for
on an Equity Basis 6,795 (8,121) (1,326)

144,498 Cost of Services 194,287 (73,757) 120,530

(44) Other operating income (327)
(1,489) Financing and investment income and expenditure 1,904

(106,382) Taxation and non-specific grant income (108,852)
393 Tax Expenses 853

36,976 Deficit on Provision of Services 14,108

(20,308)
(Surplus) on revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment assets (15,540)

(43,410)
(Surplus) on revaluation of available for sale
financial assets (19,383)

85,355
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension
assets/liablilities (31,511)

12,661
Share of other comprehensive income and
expenditure of Associates and Joint Ventures (10,989)

34,298 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (77,423)

71,274 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (63,315)
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Group Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2011

1 April 2009 31 March 2010 Notes 31 March 2011
£000 £000 £000

350,508 367,478 Property, Plant and Equipment 374,529
12,080 10,807 Intangible Assets 4 9,608

200,593 219,498 Long-term Investments 5 223,169
4,047 3,296 Long-term Debtors 5 3,495

567,228 601,079 Long-Term Assets 610,801

0 0 Short Term Investments 5 103
3,465 3,609 Inventories 4,023

11,896 10,468 Short-term Debtors 6 9,004
29,075 24,841 Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 10,869

654 1,245 Assets Held for Sale 206
45,090 40,163 Current Assets 24,205

(18,773) (16,640) Short-Term Creditors 8 (15,454)
(18,773) (16,640) Current Liabilities (15,454)

(53) (4) Provisions (10)
(58,979) (147,169) Other Long-Term Liabilities (91,113)
(21,308) (35,095) Liabilities in Associates/Joint Ventures (22,160)
(80,340) (182,268) Long-Term Liabilities (113,283)

513,205 442,334 Net Assets 506,269

(294,707) (273,767) Usable Reserves (269,082)
(222,090) (186,902) Unusable Reserves (244,649)

3,592 18,335 Group Reserves 7,462
(513,205) (442,334) Total Reserves (506,269)
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Group Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2011

2009/10 2010/11 2010/11
£000 £000 £000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows

(99,097) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (102,975)
(76,345) Other operating cash payments (89,575)
(4,168) Precepts Paid (3,407)

(312) Taxation (642)
(179,922) (196,599)

Cash Inflows
3,706 Housing Rents 2,711

0 Trading 551
84,694 RSG 86,894

676 DWP Grants 769
30,243 Sales of goods and services 40,511
10,256 Other operating cash receipts 3,575
13,679 Other Government Grant 12,220
7,857 Council Tax income 8,647
9,189 NDR Income 8,672

160,300 164,550
Movement of working capital

(145) (Increase)/Decrease in Stock (414)
2,164 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 1,407

(2,133) Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors (551)
(114) 442

(19,736) Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities (31,607)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows

(24,578) Purchase of Fixed Assets (18,048)
(170,448) Purchase of Long Term Investments (238,884)
(195,438) Purchase of Short Term Investments (107,900)
(390,464) (364,832)

Cash Inflows
932 Sale of Fixed Assets 1,572

194,793 Sale of Long Term Investments 253,280
199,434 Sale of Short term investments 119,300

4,371 Capital Grant receipts 4,657
5,225 Interest Received & Dividends 3,660

404,755 382,469
14,291 Net Cash Inflow from Investing Activities 17,637

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
0 Cash Outflows 0
0 Cash Inflows 0
0 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 0

(5,445) NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH (13,970)

29,075 Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 April 24,841

(5,445) Net movement of Cash and Cash Equivalents during the year (13,970)

23,630 Cash & Cash Equivalent at 31 March 10,871
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c) Notes to the Group Accounts

(1)  Subsidiaries

The Group Accounts include the consolidation of the accounts of Shetland
Development Trust (SDT) as a subsidiary of the Council.

(a) Shetland Development Trust (SDT)

The SDT is a public non-charitable trust and duly registered by Deed on Trust on
8 January 1996. The function of SDT is to assist local businesses by providing
loan finance or by purchasing equity or leasing assets.  The Council exercises
100% of the Trust’s voting rights.

(2) Associates

The Group Financial statements include the consolidation of the investments in
Northern Joint Police Board (NJPB), Highland and Islands Fire Board (HIFB),
Zetland Transport partnership (Zetrans) and Orkney Shetland valuation Joint
Board (OS&VJB) as associates.

(a) Northern Joint Police Board (NJPB)

The NJPB was established at local government reorganisation in 1975 and
provides policing services to the Highlands and Islands.  In 2010/11 the Council
contributed 6.15% of NJPB operating costs (6.42% in 2009/10) and its share of
the year-end net liability of £17.750 million (£28.704 million in 2009/10) is included
in the group balance sheet.

The table below details Shetland Islands Council’s share of NJPB’s financial
results for the year –

2010/11
 £000

2009/10
£000

Gross Income (4,757) (4,573)
Gross Expenditure 3,966 5,855
Net (Surplus)/Deficit (791) 1,282
Non-Current Assets 2,855 3,017
Current Assets 931 874
Current Liabilities (433) (495)
Non-Current Liabilities (21,093) (32,100)
Capital and Reserves 17,750 28,704

(b) Highland and Islands Fire Board (HIFB)

The HIFB was established at local government reorganisation in 1975 and
provides fire services to Councils in the Highlands and Islands.
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In 2010/11 the Council contributed 10.08% of HIFB operating costs (9.36% in
2009/10) and its share of the year-end net liability of £4.146 million (£5.862 million
in 2009/10) is included in the group balance sheet.

The table below details Shetland Islands Council’s share of HIFB’s financial
results for the year –

2010/11
 £000

2009/10
£000

Gross Income (3,058) (2,587)
Gross Expenditure 2,639 2,818
Net (Surplus)/Deficit (419) 231
Non-Current Assets 4,714 4,265
Current Assets 486 382
Current Liabilities (432) (329)
Non-Current Liabilities (8,914) (10,180)
Capital and Reserves 4,146 5,862

Neither of the associates disclosed a value for contingent liabilities, as the
financial impact was unknown. The authority therefore cannot disclose its share of
these contingent liabilities.

(c) Zetland Transport Partnership (ZetTrans)

ZetTrans was formed in 2006/07 by the Regional Transport Partnerships
(Establishment, Constitution and Membership) (Scotland) Order 2005, made
under the Transport (Scotland) Act 2005.

The table below details Shetland Islands Council’s share of ZetTrans’ financial
results for the year –

2010/11
 £000

2009/10
 £000

Gross Income (1,708) (1,579)
Gross Expenditure 1,708 1,579
Net (Surplus)/Deficit 0 0
Non-Current Assets 0 0
Current Assets 1,593 1,511
Current Liabilities (1,593) (1,511)
Non-Current Liabilities 0 0
Capital and Reserves 0 0

(d) Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board (O&SVJB)

The O&SVJB provides the valuation service for Orkney and Shetland and is
funded by both Councils.

The Council provides 6 members of the Board out of 12 and contributed 51.7% of
the Board’s operating costs (51.8% in 2009/10) and its share of the year-end net
liability of £0.264 million (£0.529 million in 2009/10) is included in the group
balance sheet.
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The table below details Shetland Islands Council’s share of O&SVJB’s financial
results for the year –

2010/11
 £000

2009/10
 £000

Gross Income (307) (290)
Gross Expenditure 190 306
Net (Surplus)/Deficit (117) 16
Non-Current Assets 0 0
Current Assets 12 11
Current Liabilities (18) (15)
Non-Current Liabilities (258) (525)
Capital and Reserves 264 529

Orkney and Shetland Valuation Joint Board have no contingent liabilities or capital
commitments for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: nil).

(4) Group Intangible Assets

Group Group
31 March 2010 31 March 2011

£000 £000
Balance at start of year:

20,483  Gross carrying amounts 20,645
(8,403)  Accumulated amortisation (9,838)
12,080 Net carrying amount at start of year 10,807

Additions:
0  Internal development 0

74  Purchases 41
0  Acquired through business combinations 0
0 Assets reclassified as held for sale 0
0 Other disposals 0
0 Revaluations increases or decreases 0
0 Impairment losses recognised or reversed directly in the

Revaluation Reserve
0

0 Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

0

0 Reversals of past impairment losses written back to the
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

0

(1,435) Amortisation for the period (1,471)
88 Other changes 231

10,807 Net carrying amount at end of year 9,608

Included in the group intangible assets is a Fish Quota for £8,817,000 and a
Fishing Boat Licence for £355,000, both relating to Shetland Development Trust.
The costs of these assets are amortised over a period of 20 years, being their
estimated useful lives.
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(5) Group Financial Assets

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Long-Term Current
31

March
2009

31
March
2010

31 March
2009

31
March
2010

31       March
2011

31
March
2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Assets:
Investments:

200,593 219,498 0 0 Available for sale financial assets 223,169 103

200,593 219,498 0 0 Total Investments 223,169 103
Debtors:

3 2 0 0 Loans and receivables 1,051 271
4,029 3,283 Loans and receivables - Shetland

Development Trust
2,429

15 11 0 0 Financial assets carried at contract
amounts

15 1

4,047 3,296 0 0 Total Debtors 3,495 272
Financial Liabilities:
Creditors:

0 0 0 0 Accrued Interest Liability 0 (119)
0 0 0 0 Total Creditors 0 (119)

Group
Long-Term Current

Group Group

Shetland Development Trust has made provisions for irrecoverable loans and for
equity investments where there is a risk of the business failing.

E qu ity
Investm en ts

L oan s and
Receivab les

£000 £000
Cost  at  31/03/2011 7,681 10,045
P rovis ions
A t beginning of  year 7157 8,923
P rov ided during year 94
Released during the year (1,307)
T o tal  provid ed at  31/03/2011 7,251 7,616
V alue n et o f p rovisio ns 430 2,429

(6)  Group Short-Term Debtors

Group Group Group
31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000
2,239 2,179 Central Government Bodies 1,290

215 534 Other Local Authorities 389
824 95 NHS Bodies 67

80 124 Public Corporation and Trading Funds 106
8,445 7,417 Other Entities and Individuals 6,664

93 119 Trade Debtors of Subsidiaries 488
11,896 10,468 Total 9,004
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(7) Group Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

Group Group Group
31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000
27 20 Cash held by the Authority 22

2,616 3,935 Cash held by Subsidiaries 3,596
9,926 7,402 Bank current accounts 7,251

16,506 13,484 Short-term certificates of deposit 0
29,075 24,841 Total 10,869

(8) Group Short-Term Creditors

Group Group Group
31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000
2,482 2,208 Central Government Bodies 3,512

17 129 Other Local Authorities 277
675 59 NHS Bodies 33

1,071 1,313 Public Corporations, Trading Funds and Charities 1,438
14,477 12,715 Bodies External to General Government 10,012

51 216 Accruals and Deferred Income 182
18,773 16,640 Total 15,454

(9) Financial Impact

The inclusion of the five organisations (subsidiary and associates) changes the
net worth of the Group from the figure shown in the Council’s own Balance sheet.

The Group net worth at £506.269m is a reduction of £7.462m from the Council’s
Group’s net worth of £513.731m. This, as in previous years, reflects the
downward impact on net worth from the Pension Liabilities of the Police and Fire
Boards.  This was partially offset by the surpluses of the Shetland Development
Trust.

(10)  Adjustment  for  a  change  in  the  authority's  share  of  equity  in  its
associates

The Group Movement in Reserve Statement contains a credit of £0.620m
(£0.398m 2009/10) which reflects the changes in Shetland Islands Council’s
equity share in its associates. This has largely resulted from Shetland Islands
Council’s share of equity in Northern Joint Police Board (NJPB) decreasing from
6.42% in 2009/10 to 6.15% in 2010/11.

(11) Remuneration Report

No remuneration report has been compiled for the Group as the Shetland
Development Trust does not have any senior employees or makes payments to
senior councillors.
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INSERT AUDIT OPINION
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Glossary of Terms

Much of the terminology used in this report is intended to be self-explanatory, however, the
following definitions and interpretations of terms may be helpful:

1. Employee Expenses
This includes salaries, wages, overtime, bonus enhancements (if any), employer’s
pension and national insurance, travelling and subsistence expenses and other staff
allowances.

2. Corporate and Democratic Core
Corporate and Democratic Core costs include the costs of policy making and all other
member based activities together with costs that relate to the general running of the
Council. The Best Value Accounting Code of Practice stipulates that such costs are to be
excluded from the total cost relating to service activity.

3. Non Distributed Costs
Non Distributed Costs represent costs that cannot be allocated to specific services. The
Best Value Accounting Code of Practice stipulates that such costs are to be excluded
from the total cost relating to service activity.

4. Transfer Payments
Transfer payments are made to agencies where no goods or services are received in
return. For example, the cost of providing footwear and clothing grants for school children
and students.

5. Precepts and Levies
Requisition payments made to associates and joint ventures.

6. Usable Reserves
Reserves that can be used to fund expenditure or to reduce local taxation.

7. Unusable Reserves
Those reserves kept only to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments and retirement benefits.

8. Capital Expenditure
This is expenditure incurred in creating, acquiring or improving assets. Borrowing, income
from the sale of existing assets, revenue funds or external grants and contributions,
normally finances capital expenditure.

9. Void Rents
This refers to instances whereby the Council has forgone the opportunity to collect rental
income on a property as a result of it being unoccupied.
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